CONTRACT BIDDING DOCUMENTS

CITY OF BOWLING GREEN ROADWAY IMPROVEMENTS

JONES STREET (FPID NO. 442234-1)
BERTHA FULSE STREET (FPID NO. 442236-1)
FAIR AVENUE (FPID NO. 442237-1)
CHURCH AVENUE (FPID NO. 442346-1)



City of Bowling Green 104 East Main Street Bowling Green, FL 33834

Pre-Bid Meeting:

Date: February 22, 2021 Time: 2:30 PM Local Time

Location: City of Bowling Green Administration Building

Sealed Bids Due:

Date: March 22, 2021 Time: 2:00 PM Local Time

Location: City of Bowling Green Administration Building

104 East Main Street Bowling Green, FL 33834

TABLE OF CONTENTS

DIVISION 1: INSTRUCTIONS TO BIDDERS

INVITATIO	ON FOR BID	1-1
SECTION 1	L.1: GENERAL INSTRUCTIONS TO BIDDERS	1-2
1.1.1	Defined Terms in the Instructions to Bidders	1-2
1.1.2	Minimum Qualifications for Eligibility to Bid	
1.1.3	Bid Security	
1.1.4	Minority and Women's Business Enterprise Goals	1-3
1.1.5	Notice of Liquidated Damages	1-3
1.1.6	Florida Trench Safety Act	1-3
1.1.7	Subcontractors	1-3
1.1.8	Payment and Performance Bonds	1-3
1.1.9	Estimated Quantities Provided for Bidding Reference	1-4
1.1.10	Existing Site Conditions & Technical Data	1-4
1.1.11	Pre-Bid Clarifications & Addenda	1-5
1.1.12	Completing the Bid Form	1-5
1.1.13	Modification or Withdrawal of Bids	1-6
1.1.14	Submitting the Bid Documents	1-6
1.1.15	Opening of Bids	1-6
1.1.16	Calculation of Bid Price	1-7
1.1.17	Award	1-7
1.1.18	Notice of Award	1-7
1.1.19	Notice to Proceed	
1.1.20	Certification and Representations of the Bidder	
1.1.21	Conflict of Interest	
1.1.22	Ethics	1-9
1.1.23	Ex Parte Communication	
1.1.24	Prohibition Against Contingent Fees	
1.1.25	Protest of Bid and Award Process	
1.1.26	Owner's Reservations	
1.1.27	Documents and Forms Included in the Bid Documents	
1.1.28	State-Funded Agreement Notes	1-12
SECTION 1	L.2: REQUIRED FORMS TO SUBMIT WITH BID	1-13
1.2.1	Bid Forms	1-13
DIVISION 2	2: AGREEMENT	
SECTION 2	2.1:WORK	2-1
2.1.1	Completion of Work	2-1
SECTION 2	2.2: CONTRACT PRICE	2-1
2.2.1	Contract Price	2-1
2.2.2	Quantities	2-1

SECTION	2.3: CONTRACT TIME	2-2
2.3.1	Time of the Essence	2-2
2.3.2	Days to Achieve Substantial Completion and Final Payment	2-2
SECTION	2.4: CONTRACT ROLES AND RESPONSIBILITIES	2-2
2.4.1	Contract Administrator:	2-2
2.4.2	Project Engineer:	2-2
2.4.3	Grant Administrator:	
2.4.4	Contractor's Representative:	
2.4.5	Contractor's Supervisor:	
SECTION 2	2.5: CONTRACT DOCUMENTS	2-3
2.5.1	Contents	2-3
SECTION 2	2.6: NOTICES AND CORRESPONDENCE	2-4
2.6.1	Transmission Method	2-4
DIVISION	3: TERMS AND CONDITIONS	
SECTION	3.1: DEFINED TERMS	3-1
3.1.1	Definitions	3-1
SECTION	3.2: PRELIMINARY MATTERS	3-7
3.2.1	Payment Bond and Performance Bond	
3.2.2	Liquidated Damages	
3.2.3	Preconstruction and Progress Meetings	
3.2.4	Contractor Review of Project Requirements	
3.2.5	Contractor's Documents at the Work Location	
3.2.6	Contractor's Field Office	
3.2.7	Commercial Activities on the Work Location	
3.2.8	Compliance with Referenced Specifications	
3.2.9	Licenses	
3.2.10	Limitation of Accuracy of Informational Materials	
3.2.11	Permits	
3.2.12	Work Information	
3.2.13 3.2.14	Engineer's RPR Status During Construction Conflict of Interest	
	3.3: SUBSTANTIAL COMPLETION AND FINAL ACCEPTANCE	
3.3.1	Acceptance of Work - After Receipt, Inspection, Usage and Testing	
3.3.2	Substantial Completion	
SECTION	3.4: PRICE & PAYMENTS	
3.4.1	Application for Payment and Payment Terms	
3.4.2	Retainage	
3.4.3	Payment Method - Progress Payments and Schedule of Values	3-15

3.4.4	Final Application for Payment	
3.4.5	Prompt Payment to Subcontractors and Suppliers	
3.4.6	Taxes	
3.4.7	Allowances	3-17
SECTION	3.5: INSURANCE & INDEMNITIES	3-17
3.5.1	Environmental Indemnity	3-17
3.5.2	Indemnification	3-18
3.5.3	Insurance Requirements	
3.5.4	Title and Risk of Loss	3-19
SECTION	3.6: GENERAL PERFORMANCE OF WORK	3-19
3.6.1	Care of Property Owners	
3.6.2	Workmanship	
3.6.3	Work Location Cleanliness	
3.6.4	Surveying	3-20
SECTION	3.7: SCHEDULES	3-21
3.7.1	Preliminary Schedules	
3.7.2	Work Days	
3.7.3	Changes to the Progress Schedule	3-22
SECTION	3.8: MATERIALS, TOOLS & EQUIPMENT	3-22
3.8.1	Temporary Utilities	
3.8.2	Material Delivery Locations	
3.8.3	Storage of Equipment	
3.8.4	Contractor Laydown Area	
3.8.5	Substitutions	
3.8.6 3.8.7	Disposition of Salvage Material Tools and Equipment	
	3.9: SAFETY & SECURITY	
3.9.1	Safety and Protection Precautions Emergency Events	
3.9.3	Emergency Procedures	
3.9.4	Storm Preparedness	
3.9.5	Weather Protection	
3.9.6	Project Security	
3.9.7	Protection of the Environment	
SECTION	3.10: OTHER WORK AND OTHER PROPERTY	3-28
3.10.1	Encroachments on Rights or Property	3-28
	Interference with Existing Utilities	
3.10.3	_	
3.10.4	Interference with Railroads	3-30
3.10.5	Interruption of Service	3-30

3.10.6 3.10.7	Protection of Existing Facilities and Grounds Temporary Closure of Roadways	
SECTION 3	3.11:DRAWINGS	3-32
3.11.1	Shop Drawings	3-32
SECTION 3	3.12: INSPECTIONS, QUALITY & REPORTING	3-33
3.12.1	Contractor's Daily Reports	3-33
3.12.2	Reporting	
3.12.3	Quality Control and Quality Assurance	
3.12.4	Inspections and Testing	
3.12.5	Performance Evaluation	3-36
SECTION 3	3.13: OWNER FURNISHED ITEMS	3-36
3.13.1	Conditions of Provisioning	
3.13.2	Access to Work Locations	
3.13.3	Contract Documents	
3.13.4	Site Conditions	3-37
SECTION 3	3.14: CHANGES TO WORK	3-37
3.14.1	Unforeseen Conditions	
3.14.2	Changes in the Work and Change Orders	3-38
3.14.3	No Damage for Delay	3-40
3.14.4	Notification of Surety	
3.14.5	Contingency Work	
3.14.6	Suspension of Work	
3.14.7	Unauthorized Work	
3.14.8	Payment of Overtime	
3.14.9	Scheduling of Overtime (Contractor Initiated Overtime)	3-43
SECTION 3	3.15: LABOR	3-44
3.15.1	DBE, MBE and/or WBE Requirements	3-44
3.15.2	Contractor's Labor Relations	
3.15.3	Minimum Qualifications of Contractor Personnel	
3.15.4	Nondiscrimination	
3.15.5	Show-Up Pay	3-45
SECTION 3	3.16: RIGHTS & REMEDIES	3-45
3.16.1	Intellectual Property	
3.16.2	Offsets	
3.16.3	Proprietary Information	
3.16.4	Removal of Work	
3.16.5	Right to Audit and Financial Reporting	
3.16.6	Title to Materials Found	
SECTION 3	3.17: REPRESENTATIONS & WARRANTIES	3-47

3.17.1	Contractor's Knowledge of the Work	3-47
3.17.2	2 Contractor's Plans and Specifications	3-48
3.17.3	3 Contractor's Warranties	3-48
3.17.4	4 Competent Performance of the Work	3-49
3.17.5		
3.17.6	Free and Clear Title	3-50
3.17.7	7 Performance of the Work	3-50
3.17.8	3 Safety Representation	3-50
SECTION	3.18: TERM & TERMINATION	3-50
3.18.1	Term of Contract (Through Work Completion)	3-50
3.18.2		
3.18.3		
SECTION	3.19: MISCELLANEOUS TERMS & CONDITIONS	3-53
3.19.1	1 Ambiguous Contract Provisions	2 52
3.19.2		
3.19.3 3.19.4		
3.19.4		
3.19.5 3.19.6		
3.19.7		
	'	
3.19.8		
3.19.9	3	
3.19.3	5 5	
3.19.1 3.19.1		
	,	
3.19.1		
3.19.1	•	
3.19.1	,	
3.19.3		
3.19.		
3.19.3	, 3	
3.19.2		
3.19.2	20 Waiver of Claims	3-57

DIVISION 4: SUPPLEMENTAL CONDITIONS

DIVISION 5: FORMS

SECTION 5.1: FORMS TO SUBMIT WITH BID

- 5.1.1 Bid Form
- 5.1.2 Bid Security
- 5.1.3 Bidder's Qualifications
- 5.1.4 Bidder's Statement of Disputes, Litigation, Arbitration, and Surety Completion
- 5.1.5 Drug-Free Workplace Certificate

- 5.1.6 Florida Trench Safety Act Acknowledgement
- 5.1.7 Non-Collusion Affidavit
- 5.1.8 Public Entity Crimes Statement
- 5.1.9 Tabulation of Subcontractors and Suppliers

SECTION 5.2: FORMS FOR CONVENIENCE

- 5.2.1 Certificate of Final Completion Form
- 5.2.2 Certification of Substantial Completion Form
- 5.2.3 Change Order Form
- 5.2.4 Contractor's Application for Payment Form
- 5.2.5 Field Order Form
- 5.2.6 Notice of Award Form
- 5.2.7 Notice to Proceed Form
- 5.2.8 Payment Bond Form
- 5.2.9 Performance Bond Form
- 5.2.10 Work Change Directive Form

DIVISION 6: TECHNICAL SPECIFICATIONS

DIVISION 1: INSTRUCTIONS TO BIDDERS

INVITATION FOR BID

Sealed Bids will be received by the City of Bowling Green located at 104 East Main Street, Bowling Green, Florida 33834, until 2:00 PM local time on March 22, 2021. Bids received after said time will be returned unopened. The Bidder shall be solely responsible for delivery of their Bid. Reliance upon mail or public carriers is at the Bidder's risk.

The principal features of the Work are:

- 1. Milling and resurfacing of approximately 840-ft of existing asphalt approximately 17-ft in width.
- 2. Replacement of existing signage and striping.

The Contract(s) awarded under this Solicitation will be funded with funding received from the Florida Department of Transportation through the Small County Outreach Program (SCOP). Neither the State nor any of its departments, agencies, or employees are or will be a party to this Solicitation or any resulting contract.

Plans and specifications are on file for inspection at the office of Kimley-Horn and Associates, Inc. located at 116 South Kentucky Avenue, Lakeland, Florida 33801 and at the City of Bowling Green Administration Building located at 104 East Main Street, Bowling Green, Florida 33834.

The Bidder is solely responsible for obtaining the Bid Documents. Bidders may secure a complete hardcopy set from Kimley-Horn and Associates, Inc. located at 116 South Kentucky Avenue, Lakeland, Florida 33801, Phone: 863-701-8702. Make checks payable to: Kimley-Horn and Associates, Inc. Deposit per set (refundable): \$75. Requests for mailing sets will require a separate, non-refundable \$10.00 check for mailing charges. Deposits will be refunded upon return of drawings, specifications, and addenda in good condition within 10 days of opening of bids.

Sealed Bids shall reference the following on the outer envelope:

SEALED BID: BIDDER'S NAME AND ADDRESS CITY OF BOWLING GREEN ROADWAY IMPROVEMENTS

FPID NO. 442234-1, 442236-1, 442237-1, & 442346-1

All Bids shall be publicly opened, read aloud and recorded at 2:00 PM local time on March 22, 2021 in the City of Bowling Green Administration Building, 104 East Main Street, Bowling Green, Florida 33834.

PRE-BID MEETING: A Pre-Bid meeting is mandatory for this project.

QUESTIONS: All questions regarding this Invitation for Bid shall be submitted in writing and delivered to William Laurence, City Manager, City of Bowling Green, 104 East Main Street, Bowling Green, Florida 33834, or via email: wlaurence@bowlinggreen.com

<u>ADDENDA:</u> The Owner will distribute Addenda directly to Bidders who have submitted a <u>Notice of Interest Form</u>. A copy of the form may be obtained by submitting a written request to William Laurence at the address above or by downloading the form from the City of Bowling Green website at: www.bowlinggreen.org;

SECTION 1.1: GENERAL INSTRUCTIONS TO BIDDERS

1.1.1 Defined Terms in the Instructions to Bidders

A. The words and terms defined in DIVISION 3: TERMS AND CONDITIONS are hereby incorporated by reference into this part.

1.1.2 Minimum Qualifications for Eligibility to Bid

- A. Receipt of this Solicitation and other Bid and Contract related documents from the Owner or its designated representatives does not constitute the Owner's approval of the Bidder's qualifications.
- B. Bidders shall have the following minimum qualifications to be considered eligible to bid in response to this Solicitation. It is the responsibility of the Bidder to ensure and certify that it meets the minimum qualifications. Bidders not meeting all of the following criteria will not have their Bids considered for Award.
 - 1. Bidder shall be a licensed contractor in the State of Florida, in accordance with Florida Statutes, Chapter 489.
 - 2. Bidder shall have been in the business of performing projects of the same scope for at least the past five (5) years.
 - 3. Bidder shall demonstrate that it has successfully completed at least three (3) projects of similar scope and scale to the Work described herein, for at least two (2) different Florida government agencies within the past five (5) years. Bidder shall submit names and contact information for each referenced project. Factors the Owner may consider to make a determination of the Bidder's eligibility under this criterion include but are not limited to:
 - a. The Bidder's ability to perform work in a satisfactory manner as evidenced by the Bidder's past performance on other projects performed for the Owner, and
 - b. The Bidder's past performance of satisfactory work as evidenced by project descriptions submitted for three stated projects as part of the Bid and the Owner's verification of associated references; and
 - c. The Bidder's past performance as evidenced by any other information the Owner gathers or obtains during the Bid review process, including but not limited to information included on the Bidder's Qualifications questionnaire.
- C. The Bidder certifies, under penalty of perjury, that it holds all licenses, permits, certifications, insurances, bonds and other credentials required by law, Contract or practice to perform the Work. The Bidder also certifies that, upon the prospect of any change in the status of applicable licenses, permits, certifications, insurances, bonds or other credentials, the Bidder shall immediately notify the Owner of the change.

1.1.3 Bid Security

A. Each Bid is to be accompanied by a Bid Security made payable to the Owner in an amount at least equal to five (5) percent of the Bidder's maximum Bid Price and in the form of a Certified Check or Bid Bond. Failure to furnish the required Bid Security will disqualify the Bid.

1.1.4 Minority and Women's Business Enterprise Goals

A. Bidders are encouraged to utilize Minority Business Enterprises and Women's Business Enterprises in the Work.

1.1.5 Notice of Liquidated Damages

A. In the event a Contract is awarded as a result of this Solicitation, the Contract will be subject to liquidated damages as set forth in DIVISION 3: TERMS AND CONDITIONS.

1.1.6 Florida Trench Safety Act

A. The Bidder shall complete and submit with its Bid the Florida Trench Safety Act Acknowledgment form, in accordance with Florida Statutes, Section 553 when the Work includes trench excavations that exceed five (5) feet in depth and as written assurance that the Bidder shall comply with all applicable trench safety standards, laws, rules and regulations during performance of any Work awarded from this Solicitation.

1.1.7 Subcontractors

- A. The Bidder shall supply with their Bid a list of all Subcontractors and Suppliers that it intends to use for the Work. The Successful Bidder shall not be permitted to use Subcontractors and Suppliers other than those shown in the Bid unless good cause is shown and prior written consent is obtained from the Owner.
- B. If the Bidder plans to use a single Subcontractor or Supplier to perform over 50% of the Work, the Bidder shall obtain the Owner's approval prior to the opening of Bids. Failure to obtain the Owner's approval will disqualify the Bid.
- C. The Bidder may not use as a Subcontractor or Supplier, any Bidders that were rejected in the Bid process due to incomplete status or unqualified Bids.

1.1.8 Payment and Performance Bonds

A. As stated in DIVISION 3: TERMS AND CONDITIONS of the Contract Documents, the successful Bidder shall be required to furnish a Payment Bond and a Performance Bond in accordance with Florida Statutes, Section 255.05, prior to the start of any Field Work.

1.1.9 Estimated Quantities Provided For Bidding Reference

- A. The Bidder understands and agrees that the Owner's estimated Contract amounts shall not obligate the Owner in any way to issue Purchase Orders under the Contract of this amount, or any amount of Work under the Contract. The Owner may, at its sole discretion, issue Purchase Orders under the Contract totaling more or less than the estimated amounts, or may award the Contract, and is under no obligation to issue any Purchase Orders under the Contract. In the event that quantities change after Award, the changes to price and/or scope shall be made in accordance with the terms and conditions stated in the Contract Documents.
- B. Any item not shown on the Bid Form, but that is shown in the Drawings or Technical Specifications section, that is required to perform the Work, or that is required as part of a complete and operable system, shall be included in the Bid Price.

1.1.10 Existing Site Conditions & Technical Data

- A. Where the Bidder visits sites, no Work or other disturbance is to be performed while at the site without written permission by the Owner in advance of the site visit. The Bidder shall comply with all safety requirements described in the Bid Documents and the Owner may require the Bidder to show proof of a minimum of \$1 million of general liability insurance.
- B. No reports of Hazardous Materials at the Site are known to the Owner or the Engineer, unless disclosed in the specifications.
- C. In the preparation of Drawings and Technical Specifications, the Engineer relied upon the following drawings of physical conditions in or relating to existing surface and subsurface structures (except Underground Facilities) which are at or contiguous to the Site:
 - Aerial Images
 - 2. Pavement Core Boring Study Existing Flexible Pavement, Various Street Sites City of Bowling Green prepared by Ardaman and Associates, Inc. (October 7, 2014)
 - 3. City of Bowling Green Water and Sewer As-Builts
- D. Copies of the reports (and drawings) itemized above that are not included with the Bid Documents may be examined during regular business hours at the office of the Project Engineer identified in DIVISION 2: AGREEMENT. These reports (and drawings) are not part of the Contract Documents, but comprise additional "technical data" upon which the Bidder may rely as identified and established.
- E. The Bidder is solely responsible for obtaining and verifying all technical data necessary to submit its Bid.

1.1.11 Pre-Bid Clarifications & Addenda

- A. All questions regarding the Bid Documents must be submitted as stated in the Solicitation no later than ten (10) business days prior to the Bid Opening Date. The Bidder shall promptly give the Owner written notice of any errors, conflicts or ambiguities it discovers in the Bid Documents.
- B. If the Bidder objects in any manner to the Terms and Conditions or Technical Specifications, the objection must be addressed in writing no later than ten (10) business days prior to the Bid Opening Date. The Owner will address the objection in an Addendum if the Owner believes that a clarification or change is necessary.
- C. The Owner may issue Addenda prior to the opening of Bids to change or clarify the intent of the Bid Documents. The Owner will issue written responses to questions and requests for clarifications received by the stated deadline in the form of Addenda, and will distribute Addenda directly to Bidders who have submitted a Notice of Interest Form. A copy of the form may be obtained by submitting a written request to Jerry Conerly at the address provided in the Invitation for Bid or by downloading the form from the City of Bowling Green website at: www.cityofBowling Green.com Completed Notice of Interest Forms must be submitted no later than ten (10) business days prior to the Bid Opening Date.
- D. The Bidder shall be responsible for ensuring it has received all Addenda prior to submitting its Bid and shall acknowledge receipt of all Addenda by completing the Bidder's Representation section on the Bid Form in DIVISION 5: FORMS. All Addenda will become part of the Bid Documents and any resulting Contract Documents. Failure to acknowledge receipt of Addenda may be grounds for rejection of a Bid at the Owner's sole discretion.

1.1.12 Completing the Bid Form

- A. Bidders shall complete and submit the enclosed Bid Form with responses typewritten or written in ink. When a blank is marked "optional", the Bidder shall insert the words "No Bid" in the space provided if the Bidder does not choose to submit a price for that item.
- B. Failure to complete each blank with either a price or the words "No Bid" may disqualify the Bid. Failure to submit a Bid that addresses all parts of the Work may disqualify the Bid.
- C. The Bidder, or its authorized agent or officer of the firm, shall sign the Bid Form. Failure to sign the Bid Form may disqualify the Bid.
- D. Owner-approved erasures, interlineations or other corrections shall be authenticated by affixing in the margin, immediately opposite the correction, the handwritten signature of each person executing the Bid. Failure to authenticate changes may disqualify the Bid.

- E. The Owner will review the Bids to determine that they meet the specifications set for the Work in the Bid Documents. The Owner may disqualify any Bids that deviate from the requirements of this Solicitation, and those that include unapproved exceptions, amendments, or erasures.
- F. Failure to complete and submit all additional forms and documentation required in the Bid Documents to accompany the Bid Form may disqualify the Bid.

1.1.13 Modification or Withdrawal of Bids

A. The Bidder may modify or withdraw its Bid at any time prior to the advertised Bid Opening by giving written notice to the City of Bowling Green, 104 East Main Street, Bowling Green, Florida 33834. The Owner shall not accept any modifications to Bids after the advertised Bid Opening. The Bidder shall not withdraw its Bid for a period of 120 calendar days following the advertised Bid Opening.

1.1.14 Submitting the Bid Documents

- A. The Bidder shall submit its Sealed Bid in response to this Solicitation no later than the Bid Due Date and Time stated in the Invitation for Bid, or as may be subsequently amended via Addenda. The Bid shall be sealed and the envelope clearly marked with the title stated in the Invitation for Bid and the Bidder's name and address. The Sealed Bid may be enclosed in another mail or courier service package.
- B. The Bidder shall submit one (1) original Bid and two (2) duplicates of the original Bid.
- C. All Bids must be received at the location and by the date and time stated in the Invitation for Bid, or as may be subsequently amended via Addenda. The Bids from all Bidders will be publicly read at the date and time advertised for the Bid Opening. Bids arriving after the advertised Bid Opening date and time and/or at an incorrect location will be returned to the Bidder unopened. Reliance upon third-party courier or delivery service is at the Bidder's risk.
- D. All information marked by the Owner or the Bidder as "Confidential Information" that is included in the Solicitation or that is submitted by the Bidder as part of its Bid shall be handled in accordance with the terms and conditions stated in DIVISION 3: TERMS AND CONDITIONS.

1.1.15 Opening of Bids

- A. The Owner will open Bids at the date, time and location stated in the Invitation for Bid, or as may be subsequently amended via Addenda. At the Bid Opening, the Owner will publicly open and read each Bid that was received prior to the advertised deadline for bid submissions, except those that have been properly withdrawn.
- B. The Owner has the right to waive any irregularities or informalities in the Bids.

C. Copies of all Bids will be available for public inspection ten (10) business days after the Bid Opening date. Bidders may review opened Bids by contacting the designated Owner Representative to arrange a mutually convenient time for such review at the Owner's offices.

1.1.16 Calculation of Bid Price

- A. The Owner will use the Bidder's base bid when making price comparisons for Award purposes.
- B. The Owner will consider alternate Bids only if the Bidder submits a base Bid in accordance with the Bid Documents. The Owner will review alternates on the Bid Form and will reject or accept at the Owner's sole discretion.

1.1.17 Award

A. The Owner will Award the Contract to the lowest, responsive and responsible Bidder whose Bid meets or exceeds specifications, in accordance with the Contract Documents. The Owner reserves the right to reject any/all Bids, in whole or in part, as deemed to be in the Owner's best interest.

1.1.18 Notice of Award

- A. The Owner intends to Award one Contract for as many items as possible to achieve maximum benefit from this Contract. The Owner may Award more than one Contract, based on certain groupings of items, which the Owner may revise or reorganize, or the Owner may exclude line items if in its best interest. In the event the Owner makes an award as a result of this Solicitation, the Owner will issue a Notice of Award, in writing and signed by an authorized Owner's Representative as notice to the Bidder that the Owner has deemed it the successful Bidder.
- B. The Notice of Award will be accompanied by relevant Contract Documents for execution. Unless expressly waived by the Owner, the Successful Bidder shall execute a Contract for the Work in a form acceptable to the Owner within the timeframe stated on the Notice of Award. If the Bidder fails to execute the Contract Agreement form or associated documents, or to obtain the necessary bonds, licenses or insurances as required, or if it fails to act on an Owner-issued Purchase Order ("PO"), the Owner may cancel the Award with no further liability to the Bidder, retain the Bid Security, and Award to the next lowest responsive and responsible Bidder.
- C. Upon receipt of the completed documents, the Owner will execute the Contract Documents and issue the Contractor one fully executed original copy. No other Owner action shall constitute acceptance of the Bid.

1.1.19 Notice to Proceed

- A. Upon receipt of the executed Contract, the required Payment Bond, Performance Bond, and compliant Certificate of Insurance, the Owner will issue a Notice to Proceed in writing and signed by an authorized Owner's Representative as authorization for the Contractor to proceed with the Work, unless otherwise stated in the Contract.
- B. In the event that the Owner intends to authorize the Successful Bidder to proceed with Administrative Work only, or with only a portion of the Work, then the Owner shall state the specific limitations of such authorization in a written notice, and the Owner will issue a separate Notice to Proceed to authorize the Contractor to begin Field Work, when applicable, or to perform the remainder of the Work, or any portion thereof. The Contractor shall ensure that it is prepared to begin Field Work upon receipt of the Notice to Proceed. Any Work performed outside of this partial authorization shall be at the Contractor's risk and the Owner shall have no obligation to pay for such Work.

1.1.20 Certification and Representations of the Bidder

- A. By signing and submitting a Bid, the Bidder certifies and represents as follows:
 - 1. That it has carefully examined all available records and conditions, including sites if applicable, and the requirements and specifications of these Bid Documents, including but not limited to all sample Contract Documents, Technical Specifications, Drawings, Exhibits and Attachments thereto, prior to submitting its Bid.
 - 2. That every aspect of its submitted Bid, including the Bid Price and the detailed schedule for the execution of the Work, are based on its own knowledge and judgment of the conditions and hazards involved, and not upon any representation of the Owner. The Owner assumes no responsibility for any understanding or representation made by any of the Bidder's representatives during or prior to execution of the Contract unless such understandings or representations are expressly stated in the Contract and the Contract expressly provides that the Owner assumes the responsibility.
 - 3. That the individual signing the bid is a duly authorized agent or officer of the submitting firm. Bids submitted by a corporation must be executed in the corporate name by the President or a Vice President. If an individual other than the President or a Vice President signs the bid, satisfactory evidence of authority to sign must be submitted with the bid. If the bid is submitted by a partnership, the bid must be signed by a partner whose title must appear under the signature. If an individual other than a partner signs the bid, satisfactory evidence of authority to sign must be submitted with the bid. The corporation or partnership must be in active status at the Florida Division of Corporations at the time of submission of the Bid.
 - 4. That the submitting firm maintains in active status any and all licenses, permits, certifications, insurance, bonds and other credentials including not limited to contractor's license and business registration tax necessary to perform the Work.

The Bidder also certifies that, upon the prospect of any change in the status of applicable licenses, permits, certifications, insurances, bonds or other credentials, the Bidder shall immediately notify the Owner of any change.

5. That it has read, understands, and will comply with the Article 1.1.22 of this section entitled "Ethics."

1.1.21 Conflict of Interest

A. Any Bidder bidding the construction phase of a project cannot at the time of Bid submittal, be affiliated with or have any direct or indirect ownership interest in the architect/engineer ("Designer') of record. The Bidder will also be prohibited from bidding if the Designer has any direct or indirect ownership interest in the Bidder. Should the Owner erroneously award a contract in violation of this policy, the Owner may terminate the contract at any time with no liability to Contractor, and Contractor shall be liable to the Owner for all damages, including but not limited to the costs to rebid the Project. The purpose of this policy is to encourage open, fair and competitive bidding and to eliminate any actual or perceived advantage that one bidder may have over another. In addition to this policy, Design Build projects are governed by the provisions of Florida Statutes, Section 287.055(9)(b).

1.1.22 Ethics

- A. By signing the Bid Form, the Bidder certifies this Bid is made without any previous understanding, agreement or connection with any other person, firm, or corporation submitting a Bid for the same Work other than as a Subcontractor or supplier, and that this Bid is made without outside control, collusion, fraud, or other illegal or unethical actions. The Bidder shall comply with all Owner ordinances, policies and procedures regarding business ethics.
- B. The Bidder shall submit only one Bid in response to this Solicitation. If the Owner has reasonable cause to believe the Bidder has submitted more than one Bid for the same Work, other than as a Subcontractor or Supplier, the Owner may disqualify the Bid and may pursue debarment actions.
- C. The Bidder shall disclose the name(s) of any public officials who have any financial position, directly or indirectly, with this Bid by submitting such information with its Bid. Failure to do so will disqualify the Bid. If the Owner has reason to believe that collusion exists among the Bidders, the Owner will reject any and all Bids from the suspected Bidders and may proceed to debar the Bidder(s) from future Work.
- D. In accordance with Florida Statutes, Section 287.133, the Owner will reject Bids from any persons or affiliates convicted of a public entity crime as listed on the Convicted Vendors list maintained by the Florida Department of Management Services. The Owner shall not make an Award to any officer, director, executive, partner, shareholder, employee, member, or agent active in management of the Bidder listed on the

Convicted Vendor list for any transaction exceeding \$10,000 for a period of thirty-six (36) months from the date of being placed on the Convicted Vendor list.

E. If the Bidder violates any requirement of this Section, the Bid may be rejected and the Owner may debar the offending companies and persons from future Work with the Owner.

1.1.23 Ex Parte Communication

- A. Ex Parte Communication is strictly prohibited. Failure to adhere to this policy will disqualify the noncompliant Bidder's Bid. The Owner's policy on Ex Parte Communication will not prohibit the following:
 - 1. Meetings called or requested by the Owner and attended by the Bidders for the purpose of discussing this Solicitation, evaluation, or selection process including, but not limited to, substantive aspects of the Solicitation. Such meetings may include, but are not limited to, Pre-Bid meetings, site visits to the Owner's or the Bidders' facilities, interviews/negotiation sessions as part of the selection process, and other presentations by the Bidders, all of which are requested by the Owner and will be limited to topics specified by the Owner.
 - 2. The addressing of the Owner at public meetings advertised and conducted pursuant to Florida Statutes, Section 286.011.
 - 3. The filing of a written protest to any proposed Award to be made pursuant to this Solicitation, evaluation and selection process, which filing and prosecution shall give notice to all Bidders. Protest proceedings shall be limited to open public meetings advertised and conducted pursuant to Florida Statutes, Section 286.011 with no Ex Parte Communication outside those meetings.
 - 4. Communications between the Owner representatives and the Bidder for routine matters arising from procurements other than this Solicitation.
 - 5. Written communication between potential Bidders and the Engineer provided copies of written communications are provided to all Bidders.

1.1.24 Prohibition Against Contingent Fees

A. The Bidder warrants that it has not employed or retained any company or person, other than a bona fide employee working for the Bidder, to solicit or secure a contract with the Owner, and that it has not paid or agreed to pay any person, company, corporation, individual or firm, other than a bona fide employee working solely for the Bidder, any fee, commission, percentage, gift, or any other consideration, contingent upon or resulting from the Award or making of the Contract. For the breach or violation of these provisions, the Owner shall have the right to disqualify the Bid and pursue debarment or terminate the Contract without liability and at its discretion, to deduct from the

Contract Price, or otherwise recover, the full amount of such fee, commission, percentage, gift or consideration.

1.1.25 Protest of Bid and Award Process

- A. Bidders shall file any protests regarding this Solicitation in writing, and shall submit such to the Owner's Procurement Representative noted on the Solicitation no later than three (3) business days following the event giving rise to the protest. Failure to submit a written protest within the timeframe herein will constitute a waiver of the right to pursue a protest.
- B. The written protest shall include at minimum the following information:
 - 1. Project or bid number of the solicitation protested;
 - 2. Title of solicitation protested;
 - 3. Specific identification of issue(s) protested; and
 - 4. Requested action for correction.
- C. The Owner's Procurement Representative will review the submitted information to ensure completeness and submit the issue to a committee comprised of the Owner's designated Project Manager for the Work, the City Manager and the Owner's Legal Counsel ("Protest Committee").
- D. The Protest Committee will review the protest and may request a presentation by the Bidder of the protested issue. The Protest Committee will issue a written decision within fourteen (14) calendar days of receipt of the written protest.

1.1.26 Owner's Reservations

- A. The Bid Documents provide potential Bidders with information to enable the submission of written offers. The receipt of Bid Documents is not a contractual offer or commitment by the Owner to purchase products or services.
- B. Bids and Bid Prices shall be warranted for a period of one-hundred twenty (120) days following the opening of Bids, and no Bid may be withdrawn during such time period.
- C. The Owner reserves the right to reject any or all Bids, or any part thereof, and/or to waive irregularities or informalities if such action is in its best interest. The Owner may reject any Bids that it deems incomplete, obscure or irregular including, but not limited to, Bids that omit a price on any one or more items for which prices are required, Bids that omit Unit Prices if Unit Prices are required, Bids for which the Owner determines that the Bid is unbalanced, Bids that offer Equal Items when the option to do so has not been stated, Bids that fail to include a bid bond, where one is required, and Bids from

Bidders who have previously failed to satisfactorily complete Contracts of any nature for the Owner.

- D. The Owner reserves the right to cancel, postpone, modify, reissue and amend this Solicitation at its discretion. The Owner reserves the right to cancel or change the date and time of the bid opening at any time prior to the advertised time.
- E. The Owner may Award the Contract in whole or in part. In such cases whenever the Owner exercises any of these reservations, the Owner will make a reasonable effort to notify, in writing, all parties to whom Bid Documents were issued. The Owner may award multiple or split Contracts if it is deemed to be in the Owner's best interest.

1.1.27 Documents and Forms Included in the Bid Documents

A. The reference to and/or inclusion of the Contract Documents and other Contract related forms in the Bid Documents shall in no way be construed as an Award of the Work, or any portion thereof, or as an intention to award the Work. The Owner reserves the right to alter, amend or delete any portion of these forms, to exclude any form, or to require additional forms not listed herein prior to execution of the Contract Documents.

1.1.28 State-Funded Agreement Notes and Requirements

- A. All contractors and subcontractors shall comply with all terms and conditions of the State-Funded Agreement and all federal, state, and local laws and regulations applicable to this Project. (State-Funded Grant Agreement, Section 8.c.)
- B. Records retention for a minimum of 5 years from date of final payment is required. (State-Funded Grant Agreement, Section 12.c.)
- C. Respondents cannot be an entity or affiliate who has been placed on the Discriminatory Vendor List (State-Funded Grant Agreement, Section 13.b.)
- D. An entity or affiliate who has had its Certificate of Qualification suspended, revoked, denied or have further been determined by the Department to be a non-responsible contractor may not submit a bid or perform work for the construction or repair of a public building or public work on a contract with the Recipient (State-Funded Grant Agreement, Section 13.c.)
- E. Section 274A(e) of the Immigration and Nationality Act shall be followed (State-Funded Grant Agreement, Section 13.e.)
- F. U.S. Department of Homeland Security's E-Verify system shall be utilized (State-Funded Grant Agreement, Section 13.f.)

G. Indemnification:

"To the extent provided by law, Contractor shall indemnify, defend, and hold harmless the City of Bowling Green and the State of Florida, Department of Transportation, including the Department's officers, agents, and employees, against any actions, claims, or damages arising out of, relating to, or resulting from negligent or wrongful act(s) of Contractor, or any of its officers, agents, or employees, acting within the scope of their office or employment, in connection with the rights granted to or exercised by Contractor hereunder, to the extent and within the limitations of Section 768.28, Florida Statutes.

The foregoing indemnification shall not constitute a waiver of sovereign immunity beyond the limits set forth in Florida Statutes, Section 768.28. Nor shall the same be construed to constitute agreement by Contractor to indemnify City of Bowling Green for the negligent acts or omissions of City of Bowling Green, its officers, agents, or employees, or third parties. Nor shall the same be construed to constitute agreement by Contractor to indemnify the Department for the negligent acts or omissions of the Department, its officers, agents, or employees, or third parties. This indemnification shall survive the termination of this Agreement."

H. Responder agrees to comply with Section 20.055(5), Florida Statutes (Inspector General Cooperation) (State-Funded Grant Agreement, Section 15.h.)

SECTION 1.2: REQUIRED FORMS TO SUBMIT WITH BID

1.2.1 Bid Forms

- A. To submit a Bid in response to this Solicitation, all of the following forms must be completed and submitted as part of the Bid. Copies of the forms are contained in the Bid Documents. Additional copies may be requested by contacting the Owner.
 - 1. Bid Form (form included in DIVISION 5: FORMS)
 - 2. Bid Security (form included in DIVISION 5: FORMS)
 - 3. Bidder's Qualifications and supporting information (form included in DIVISION 5: FORMS)
 - 4. Bidder's Statement of Disputes, Litigation, Arbitration, and Surety Completion, Last Three (3) Years (form included in DIVISION 5: FORMS)
 - 5. Drug-Free Workplace Certificate (form included in DIVISION 5: FORMS)
 - 6. Florida Trench Safety Act Acknowledgement (form included in DIVISION 5: FORMS)
 - 7. Non-Collusion Affidavit (form included in DIVISION 5: FORMS)
 - 8. Public Entity Crimes Statement (form included in DIVISION 5: FORMS)

- 9. Tabulation of Subcontractors and Suppliers (form included in DIVISION 5: FORMS)
- 10. Evidence of authority to do business in the State of the Project; or a written covenant to obtain such license within the time for acceptance of Bids;

Contractor's License No.:	
Contractor's License No	

[END OF SECTION]

DIVISION 2: AGREEMENT

This Agreement is made and entered	into on		("Effect	ive	Date"),	by	and
between THE CITY OF BOWLING GRE	EN, a Florida municipalit	y locate	d at 104 E	ast N	1ain Stree	t, Bov	wling
Green, Florida 33834 ("Owner") and_		, a	[STATE	OF	INCORP	ORAT	ION]
corporation with principal offices at			-		[ADDF	RESS	OF
CONTRACTOR] ("Contractor").							
Whereas, the Owner issued an Invita "City of Bowling Green Roadway Imp		ated Bid	Documer	its for	the Wor	k title	a
Whereas, the Contractor submitted a	Bid in response to such \	Work, w	hich was o	pene	ed and acc	cepted	d bv
Owner on	•	,		•		•	,
Whereas, the Owner has determined Bid for the Work and has issued the O					e and res	sponsi	ble

Therefore, the Owner and the Contractor, in consideration of the mutual covenants hereinafter set forth, agree as follows:

SECTION 2.1: WORK

2.1.1 Completion of Work

- A. Contractor shall complete all Work as specified or indicated in the Contract Documents. The principal features of the Work are described as:
 - 1. Milling and resurfacing of approximately 840-ft of existing asphalt approximately 17-ft in width.
 - 2. Replacement of existing signage and striping.

SECTION 2.2: CONTRACT PRICE

2.2.1 Contract Price

A. The Contractor shall perform the work for a not-to-exceed Contract Price of ______[CONTRACT PRICE], or as may be amended in accordance with the Contract Documents, subject to the availability of lawfully appropriated funds.

2.2.2 Quantities

A. The Contract Price includes the Contractor's Bid Price. For items of the Work that are Unit Price, the prices shown on the Bid Form shall be used in determining the final Contract Price. As stated in the Bid Documents, estimated quantities provided on the bid Form by the Owner are not guaranteed quantities. Actual quantities used in the Work may vary.

B. Regularly during the Work, and upon the Owner's review of the Final Application for Payment, the Owner, or its designated representative, will determine actual quantities used in the Work, and the Owner may issue a Change Order if required to alter the Contract Price.

SECTION 2.3: CONTRACT TIME

2.3.1 Time of the Essence

A. All time limits for Milestones, if any, Substantial Completion, and Final Completion and readiness for final payment as stated in the Contract Documents are of the essence.

2.3.2 Days to Achieve Substantial Completion and Final Payment

A. The Work will be required to have reached Substantial Completion within **180** calendar days after the issuance of the Notice to Proceed, and completed and ready for final payment in accordance with the Contract Documents within **240** calendar days after the date when the Contract Time commences to run. The Contract Time will be extended **30** calendar days for each Additive Alternative accepted by the Owner.

SECTION 2.4: CONTRACT ROLES AND RESPONSIBILITIES

The Owner and the Contractor may alter or amend the individuals named herein, or name additional representatives, by promptly providing written notice to the other party of anychanges.

The following individuals shall have the responsibilities set forth in the Contract Documents for their respective roles:

2.4.1 Contract Administrator:

Name: William Lawrence, City Manager

Agency/Company: City of Bowling Green

104 East Main Street Bowling Green, FL 33834

(863) 375-2255

2.4.2 Project Engineer:

Name: Elisa T. Harden, PE

Agency/Company: Kimley-Horn and Associates, Inc.

116 South Kentucky Avenue

Lakeland, FL 33801 (863) 226-6862

2.4.3 Grant Administrator:

Name: [TO BE COMPLETED BY OWNER PRIOR TO EXECUTION]

Agency/Company: [TO BE COMPLETED BY OWNER PRIOR TO EXECUTION]

2.4.4 Contractor's Representative:

Name: [TO BE COMPLETED BY OWNER PRIOR TO EXECUTION]

Agency/Company: [TO BE COMPLETED BY OWNER PRIOR TO EXECUTION]

2.4.5 Contractor's Supervisor:

Name: [TO BE COMPLETED BY OWNER PRIOR TO EXECUTION]

Agency/Company: [TO BE COMPLETED BY OWNER PRIOR TO EXECUTION]

SECTION 2.5: CONTRACT DOCUMENTS

2.5.1 Contents

- A. The following shall comprise the Contract Documents. The Owner shall generally consider this order of precedence in resolving any conflicts, errors or discrepancies:
 - 1. Executed Amendments, Change Orders and Work Change Directives
 - 2. This executed Agreement
 - 3. Addenda to the Bid Documents
 - 4. Supplemental Conditions
 - 5. Terms and Conditions, including the following Exhibits and Attachments thereto
 - 6. Notice of Award
 - 7. Notice to Proceed
 - 8. Payment Bond and Performance Bond
 - 9. Owner issued Purchase Orders
 - 10. Owner's Technical Specifications, Drawings, Plans, Exhibits and Attachments
 - 11. Contractor's Bid in response to the Invitation for Bid, including the Bid Form
- B. The figure dimensions on drawings shall govern over scale dimensions. Contract and detailed drawings shall govern over general drawings. The Contractor shall perform any Work that may reasonably be inferred from the Contract as being required, whether or

not it is specifically called for, at no additional cost to the Owner. Work, materials or equipment described in words that, so applied, have a well-known technical or trade meaning shall be taken as referring to such recognized standards.

C. By signing the Agreement, the Contractor represents that it has carefully examined the Contract Documents and agrees to perform the Work in accordance with the Contract Documents, as may be amended from time to time.

SECTION 2.6: NOTICES AND CORRESPONDENCE

2.6.1 Transmission Method

- A. All notices required or permitted under this Contract shall be in writing and shall be deemed received if sent by one of the following means: upon receipt if delivered by hand; one day after being sent by an express courier with a reliable system for tracking delivery; three days after being sent by certified or registered first class mail, postage prepaid and return receipt requested; or upon confirmed facsimile transmission provided that a copy shall be sent by another of the foregoing means.
- B. All notices shall be addressed by a party to the other party as indicated below. Either party may change its address from time to time upon prior written notice to the other specifying the effective date of the new address.

Owner

Attention: William Lawrence, City Manager

Address: City of Bowling Green

104 East Main Street Bowling Green, FL 33834

Contractor

Attention: [TO BE COMPLETED BY OWNER PRIOR TO EXECUTION]
Address: [TO BE COMPLETED BY OWNER PRIOR TO EXECUTION]

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, OWNER and CONTRACTOR have signed this Agreement in triplicate on the Effective Date first stated above.

OWNER	CONTRACTOR
Ву	Ву
Date	Date
(Corporate Seal)	(Corporate Seal)
Attest	Attest
	[END OF SECTION]

DIVISION 3: TERMS AND CONDITIONS

SECTION 3.1: DEFINED TERMS

3.1.1 Definitions

- A. Words and terms defined in this section shall have the same meaning throughout all parts of the Contract Documents. Where intended to convey the meaning consistent with that set forth in its definition, a defined word or term is marked by initial capitalization. DIVISION 6: TECHNICAL SPECIFICATIONS may define additional words and terms where necessary to clarify the Work. Unless otherwise stated in the Contract Documents, definitions set forth in DIVISION 6: TECHNICAL SPECIFICATIONS shall apply only within DIVISION 6: TECHNICAL SPECIFICATIONS.
 - 1. <u>Addendum/Addenda:</u> A change or changes to the Solicitation issued in writing by the Owner and incorporated into the Solicitation and Contract Documents.
 - 2. Administrative Work: Actions primarily performed in an office environment and associated with preparing to perform or administer the Work including, but not limited to, preparing Work schedules, obtaining bonds, executing Contracts, securing resources and other actions specified in the Bid Documents, or otherwise prudent to ensure a timely, safe and otherwise compliant start and performance of Field Work. Administrative Work is not performed at the WorkLocation.
 - 3. <u>Application for Payment:</u> A document seeking payment to Contractor from Owner for all or a portion of the Work, in accordance with the Contract Documents, and including at a minimum the following items: the Contractor name and address, a description of the product(s) or service(s) rendered, a valid Owner PO number, the amount payable, the payee name and address, any associated forms and any other supporting documentation required by the Contract Documents.
 - 4. <u>Approved Schedule:</u> The approved progress schedule for performance of the Work approved by the Owner or the Owner's Representative, as most recently amended.
 - 5. <u>Bid Documents/Bidding Documents:</u> The documents titled Instructions to Bidders, the Invitation for Bid, the Bid Form, all sample forms to be included in the Bidder's Bid, the sample Contract Documents, including Technical Specifications and forms included to provide the Bidder with a complete understanding of the Work requirements, excluding any technical data or test results that are provided as additional information regarding Work Location conditions.
 - 6. <u>Bid or Proposal:</u> The document, including all forms and information, describing the Bidder's offer and submitted in response to this Invitation for Bids. Bid and Proposal shall be considered synonymous for the purpose of this Contract.
 - 7. <u>Bid Price:</u> The total dollar amount of the Bidder's offer including, but not limited to, all labor, materials, overheads, profits, other expense, and any and all other cost items incurred by the Bidder in successfully performing the Work in accordance with the Contract Documents.

- 8. Bidder: The respondent to this Solicitation.
- 9. <u>Bond:</u> A financial mechanism to guarantee a contractual obligation.
- 10. <u>Change Order:</u> A written order issued by the Owner after execution of the Contract to the Contractor, as may be recommended by the Engineer, signed by the Owner and authorizing an addition, deletion, or revision of the Work, or an adjustment in the Contract Price or the Contract Time. An executed Change Order resolves all issues related to price and time for the work included in the Change Order.
- 11. <u>Contract:</u> The Agreement for the Work executed by the Owner and Contractor as included in these Contract Documents.
- 12. <u>Contract Administrator</u>: The individual assigned by Owner, who is an employee of the Owner, to have authority over the Contract, including the authority to negotiate all elements of the Contract with the Contractor, authorize Change Orders within the maximum amount awarded, terminate the Contract, seek remedies for nonperformance including termination, and otherwise act on behalf of the Owner in all matters regarding the Contract. The Contract Administrator may authorize an Engineer and/or other Owner's Representative in writing to make minor changes to Field Work with the intent of preventing Work disruption.
- 13. <u>Contract Documents:</u> Contract Documents means the documents set forth in the executed Agreement form.
- 14. <u>Contract Price:</u> The total amount payable to the Contractor under the Contract, as set forth in the Agreement form, as most recently amended.
- 15. <u>Contract Time:</u> The number of calendar days or the period of time from when the written Notice to Proceed is issued to the Contractor to the date Contractor has agreed to complete the Work, as stated in the Agreement form, as most recently amended.
- 16. <u>Contractor:</u> The legal person, firm, corporation or any other entity or business relationship with whom the Owner has executed the Contract. Where the word "Contractor" is used it shall also include permitted successors and assigns.
- 17. <u>Contractor Representative:</u> The individual responsible for representing the Contractor in all activities concerning the fulfillment and administration of the Contract.
- 18. <u>Contractor Supervisor:</u> The individual employed or contracted by the Contractor to manage the Work on a day-to-day basis and ensure the Work is performed according to the Contract. The Contractor Supervisor may be authorized by the Contractor Representative to act on Contract matters. Such authorization shall be in writing and delivered to the Engineer and shall clearly state the limitations of any such authorization. In the event that the Contractor Supervisor and the Contractor

Representative is the same person, the Contractor shall notify the Engineer of such situation.

- 19. <u>Defect or Defective:</u> When used to modify the "Work," whether in lowercase or uppercase, Work that fails to meet the requirements of any required test, inspection or approval, and any Work that meets the requirements of any test or approval, but nevertheless does not meet the requirements of the Contract Documents.
- 20. <u>Engineer:</u> The individual assigned by the Owner (either an employee or a third party), who is a licensed professional engineer in the State of Florida, to provide engineering, design review, and/or construction management including, but not limited to, overseeing and resolving engineering/design issues with the Engineer for the Work, and conveying the Owner's instructions to the Contractor.

The Engineer's authority includes interpreting the technical portion of the Contract Documents, deciding on matters relating to the execution and progress of the Work and evaluating the Contractor's performance. The Engineer may stop the Work when deemed necessary by the Owner. The Engineer will receive and adjudicate any claim of ambiguity or error in the technical portion of the Contract Documents and shall reduce any determination to writing, and shall make a recommendation to the Owner. The Engineer is not a party to the Contract. The Engineer has no authority to approve changes to the Contract Price or Contract Time, or to commit the Owner to any expenditure of money except as expressly designated in writing by the Contract Administrator.

- 21. Environmental Requirements: All laws, ordinances, statutes, codes, rules, regulations, agreements, judgments, orders, and decrees, now or hereafter enacted, promulgated, or amended, of the United States, the states, the counties, the cities, or any other political subdivisions in which the Work Location is located, and any other political subdivision, agency or instrumentality exercising jurisdiction over the Owner, the Work Location, or the use of the Work Location, relating to pollution, the protection or regulation of human health, natural resources, or the environment, or the emission, discharge, release or threatened release of pollutants, contaminants, chemicals, or industrial, toxic or hazardous substances or waste or Hazardous Materials (as defined in this Contract) into the environment (including, without limitation, ambient air, surface water, ground water or land or soil).
- 22. <u>Equal Item:</u> Item a Bidder chooses to offer in place of offering the brand name or manufacturer's item specified on the Bid Document when the Bid Document clearly states that the Bidder may offer such an item.
- 23. <u>Ex Parte Communication:</u> Any communication pertaining to this Solicitation between a Bidder or protester (or their respective employees, agents, or representatives, or someone otherwise acting on behalf of Bidder) and the Owner (its members, employees, agents, and representatives other than the designated

Owner representatives in the Solicitation), during the Solicitation period through the Contract Award, and/or from the initiation of a protest through Contract Award or through protest resolution.

- 24. <u>Field Order:</u> An order given by the Owner's Representative, in writing or orally, to direct progress of the Work. A Field Order may authorize only minor variations to the Work as needed to ensure progress, and does not authorize the Contractor to incur additional costs, change the Contract Price or Contract Time.
- 25. <u>Field Work:</u> Actions associated with meeting the requirements of the Contract other than Administrative Work. Field Work is primarily performed at the WorkLocation.
- 26. <u>Final Acceptance</u>: The Owner's written notice to the Contractor that all Work as specified in the Contract has been completed to the Owner's satisfaction. Approval or recognition of the Contractor meeting a milestone or interim step does not constitute Final Acceptance of the Work. Final Acceptance is only applicable to the entirety of Work as specified in the Contract. Final Acceptance does not in any way limit the Owner's rights under the Contract or applicable laws, rules and regulations.
- 27. <u>Final Completion:</u> The point in time after which the Owner has accepted the Work, in accordance with DIVISION 3: TERMS AND CONDITIONS and the Contractor has fulfilled all requirements of the Contract Documents.
- 28. Hazardous Materials: Any substance which is or contains (i) any "hazardous substance" as now or hereafter defined in the Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation, and Liability Act of 1980, as amended (42 U.S.C. '9601 et seq.) ("CERCLA") or any regulations promulgated under or pursuant to CERCLA; (ii) any "hazardous waste" as now or hereafter defined in the Resource Conservation and Recovery Act (42 U.S.C. '6901 et. seq.) ("RCRA") or regulations promulgated under or pursuant to RCRA; (iii) any substance regulated by the Toxic Substances Control Act (15 U.S.C. '2601 et seq.); (iv) gasoline, diesel fuel, or other petroleum hydrocarbons; (v) asbestos and asbestos containing materials, in any form, whether friable or non-friable; (vi) polychlorinated biphenyls; (vii) radon gas; and (viii) any additional substances or materials which are now or hereafter classified or considered to be hazardous or toxic under Environmental Requirements (as hereinafter defined) or the common law, or any other applicable laws relating to the Licensed Property. Hazardous Materials shall include, without limitation, any substance, the presence of which on the Licensed Property, (A) requires reporting, investigation or remediation under Environmental Requirements; (B) causes or threatens to cause a nuisance on the Licensed Property or adjacent property or poses or threatens to pose a hazard to the health or safety of persons on the Licensed Property or adjacent property; or (C) which, if it emanated or migrated from the Licensed Property, could constitute a trespass.
- 29. <u>Holidays:</u> The following days: New Year's Day, Good Friday, Memorial Day, Independence Day, Labor Day, Veterans Day, Thanksgiving Day, Day after Thanksgiving, Christmas Eve, and Christmas Day.

- 30. <u>Instructions to Bidders:</u> The division of the Bid Documents labeled Instructions to Bidders.
- 31. Inspector: The individual(s) or company(ies) designated by the Contract Administrator to inspect and test the Contractor's performance and Contract compliance including materials, workmanship, safety, environmental compliance, project controls, administration and accounting, and other aspects of Contract compliance. The Inspector has no authority to approve changes to the Work, the Contract Price or Contract Time, or to commit the Owner to any expenditure of money except as expressly designated in writing by the Contract Administrator. The Inspector may or may not be the same individual as the Engineer. The Contract Administrator may give the Engineer authority to appoint an Inspector.
- 32. <u>Notice of Award:</u> The issuance of a Notice of Award by the Owner to the successful Bidder notifying the Contractor that they have been authorized by the Owner to perform the work. A Notice of Award shall not be considered a Notice to Proceed.
- 33. <u>Notice to Proceed:</u> The written notice duly authorized and delivered by the Owner that authorizes the Contractor to begin Field Work. When indicated by the Owner, a PO may also serve as a Notice to Proceed.
- 34. Owner: The City of Bowling Green.
- 35. Owner's Representative: The Engineer, Inspector, and other persons designated by the Contract Administrator as the Owner's Representative acting in a capacity related to the Work or Contract under the authority of the Contract Administrator.
- 36. Overtime: Work approved in writing by the Contract Administrator that is required to be performed beyond an employee's scheduled workday or work week, including Work performed on Holidays.
- 37. <u>Payment Bond:</u> The statutory Performance Bond contemplated by Section 255.05, Florida Statutes.
- 38. <u>Performance Bond:</u> The statutory Payment Bond contemplated by Section 255.05, Florida Statutes.
- 39. <u>Preconstruction Meeting</u>: A meeting conducted after Award and prior to the start of any Field Work between the Owner and the Contractor. The purpose of the meeting may include, but is not limited to orientation, schedule, certification and permitting, and other preparatory or Work execution details.
- 40. <u>Purchase Order (PO):</u> A Work authorization document issued by the Owner with the words "Purchase Order" clearly marked across the top, a PO number used for reference shown on the front, a description of the Work or a listing of the applicable Contract Documents, an authorized Owner signature and stating the amount of lawfully authorized funds.

- 41. <u>Quality Assurance:</u> Actions that the Owner takes to assess the Contractor's performance under the Contract.
- 42. <u>Quality Control:</u> Actions that the Contractor takes to ensure it successfully completes the Work in full accordance with the Contract Documents.
- 43. <u>Resident Project Representative (RPR):</u> An employee or agent of the Engineer at the Work Location, acting as directed by and under the Engineer. The RPR's authority for this Contract is set forth in DIVISION 3: TERMS AND CONDITIONS.
- 44. Shop Drawings: Drawings, electronic and hard copy, that detail the fabrication, erection, layout and setting drawings; manufacturer's standard drawings; schedules; descriptive literature, catalogs and brochures; performance and test data; wiring and control diagrams; all other drawings and descriptive data pertaining to materials, equipment, piping, duct and conduit systems, and method of construction as may be required to show the Engineer that the proposed materials, equipment or systems and the position thereof are in compliance with the requirements of the Contract Documents.
- 45. Site: The Work Location.
- 46. <u>Solicitation:</u> The Invitation for Bids (which may be electronic) issued by the Owner, or by a third-party on behalf of the Owner, to solicit Bids or Proposals from Bidders that includes the Bid Documents.
- 47. Specifications: The provisions contained in the Technical Specifications.
- 48. <u>Subcontractor:</u> A provider of services or materials performing Work under contract for the Contractor.
- 49. <u>Substantial Completion:</u> The time when the Owner determines that the Work (or a specified part thereof) is sufficiently complete to be utilized for the purposes for which it is intended or ready for the Owner or other contractors to perform subsequent portions of the Work as stated in the Contract Documents. Recognition of the Work as Substantially Complete, as evidenced by issuance of a Certificate of Substantial Completion, does not represent the Owner's Final Acceptance of the Work.
- 50. <u>Term:</u> The period of time during which the Contract is in force, from formal Notice of Award to Final Completion, or termination. In some cases, and as expressly stated, some of the Contract requirements may extend beyond the Term of the Contract.
- 51. <u>Technical Specifications:</u> The division of the Contract Documents collectively labeled as the Technical Specifications, including any exhibits and attachments thereto. Technical Specifications have been prepared by the Owner or a third-party.

- 52. <u>Unit Prices:</u> The Bidder's charges, rounded to the nearest cent, to the Owner for the performance of each respective unit of Work as defined on the Bid Form for all items required for successfully performing the Work through Final Acceptance.
- 53. <u>Work:</u> Work includes the scope set forth in the Contract Documents together with all other additional necessities that are not specifically recited in the Contract, but can be reasonably inferred as necessary to complete all obligations and fully satisfy the intent of the Contract.
- 54. Work Change Directive: Written authorization recommended by the Engineer and signed by the Owner and issued to the Contractor after the Contract Effective Date recommending an addition, deletion or revision in the Work. A Work Change Directive shall not change the Contract Price or Contract Time, but shall be evidence that the parties expect the change ordered or documented to be incorporated into a subsequent Change Order.
- 55. <u>Work Location:</u> The place or places where the Work is performed, excluding the properties of the Contractor and/or the Subcontractor(s).

SECTION 3.2: PRELIMINARY MATTERS

3.2.1 Payment Bond and Performance Bond

- A. Within five (5) business days of receipt of Contract Documents, the Contractor shall furnish a Payment Bond and a Performance Bond in an amount equal to one-hundred percent (100%) of the amount of the Contract Price, made out to the Owner in forms and formats approved by the Owner, as security for the faithful performance of the Work of Contract, in accordance with Florida Statutes, Section 255.05. In no case shall the date on the bonds form be prior to that of the executed Contract. The surety must be authorized and licensed to transact business in Florida.
- B. A fully executed Payment Bond and Performance Bond must be recorded with the Clerk of Hardee County Court and delivered to the Owner before Work may commence. If the Contractor fails or refuses to furnish or record the required bonds, the Owner will retain the Contractor's Bid Security as liquidated damages.

3.2.2 Liquidated Damages

- A. If the Contractor fails to Substantially Complete the Work on or before the substantial completion date set forth in the Contract Documents, the Contractor shall pay the Owner the sum of \$250.00 per day for each and every calendar day, including Sundays and Holidays, starting on the contracted substantial completion date and continuing until the date that the Work is Substantially Completed.
- B. Following Substantial Completion, if the Contractor fails to complete any remaining Work within the Contract Time, the Contractor shall pay the Owner \$250.00 per day for

each and every calendar day, including Sundays and Holidays, starting on the contracted final completion date and continuing until the date that the Work is completed.

- C. The Contractor understands and agrees that said daily sum is to be paid not as a penalty, but as compensation to the Owner as fixed and reasonable liquidated damages for losses that the Owner will suffer because of such default, whether through increased administrative and engineering costs, interference with the Owner's normal operations, other tangible and intangible costs, or otherwise, which costs are otherwise impossible or impractical to measure or ascertain with any reasonable specificity.
- D. Liquidated damages may, at the Owner's sole discretion, be deducted from any monies held by the Owner that are otherwise payable to Contractor.
- E. The Contractor's responsibility for liquidated damages shall in no way relieve the Contractor of any other obligations under the Contract.

3.2.3 Preconstruction and Progress Meetings

- A. Before starting field work, a preconstruction meeting will be held to: review the work; to review the work schedule; to establish procedures for submitting items including but not limited to applications for payment, the schedule of submittals, approving the applications for payment, and making payments; and, to establish a working relationship between the Owner and the Contractor.
- B. The Preconstruction Meeting shall be attended by, but not limited to, the Owner, the Engineer, the Contractor Representative and the Contractor Supervisor. The Contract Administrator will notify the Contractor in writing of the meeting time and location at least two (2) days prior to the meeting date.
- C. Construction progress meetings will be held at a frequency determined by the Owner, but shall not be more often than once per week. Such meeting(s) shall be attended by, but not limited to, the Owner, the Engineer, and the Contractor's Supervisor.

3.2.4 Contractor Review of Project Requirements

A. The Contractor shall review the Work requirements and specifications prior to commencing Work. The Contractor shall immediately notify the Engineer in writing of any conflict with applicable law, or any error, inconsistency or omission it may discover. The Owner will promptly review the alleged conflicts, errors, inconsistencies or omissions, and issue a Change Order or Purchase Order, as appropriate if the Owner is in agreement with the alleged conflict, and issue revised specifications. Any Work the Contractor performs prior to receipt of approved Change Order or Purchase Order will be at the Contractor's sole risk and will not be reimbursed.

3.2.5 Contractor's Documents at the Work Location

- A. The Contractor shall maintain at the Work Location for the Owner one record copy of all Contract Documents in good order and marked currently to record all Addenda and changes made during the Contract Term. The Contractor shall include copies of all Change Orders, Work Change Directives, Field Orders, and other written clarifications or interpretations with these record documents. These shall be available to the Owner's Representatives and shall be delivered to the Engineer upon completion of the Work or at the request of the Engineer. The Owner and the Owner's Representatives may use such documents in reviewing the Contractor's final Application for Payment.
- B. The Contractor shall also maintain detailed records of the Work for its own files. The Contractor shall make these records available to the Owner for inspection upon request. The Contractor shall maintain such records for five years after the final completion date.

3.2.6 Contractor's Field Office

A. The Contractor shall provide its own office facilities at the Work Location, as required. Unless specifically listed herein, the Owner provides no Work Location facilities or Work Location area for the Contractor facilities of any kind such as field office and material storage. If the Contractor establishes a Work Location-based office, the Contractor shall provide and maintain adequate telephone facilities at this office during the full Term of the Contract. If the Contractor has a local business office, this office may serve as a Work Location office for this Contract, but the Contractor must maintain an operational cellular phone at the Work Location while performing Work.

3.2.7 Commercial Activities on the Work Location

A. The Contractor shall not establish any commercial activities, or issue concessions or permits of any kind to third parties to establish commercial activities on lands owned or controlled by the Owner, or within the boundaries of the Work Location. The Contractor shall not allow its employees to engage in any commercial activities on the Work Location.

3.2.8 Compliance with Referenced Specifications

A. All Work, materials, systems or operations specified by reference to standard trade specifications or to manufacturer's published specifications shall comply with the requirements of the referenced specifications, except as modified by the requirements of this Contract. The referenced specification used shall be the latest published edition that is in effect on the effective date of this Contract unless a particular edition is specified. In case of a conflict, the specifications that contain the more stringent requirements will govern.

3.2.9 Licenses

A. The Contractor shall comply with all licensing and/or certification requirements pursuant to applicable laws, rules and regulations. The Contractor shall secure all licenses as required for the performance of the Work and shall pay all fees associated with securing them. The Contractor shall produce written evidence of licenses and other certifications immediately upon request from the Owner.

3.2.10 Limitation of Accuracy of Informational Materials

- A. For all drawings, test results, inspections, and other informational materials included as part of the Contract Documents, the Contractor understands and agrees that any existing facilities shown, including underground, overhead, and surface structures, and other delineations, and any other informational items provided as part of the Contract Documents are for reference only and are not to be used by the Contractor as the only indication of Work conditions.
- B. Unless otherwise stated, the data furnished by the Owner or the Engineer to the Contractor, or by the Contractor to the Owner or the Engineer, that may be relied upon are limited to the printed copies (also known as hard copies). Files in electronic media format of text, data, graphics, or other types are furnished only for the convenience of the receiving party. Any conclusion or information obtained or derived from such electronic files will be at the user's sole risk. If there is a discrepancy between the electronic files and the hard copies, the hard copies govern.

3.2.11 Permits

- A. The Contractor shall secure, maintain, post as required, and pay for all building, plumbing, electrical, right-of-way, parking, roadway, railroad, shipping, freight, hazardous materials, and all other permits required for performance of the Work in full compliance with all applicable laws, rules and regulations. The Contractor shall perform all actions necessary to identify where permits are to be obtained and properly file for the permits.
- B. The Contractor shall comply with all conditions of permits issued for the Work, either directly or indirectly, issued by federal, state, or local governmental agencies, which are hereby incorporated as part of these Contract Documents. The Contractor shall be solely responsible for resolving any issues and bearing all expenses including any damages suffered by the Owner that result from a finding of noncompliance during performance of the Work by any of the respective regulatory agencies including, but not limited to, all costs for delays, litigation, fines, fees of any kind, and other costs.

3.2.12 Work Information

A. In the event the Contractor requires additional information regarding the scope, technical specifications, Work Locations, personnel requirements, or other information pertinent to the Work or Contract, the Contractor shall request such information or

clarifications from the Engineer in writing. Within the bounds of the Engineer's authority, the Engineer may provide the requested information to the Contractor.

3.2.13 Engineer's RPR Status During Construction

- A. The RPR shall have the responsibilities set forth herein for this Contract.
- B. Review the progress schedule, schedule of Shop Drawings, and Sample Submittals and Schedule of Values prepared by the Contractor and consult with the Engineer concerning acceptability.
- C. Attend conferences and meetings with the Contractor, such as preconstruction conferences, progress meetings, job conferences and other project-related meetings, and prepare and circulate copies of minutes thereof.
- D. Serve as the Engineer's liaison with the Contractor, working principally through the Contractor's authorized representative, assist in providing information regarding the intent of the Contract Documents. Assist the Engineer in serving as the Owner's liaison with the Contractor when the Contractor's operations affect the Owner's on-site operations. Assist in obtaining additional details or information from the Owner, when required for proper execution of the Work.
- E. Report to the Engineer when clarifications and interpretations of the Contract Documents are needed and transmit to the Contractor clarifications and interpretations issued by the Engineer.
- F. Record the date of receipt of Samples and approved Shop Drawings. Receive Samples which are furnished at the Site by the Contractor. Notify the Engineer of availability of Samples for examination. Notify the Engineer and the Owner if work is begun without reviewed shop drawings.
- G. Consider and evaluate the Contractor's suggestions for modifications in the Drawings or Specifications and report such suggestions together with RPR's recommendations to the Engineer. Transmit in writing to the Contractor decisions as issued by Engineer.
- H. Review of Work and Defective Work:
 - 1. Conduct on—site observations of the Contractor's work in progress to assist the Engineer in determining if the Work is, in general, proceeding in accordance with the Contract Documents.
 - 2. Report to the Engineer whenever RPR believes that any part of the Contractor's work does not conform to the Contract Documents or will imperil the integrity of the Work as indicated in the Contract Documents, or has been damaged, or does not meet the requirements of any inspection, test or approval required to be made; advise the Engineer of that part of work in progress that RPR believes should be

corrected or rejected or should be uncovered for observation, or requires special testing, inspection or approval.

- I. Inspections, Tests and System Startups:
 - 1. Verify that tests, equipment and system start-ups and operating and maintenance training are conducted in the presence of appropriate the Owner's personnel and that the Contractor maintains adequate records thereof.
 - 2. Observe, record, and report to the Engineer appropriate details relative to the test procedures and system start-ups.
- J. Record names, addresses, fax numbers, e-mail addresses, web site locations, and telephone numbers of all the Contractors, Subcontractors and materials and equipment Suppliers. Maintain records for use in preparing Workdocumentation.

K. Reports:

- 1. Furnish to the Engineer periodic reports as required of progress of the Work and of the Contractor's compliance with the Progress Schedule and Schedule of Shop Drawings and Sample Submittals.
- 2. Draft and recommend to the Engineer proposed Change Orders, Work Change Directives, and Field Orders. Obtain backup material from the Contractor.
- Immediately notify the Engineer of the occurrence of any Site accidents, emergency, acts of God endangering the Work, damage to property, or discovery of Hazardous Materials.
- L. Review Applications for Payment with the Contractor for compliance with the established procedure for their submission and forward with recommendations to the Engineer, noting particularity the relationship of the payment requested to the Schedule of Values, Work completed and materials and equipment delivered at the Site but not incorporated in the Work.
- M. During the course of the Work, verify that materials and equipment certificates, operation and maintenance manuals and other data required by the Specifications to be assembled and furnished by the Contactor are applicable to the items actually installed and in accordance with the Contract Documents, and have these documents delivered to the Engineer for review and forwarding to the Owner prior to payment for that part of Work.

N. Completion:

 Participate in a Substantial Completion inspection, assist in the determination of Substantial Completion and the preparation of list of items to be completed or corrected.

- 2. Participate in a final inspection in the company of the Engineer, the Owner and the Contractor and prepare a final list of items to be completed and deficiencies remedied.
- 3. Observe whether all items on final list have been completed or corrected and make recommendations to the Engineer concerning acceptance and issuance of the Notice of Acceptability of the Work.

O. Limitations of the RPR's Authority: The RPR shall not:

- 1. Authorize any deviation from the Contract Documents or substitute of material or equipment (including "or-equal" items).
- 2. Exceed limitations of the Engineer's authority as set forth in the Contract Documents.
- 3. Undertake any of the responsibilities of the Contractor, the Subcontractors, the Suppliers or the Contractor's Superintendent.
- 4. Advise on, issue directions regarding, or assume control over safety practices precautions, and programs in connection with the activities or operations of the Owner or the Contractor.
- 5. Participate in specialized field or laboratory tests or inspections conducted off-site by others except as specifically authorized by the Engineer.
- 6. Accept Shop Drawings or Sample submittals from anyone other than the Contractor.
- 7. Authorize the Owner to occupy the Project in whole or in part.
- 8. Advise on issue directions, or assume control over means, methods, techniques, sequences, or procedures for the Contractor's Work.

3.2.14 Conflict of Interest

A. No member, officer or employee of the City during his/her tenure or for one (1) year after shall have any interest, direct or indirect, in this contract or proceeds thereof. The Contractor shall also include this statement in all subcontracts for this work.

SECTION 3.3: SUBSTANTIAL COMPLETION AND FINAL ACCEPTANCE

3.3.1 Acceptance of Work - After Receipt, Inspection, Usage and Testing

A. The Contract Administrator will make the determination when Work is completed and there is Final Acceptance by the Owner, with consideration to the Engineer's and the Inspector's recommendations.

- B. Final Acceptance will be made by the Owner only in writing, and after adequate time to ensure the Work is performed in accordance with Contract Documents in accordance with Florida Statutes, Section 255.077. The Owner will reject any items delivered by the Contractor that are not in accordance with the Contract, and shall not be deemed to have accepted any items until the Owner has had reasonable time to inspect them following delivery or, if later, within a reasonable time after any latent defects in the work have become apparent.
- C. The Owner may partially accept the Work. If the Owner elects to accept nonconforming items, it may in addition to other remedies, be entitled to deduct a reasonable amount from the price as compensation for the nonconformity. Any Final Acceptance by the Owner, even if nonconditional, shall not be deemed a waiver, or settlement or acceptance of any Defect.

3.3.2 Substantial Completion

- A. The Contractor shall notify the Owner in writing when a portion of the Work is ready for Substantial Completion and can be utilized for the purposes for which it was intended. The Contractor shall identify any deficiencies in the Work. Owner will inspect the Work and will give the Contractor written notice of either acceptance of that portion of the Work or additional deficiencies. The Contractor shall correct all deficiencies prior to Substantial Completion of the Work.
- B. Whenever any portion of the Work is substantially complete and can be utilized for the purpose for which it was intended, the Owner may use it. Such use shall not be held in any way as a Final Acceptance of the Work or as a waiver of any provisions of the Contract.
- C. Upon determination that the Work meets the requirements for Substantial Completion, the Owner will issue a Certificate of Substantial Completion.

SECTION 3.4: PRICE & PAYMENTS

3.4.1 Application for Payment and Payment Terms

- A. The Contractor shall submit to the Engineer or the Engineer's RPR all Applications for Payment using the prescribed forms included in the Contract Documents and in accordance with the payment method agreed upon in these Contract Documents. The Owner will pay the Contractor the amount requested less any authorized deductions or retainage set forth in the Contract Documents within thirty (30) days after receipt of an acceptable Application for Payment from the Contractor subject to the provisions stated below.
- B. The Owner may reject any Application for Payment within twenty (20) calendar days after receipt. The Owner will return the Application for Payment to the Contractor stating the reasons for rejection. Upon receipt of an acceptable revised Application for

Payment, the Owner will pay the Contractor the revised amount within ten (10) calendar days.

- C. The Owner may withhold payment if the Contractor is in violation of any conditions or terms of the Contract Documents.
- D. The Application for Payment may be subject to the review of the Owner's Representative for purposes of determining compliance with the DIVISION 4: SUPPLEMENTAL CONDITIONS.

3.4.2 Retainage

- A. As additional security for the proper performance of the Work, the Owner may deduct ten percent (10%) retainage, or such other amount allowable pursuant to State of Florida law, from the amount stipulated in the Invoice or Application for Payment and accepted by the Owner as eligible for payment. In accordance with Florida Statutes, after completion of fifty percent (50%) of the Work, the Contractor may request a reduction in retainage to five percent (5%). For the purposes of this section, "completion of fifty percent (50%) of the Work" shall be defined as the point at which fifty percent (50%) of the total cost of the Work, as defined, and inclusive of authorized Change Orders, has been expended by the Owner.
- B. In the case of early termination of the Contract, all payments made by the Owner against the Contract Price prior to notice of termination shall be credited to the amount, if any, due the Contractor. If the parties determine that the sum of all previous payments and credits exceeds the sum due the Contractor, the Contractor shall refund the excess amount to the Owner within ten (10) calendar days of determination or written notice.

3.4.3 Payment Method - Progress Payments and Schedule of Values

A. For the purposes of this Contract, the Contractor shall refer to the DIVISION 6: TECHNICAL SPECIFICATIONS.

3.4.4 Final Application for Payment

- A. After the Contractor has, in the opinion of the Engineer, satisfactorily completed all corrections identified during the final inspection and has delivered, in accordance with the Contract Documents, all maintenance and operating instructions, schedules, guarantees, bonds, certificates or other evidence of insurance, certificates of inspection, marked-up as-built record documents and other documents, the Contractor shall complete and submit to the Owner the final Application for Payment with consent of surety for final payment as notice that the Work, including the correction of all deficiencies, is complete. By submitting the final Application for Payment, the Contractor certifies the following:
 - 1. That the Work has been satisfactorily completed;

- 2. That no liens have attached against the property and improvements of the Owner;
- 3. That no notice of intention to claim liens are outstanding;
- 4. That no suits are pending by reason of the Work;
- 5. That all workers' compensation claims known to the Contractor have been reported to the Owner;
- 6. That the surety provides a release; and
- 7. That no public liability claims are pending.
- B. Within ten (10) calendar days of receipt of the Contractor's final Application for Payment, the Engineer shall review the final Application for Payment and make a recommendation to the Owner. The Owner shall make final payment to the Contractor in accordance with the Application for Payment provisions of the Contract.

3.4.5 **Prompt Payment to Subcontractors and Suppliers**

- A. When the Contractor receives payment from the Owner for labor, services or materials furnished by Subcontractors and Suppliers that are hired by the Contractor, the Contractor shall remit payment due (less proper retainage) to those Subcontractors and Suppliers within fifteen (15) calendar days after the Contractor's receipt of payment from the Owner and obtain a Release of Lien for each payment made. Nothing herein shall prohibit the Contractor from disputing, pursuant to the terms hereof, all or any portion of a payment alleged to be due to its Subcontractors and Suppliers. In the event of such dispute, the Contractor may withhold the disputed portion of any such payment only after the Contractor has provided written notice to the Owner and to the Subcontractor and Supplier whose payment is in dispute, stating the amount in dispute and specifically describing the actions required to cure the dispute. The Contractor shall deliver such notice to the Owner and to the said Subcontractor or Supplier within ten (10) calendar days following the Contractor's receipt of payment from the Owner. The
 - Contractor shall pay all undisputed amounts due within the time frames specified herein.
- B. The Contractor shall submit a Release of Lien for the prior month's payment included in any Application for Payment.
- C. The prompt payment requirements herein shall, in no way, create any contractual relationship or obligation between the Owner and any Subcontractor, Supplier, or any third-party, nor create any Owner liability for the Contractor's failure to make timely payments as required. The Contractor's failure to comply with the prompt payment requirements, however, shall constitute a material breach of its contractual obligations to the Owner.

3.4.6 Taxes

- A. The Contractor shall include the cost of all applicable State and Local Sales Taxes in the submitted Bid Price. The Owner reserves the right to directly purchase any materials or equipment to reduce project costs due to State and Local Sales Taxes. A deductive Change Order will be drafted to remove any Owner Direct Purchases from the Contract.
- B. The Contractor shall be responsible for the payment of any applicable State and Local taxes relating to the purchase of equipment and materials required for the completion of this project.

3.4.7 Allowances

- A. When the Contract Documents indicate that the Owner has provided the Contractor with an allowance for specified portions of the Work, the Contractor shall provide such Work in a manner acceptable to the Owner.
- B. Allowance items shall include all costs to the Contractor (less any applicable trade discounts), including all applicable taxes, costs for unloading and handling materials and equipment at the Site, labor, installation, overload, profit, and other expenses set forth in the Contract Documents as part of the allowances.

SECTION 3.5: INSURANCE & INDEMNITIES

3.5.1 Environmental Indemnity

A. The Contractor shall hold harmless, indemnify, and defend the Owner and the Engineer, including without limitation, its officers, directors, members, representatives, affiliates, agents and employees, successors and assigns (the "Indemnified Parties") and will reimburse the Indemnified Parties from and against any and all claims, suits, demands, judgments, losses, costs, fines, penalties, damages, liabilities and expenses (including all costs of cleanup, containment or other remediation, and all costs for investigation and defense thereof including, but not limited to, court costs, reasonable expert witness fees and attorney fees) arising from or in connection with (a) the Contractor's, including, but not limited to, its agents, affiliates or assigns ("Parties"), actions or activities that result in a violation of any environmental law, ordinance, rule, or regulation or that leads to an environmental claim or citation or to damages due to the Contractor's or other Parties' activities, (b) any environmental, health and safety liabilities arising out of or relating to the operation or other activities performed in connection with this contract by the Contractor or any Party at any time on or after the effective date of the contract, or (c) any bodily injury (including illness, disability and death, regardless of when any such bodily injury occurred, was incurred or manifested itself), personal injury, property damage (including trespass, nuisance, wrongful eviction and deprivation of the use of real property) or other damage of or to any person in any way arising from or allegedly arising from any hazardous activity conducted by the Contractor or any Party. The Owner will be entitled to control any remedial action or any proceeding relating to an environmental claim. This indemnification agreement is separate and apart from, and is in no way

limited by, any insurance provided pursuant to this Contract or otherwise. This section relating to indemnification shall survive the Term of this Contract, and any holdover and/or Contract extensions thereto, whether such Term expires naturally by the passage of time or is terminated earlier pursuant to the provisions of this Contract.

3.5.2 Indemnification

A. The Contractor shall hold harmless, indemnify, and defend the Owner and the Engineer against any claim, action, loss, damage, injury, liability, cost and expense of whatsoever kind or nature (including, but not by way of limitation, reasonable attorney's fees and court costs) arising out of injury (whether mental or corporeal) to persons, including death, or damage to property, arising out of or incidental to the negligence, recklessness or intentional wrongful misconduct of the Contractor and any person or entity used by Contractor in the performance of this Contract or Work performed there under. For purposes of this Indemnification, the term "Owner" shall mean the Owner as a body politic and corporate and shall include its governing board, officers, employees, agents, successors and assigns. This indemnification shall survive the term of a Contract entered into pursuant to this solicitation, for events that occurred during the Contract term. This indemnification shall be separate and apart from, and in addition to, any other indemnification provisions set forth elsewhere in this Contract.

3.5.3 Insurance Requirements

A. Before starting and for four years beyond Final Acceptance of the Work, and without limiting its liability under the Contract, the Contractor shall procure and maintain at its sole expense, insurance of the types and in the minimum amounts stated below:

Schedule	Amount
Workers' Compensation Florida Statutory Coverage and Employer's Liability (including appropriate Federal Acts)	Statutory Limits (Workers' Compensation) As required by law (Employer's Liability)
Contractor's General Liability Completed Operations and Products Liability Property damage and bodily injury	\$1,000,000/occurrence, \$5,000,000 annual aggregate
Personal Injury Liability Property Damage Liability insurance will pro Hazards (XCU Coverage) as appropriate	ovide Explosion, Collapse and Underground
Automobile Liability Bodily Injury Property Damage	\$200,000/person, \$400,000/accident \$400,000/accident

Contractual Liability

Bodily Injury \$500,000/accident

Property Damage \$1,000,000 annual aggregate

Builder's Risk Insurance

Amount to be determined by Owner

- B. The Contractor's General Liability policies shall be effective for four (4) years after the Work is complete. The Florida Department of Transportation (FDOT) shall be made an Additional Insured under the Commercial General Liability Insurance. The above Indemnification provision is separate and is not limited by the type of insurance or insurance amounts stated above.
- C. The Contractor shall specify the Owner and the Engineer as additional insureds for all coverage except Workers' Compensation and Employer's Liability. Such insurance shall be primary to any and all other insurance or self-insurance maintained by the Owner.
- D. Such insurance shall be written by a company or companies licensed to do business in the State of Florida and satisfactory to the Owner. Prior to commencing any Work under this Contract, certificates evidencing the maintenance of the insurance shall be furnished to the Owner for approval.
- E. The Contractor's and its Subcontractors' Certificates of Insurance shall be mailed to the Owner at City of Bowling Green, 104 East Main Street, Bowling Green, Florida 33834.
- F. The insurance certificates shall provide that no material alteration or cancellation, including expiration and non-renewal, shall be effective until thirty (30) days after receipt of written notice by the Owner.
- G. Any subcontractors of the Contractor shall procure and maintain the insurance required of the Contractor hereunder during the life of the subcontract. Subcontractors' insurance may be either by separate coverage or by endorsement under insurance provided by the Contractor.

3.5.4 Title and Risk of Loss

A. Ownership, risks of damage to or loss of the Work shall pass to the Owner upon Final Acceptance of the work. The Contractor shall assume all risk of loss or damage to the Work while items are in transit and/or in the Contractor's custody until such time that the Owner issues written notice of Final Acceptance of the Work.

SECTION 3.6: GENERAL PERFORMANCE OF WORK

3.6.1 Care of Property Owners

A. The Contractor agrees to provide excellent customer service throughout the execution of the Work during both scheduled Work hours and Overtime in the manner, as a minimum, as set forth below:

- 1. The Contractor shall notify the affected property owners prior to any planned outages, line flushing, valve simulations and driveway construction. The notification will be produced by the Contractor and approved by the Owner's Representative.
- Within one (1) business day of receiving a concern from a property owner regarding the Work, the Contractor shall notify the Engineer in writing of each customer concern reported directly to the Contractor's personnel. Such notification shall include, as a minimum: the Contractor's name, date and time the concern was communicated to the Contractor, the name, address and phone numbers for the affected party, the nature of their concern and any action that was taken or any action currently underway to resolve the concern.

3.6.2 Workmanship

A. The Contractor shall perform all Work in a safe, workmanlike and professional manner, and so as to render a neat and uniform appearance. The Contractor shall handle all material in such a way as to preserve its finish and protective coatings from damage. General arrangement shall be satisfactory to the Engineer.

3.6.3 Work Location Cleanliness

A. The Contractor shall, at all times, keep the Work Location free from an accumulation of waste materials or rubbish caused by its operations. At the completion of the Work, the Contractor shall remove all waste materials and any rubbish from and about the project, as well as any tools, construction equipment, machinery and surplus materials, in accordance with applicable laws, rules and regulations. If the Contractor fails to clean up at the completion of the Work, the Owner may do so as provided elsewhere in the Contract and charge the cost thereof to the Contractor.

3.6.4 Surveying

- A. Unless specifically stated in the Contract Documents as being provided by the Owner, the Contractor shall be responsible for all surveying necessary to commence and perform this Work. The Contractor shall employ a land surveyor registered in the State of Florida to reference and restore all property corners and/or monuments that may have been disturbed and to ensure accurate horizontal and vertical control during the construction of this project and for staking locations for new structures. Height and spacing of stakes are to be as specified elsewhere herein or as directed by the Engineer.
- B. All Work shall be done to the lines, grades and elevations shown on the drawings. Any Work improperly located may be ordered removed and replaced at the Contractor's expense. The Contractor shall be responsible for making its own determination of water table variations and shall not assume that any water levels shown by the aforesaid boring data will necessarily be maintained at the level indicated. The Contractor shall investigate the conditions above or below the surface of the ground as it may deem necessary for the proper and timely performance of its Work including, but not limited to, the making of borings.

SECTION 3.7: SCHEDULES

3.7.1 Preliminary Schedules

- A. Within ten (10) calendar days following the Effective Date of the Agreement, the Contractor shall submit to the Engineer the following items:
 - 1. Preliminary Progress Schedule stating days or dates for starting and completing the various stages of the Work in an orderly manner within the Contract Times, indicating any milestones specified in the Contract.
 - 2. Preliminary Schedule of Submittals, showing a reasonable schedule for reviewing and processing required submittals
 - 3. Preliminary Schedule of Values for all of the Work which includes quantities and prices of items which when added together equal the Contract Price and reasonably subdivides the Work into component parts in sufficient detail to serve as the basis for progress payments during performance of the Work. Prices shall include all overhead and profit.
 - 4. Preliminary Schedule of Progress Payments (Draw Schedule).
- B. No later than ten (10) calendar days prior to the date for the submittal of the first Application for Payment, the Contractor and the Engineer shall meet to review the acceptability of the Progress Schedule, the Schedule of Submittals and the Schedule of Values. The Contractor shall have an additional ten (10) calendar days following such meeting to make any adjustments and to resubmit the schedules.
- C. The Engineer's approval of the any of the Schedules shall not relieve the Contractor of its sole responsibility for the Progress Schedule, the sequence and scheduling of Work, and the progress of the Work.
- D. No progress payments shall be made to the Contractor until the Engineer has approved the Schedules.

3.7.2 Work Days

- A. The work schedule is established on the basis of working five (5) days per week, eight (8) hours per day. The Owner may require the Contractor to base its schedule on an accelerated Work Schedule or multiple shifts. The Contractor shall not schedule work on Holidays without obtaining prior written approval from the Owner.
- B. The Contractor shall, at no additional cost to the Owner, increase or supplement its working force and equipment and perform the Work on an Overtime or multiple shift basis when directed by the Owner and upon notification that the Contractor is behind schedule. The Contractor shall submit a revised schedule in writing demonstrating the Contractor's schedule recovery plans.

C. The Contractor understands and agrees that the rate of progress set forth in the Approved Schedule already allows for ordinary delays incident to the Work. No extension of the Contract Time will be made for ordinary delays, inclement weather (except as set forth in Section 19, "Force Majeure"), or accidents, and the occurrence of such events will not relieve the Contractor from the requirement of meeting the Approved Schedule.

3.7.3 Changes to the Progress Schedule

- A. The Contractor may submit proposed revisions to the Progress Schedule to the Engineer for review provided that they do not change the Contract Time, and the Engineer may adjust the Progress Schedule from time to time.
- B. Proposed changes to the Progress Schedule that change the Contract Time will only be made in accordance with Section 14, "Changes to Work." Adjustments to the Contract Time shall only be made via Change Order.
- C. The Contractor shall refer to the DIVISION 6: TECHNICAL SPECIFICATIONS for additional information regarding Progress Schedules.

SECTION 3.8: MATERIALS, TOOLS & EQUIPMENT

3.8.1 Temporary Utilities

- A. The Contractor shall furnish and install all temporary water, electricity and other utilities required to accomplish the Work. The Contractor shall obtain the water required for carrying out the Work from fire hydrants, existing water main connections, or new connections approved by the Owner. The Contractor shall install a back flow preventer and water meter assembly if construction water is necessary. Upon Substantial Completion of Work, the Contractor shall remove all evidence of temporary connections and lines.
- B. Prior to initiating any construction Work, the Contractor shall coordinate and schedule the provision of temporary utility service required during construction and arrange for the permanent installation and connection of utilities for the completed Work.

3.8.2 Material Delivery Locations

A. The Contractor shall notify, in writing, the Owner of all planned material delivery/receiving locations. Such notification shall be prior to initiation of shipment. The Owner will provide the Contractor with specific written approval for each delivery/receipt location, which will not be unreasonably withheld.

3.8.3 Storage of Equipment

A. The Contractor shall be responsible for all storage of materials, equipment, vehicles, tools, and all other items associated with the Work. Such storage shall comply with

applicable regulations appropriate for the items being stored to ensure suitable care for items and protection from theft, vandalism, or inappropriate use. The Contractor is solely responsible for the costs for such storage, unless otherwise indicated in the Contract Documents, and any costs associated with noncompliant storage including, but not limited to, loss and damage to items. In the event that the Owner directs the Contractor to stop the Work, costs associated with storing equipment or materials will be compensated in accordance with the provisions stated herein in Section 14, "Change in Work." The Contractor shall ensure that the Engineer has access to Work-related storage on an as needed basis during regular Work Hours and Overtime.

3.8.4 Contractor Laydown Area

A. In the event the Contractor decides to utilize public or private property as a laydown area, the Contractor shall enter into a written agreement with the entity who owns the property. The Owner shall have access to all laydown areas. Upon submission of the Contractor's first Invoice or application for payment to the Owner, the Contractor shall provide the Owner with a copy of such signed written agreement. The Contractor shall submit to the Owner a letter of release from the entity in connection with Contractor's final Application for Payment to the Owner.

3.8.5 Substitutions

- A. Whenever materials or equipment are specified or described in the Contract by using the name of a proprietary item or the name of a particular supplier, the naming of the item is intended to establish the type, function and quality required.
- B. Materials or equipment of other suppliers may be accepted by the Engineer if sufficient information is submitted by the Contractor to allow the Engineer to determine that the material or equipment proposed is equivalent or equal to that named.
- C. The Contractor shall make written application to the Engineer for acceptance thereof, certifying that the proposed substitute will perform adequately the functions and achieve the results called for by the general design, be similar and of equal substance to that specified and be suited to the same use as that specified.
- D. The application shall state that the evaluation and acceptance of the proposed substitute will not prejudice the Contractor's completion of the Work within the Contract Time, whether or not acceptance of the substitute for use in the Work will require a change in any of the Contract Documents (or in the provisions of any other Contract directly with the Owner for Work on the Contract) to adapt the design to the proposed substitute and whether or not incorporation or use of the substitute in connection with the Work is subject to payment of any license fees, royalties, permits or any other costs.
- E. All variations of the proposed substitute from that specified shall be identified in the application and available maintenance, repair and replacement service shall be indicated.

- F. The application shall also contain an itemized estimate of all costs that will result directly or indirectly from acceptance of such substitute, including costs of redesign and claims of other Companies affected by the resulting change, all of which shall be considered by the Engineer in evaluating the proposed substitute.
- G. Requests for review of substitute items of material and equipment will not be accepted by the Engineer from anyone other than the Contractor.
- H. The Engineer may require the Contractor to furnish, at the Contractor's expense, additional data about the proposed substitute.
- If a specific means, method, technique, sequence or procedure of construction is indicated in or required by the Contract, the Contractor may furnish or utilize a substitute means, method, sequence, technique or procedure of construction acceptable to the Engineer, if the Contractor submits sufficient information to allow the Engineer to determine that the substitute proposed is equivalent to that indicated or required by the Contract.
- J. The Engineer will be allowed a reasonable time within which to evaluate each proposed substitute; such time shall not be deemed justification for an extension of the Contractor's time for completion of the Contract.
- K. The Engineer will be the sole judge of acceptability, and no substitute shall be ordered, installed or utilized without the Engineer's prior written notice, which shall be evidenced by a Change Order.
- L. The Owner may require reimbursement for the cost associated with the Engineer's evaluation of substitutions.
- M. The Owner may require the Contractor to furnish, at the Contractor's expense, special performance guarantee bonds or other surety with respect to any substitution.

3.8.6 Disposition of Salvage Material

A. All material to be removed from the Work Location, relocated or salvaged, shall be inspected by the Engineer immediately prior to removal, and the Engineer's decision as to the salvageability shall be final. Such material that can be salvaged, in the opinion of the Engineer, shall be stored at the Work Location on-site by the Contractor, as and where directed by the Engineer, or delivered to a location as directed. Under no circumstances may existing structures, plant or facilities be removed or demolished without obtaining prior written approval from the ContractAdministrator.

3.8.7 Tools and Equipment

A. All tools and equipment used in the performance of the Work shall be used as intended by the manufacturer and in accordance with manufacturer operating manuals and industry practices, whichever is more stringent. The Contractor shall ensure that all

tools and equipment used in the performance of the Work shall be of the size and quality suitable for safe and efficient performance of the Work. If the Contractor- provided tools and equipment do not meet these requirements, or if in the sole opinion of the Owner formed after considering relevant factors, the tools or equipment are inappropriate for performance of the Work, the Contractor agrees to remove the unacceptable tools and equipment and obtain tools and equipment the Owner considers suitable. Such replacement shall be entirely at the Contractor's expense, and no change to Contract Time will be allowed.

B. The Contractor is responsible for furnishing the security of any and all tools and equipment required to perform the Work.

SECTION 3.9: SAFETY & SECURITY

3.9.1 Safety and Protection Precautions

- A. The Contractor shall comply with all applicable federal, state and local laws, ordinances, all Owner procedures and policies, and orders of any public body having jurisdiction for the safety of persons or protection of property. The Contractor understands and agrees that violation of any provision of this clause is grounds for immediate termination of the Contract and the Contractor is responsible for all Owner damages associated with such termination.
- B. The Contractor shall ensure that Subcontractors and their personnel have all the necessary personal protective equipment and training needed to perform the Work safely.
- C. The Contractor understands and agrees that it is responsible for paying all costs associated with providing a safe work environment including, but not limited to, any costs associated with any Owner directed safety improvements. The Contractor further understands and agrees that it is solely responsible for the safety of personnel and property associated with the Work, and that any actions taken by the Owner or the Owner's Representatives to prevent harm to persons or damage to equipment does not, in any way, relieve the Contractor of this responsibility.
- D. The Contractor's Representative, or alternatively, the Contractor's Supervisor, shall be designated as the Contractor's individual responsible for the prevention of accidents.
- E. The Contractor shall notify the police and fire departments as to its Work Location in order to ensure prompt response in an emergency.

3.9.2 Emergency Events

A. In the event that a system-wide emergency arises during the Term of this Contract for which the Owner requires assistance from the Contractor including, but not limited to, severe storms, large-scale fires, floods, and terrorist attacks, the Contractor acknowledges the importance of Owner infrastructure and agrees to support, with all its

resources, skills and capabilities, and the maximum extent possible, all restoration efforts of the Owner. The Owner shall notify the Contractor when an emergency event occurs and the Contractor agrees to mobilize its full resources immediately. In the event conditions are such that an emergency event is likely in progress, but the Contractor has not been notified by the Owner, the Contractor shall make all efforts to contact the Owner to determine if and how it should respond. The Owner agrees to reimburse the Contractor for its actual costs incurred, plus overhead and profit, the total not exceeding twelve percent (12%), and any one-time expended cost incurred as a result of supporting the Owner during the emergency event.

3.9.3 Emergency Procedures

A. In emergencies affecting the safety of persons, the Work or property at the Work Location or any other area adjacent thereto, the Contractor, without special instructions or authorization from the Owner, is obligated to act to its best ability, to prevent threatened damage, injury or loss to the Work, any persons, or property. The Contractor shall give the Owner prompt written notice describing the emergency, its cause, actions taken, injuries and casualties, property damage, other damages, and impact on continued performance under this Contract.

3.9.4 Storm Preparedness

A. In the event of a Hurricane Warning, Tropical Storm Warning, or other large storm affecting the Work Location, the Contractor shall secure, or shall remove and store all equipment and materials at the Work Location including, but not limited to, cones, barricades, lights and signs. The Contractor shall begin taking such precautions as necessary to secure the Work Location upon official issuance of mandatory evacuation of the area of the Work Location and no later than twenty-four (24) hours prior to predicted arrival of tropical storm or hurricane force winds, or when notified by the Owner to do so. These activities are considered a regular part of the Work, regardless of the frequency they are required.

3.9.5 Weather Protection

A. The Contractor shall provide proper facilities, take all necessary precautions and assume the entire cost for protecting the Work against weather conditions and for handling all storm, flood and ground water, sewage, or other seepage, that may be encountered during the performance of the Contract. The Contractor shall provide for such contingencies and for carrying on the Work in freezing weather by methods that meet with the approval of the Engineer. If the Contractor fails to provide such protection, or in the event of an emergency, the Owner may provide such protection at the Contractor's expense.

3.9.6 Project Security

A. The Contractor shall provide, at its expense, on-site security personnel at any time the facility's perimeter is unsecured, including but not limited to, alarms disabled, fences or

gates down, traffic flows that require gates to be opened repeatedly and/or for more than one hour of the work day. The Contractor shall schedule security personnel. Where existing lighting is disabled or otherwise impacted by the Work, the Contractor shall provide temporary lighting equal to or exceeding that which exists.

3.9.7 Protection of the Environment

- A. The Contractor shall immediately notify the Owner of any Hazardous Materials encountered during the Work and shall immediately cease work in the affected area until further direction is received from the Owner.
- B. The Contractor and its Subcontractors and Suppliers shall comply with all applicable laws, rules and regulations including, but not limited to, all Environmental Requirements.
- C. Asbestos, Lead, or Toxic Mold may be present at the Work Location. The Contractor shall notify the Engineer immediately upon discovery of asbestos, lead, toxic mold. The Contractor shall not disturb or remove known or discovered asbestos, lead, or toxic mold unless directed by the Engineer.

D. Hazardous Materials:

- The Contractor shall bear full responsibility including, but not limited to, payment and liability for the transportation, use and disposal of any Hazardous Materials under the Contractor's control during the performance of the Work. Disposal of Hazardous Materials should only be disposed of at Owner approved facilities. The Contractor shall provide the Owner with appropriate documentation showing proper disposal of its Hazardous Materials.
- 2. The Owner has identified and labeled equipment known to contain PCBs. The Owner will remove and transport any equipment so identified. The Contractor shall not remove or transport any equipment containing PCBs. The Contractor shall immediately notify the Owner of any questionable or unmarked equipment and the Owner will arrange for testing and identification.

E. Toxic Substances Introduced by the Contractor:

1. The Contractor shall notify the Engineer in writing of the type, quantity and disposal method of any toxic substance used during the performance of the Work. The Contractor shall be solely responsible for the use and disposal of any such toxic substances. The Contractor shall submit cleanup procedures to the Owner for review and written approval prior to the use of the toxic substance. In the event that a toxic substance escapes into the environment, the Contractor shall immediately notify the Owner in writing of the occurrence and the actions taken. In the event that the Contractor encounters toxic substances in the course of construction, the Contractor shall immediately notify the Owner verbally, with a written notification to follow. The Owner shall arrange for disposal.

- 2. The Contractor will be solely responsible for all waste material including paints, lubricants, fuels, solvents, and other chemicals used in connection with the Work. The Contractor will provide proper containers for waste materials and comply with all applicable laws, rules and regulations in their disposal. The Contractor will dispose of all empty containers off-site as soon as possible. The Contractor will designate one area for transferring paints and solvents from large containers (55- gallon drums) into smaller containers for daily use.
- F. The Contractor understands and agrees that the Work Location may include wetlands or other environmentally sensitive areas. The Contractor shall not enter these areas during the performance of its Work, unless specifically authorized by the Engineer and appropriate state and federal permits have been obtained.
- G. The Contractor and/or Subcontractor's employees shall not endanger wildlife species or domestic animals of any kind.
- H. The Contractor shall immediately cease any activity that causes or results in a violation of the Owner's or the Contractor's environmental permits or federal, state and local laws and regulations. Such violation shall immediately be reported to the Engineer verbally, with written notification to follow. All additional costs due to the Contractor's noncompliance with the applicable environmental permits or Environmental Requirements shall be paid by the Contractor.

SECTION 3.10: OTHER WORK AND OTHER PROPERTY

3.10.1 Encroachments on Rights or Property

A. The Contractor shall be solely responsible for any encroachments on public property or on the rights or property of adjoining property owners to the Work Location, and shall hold the Owner harmless because of any encroachments that may result because of the Contractor's improper layout. In this regard, the Contractor shall, without extra cost to the Owner, remove any Work or portion of any Work that encroaches on the property other than that of the Work Location, or that is built beyond legal building or setback limits. The Contractor shall rebuild the affected Work or portion of Work at the proper location and in full compliance with the Contract Documents.

3.10.2 Interference With Existing Utilities

A. The Contractor acknowledges and agrees that there is a possibility that existing the Owner or other utility facilities may cross and/or lie parallel to excavations in the area where Work will occur. Although the Owner may indicate recorded obstacles on the drawings, it does not warrant that other subsurface obstacles do not exist. The Contractor shall be responsible for verifying the data furnished by the Owner and for fully investigating and locating additional obstructions including every type below, on or above the ground. The Contractor should regard these impediments as normal to construction. All costs for performing such work shall not be paid for separately, but shall be included in the Contractor's costs on the Bid Form.

- B. The Contractor shall comply with all requirements of the Underground Facility Damage Prevention and Safety Act, Florida Statutes, Chapter 556.
- C. In the event the Contractor encounters an unidentified utility during performance of the Work, the Contractor shall promptly cease Work in the affected area and shall immediately notify the Owner's Representative in writing. The Owner will investigate the area and propose remedial actions in accordance with the provisions stated herein in the Section 14, "Changes to Work."
- D. The Contractor shall work in cooperation with the Owner and representatives of existing utilities to plan and coordinate putting new Work into service so as not to interfere with the operation of the existing utilities. Such plans shall be adhered to unless deviations therefrom are expressly permitted in writing by the Contract Administrator.
- E. The Contractor shall at all times conduct the Work in a manner that interferes as little as possible with the existing utilities. Any cables exposed during construction, whether energized or not, must be handled and protected as if they are energized. The Contractor shall so conduct its operations and maintain the Work in such condition that adequate drainage shall be in effect at all times. The Contractor shall not obstruct existing gutters, ditches and other runoff facilities. When working in the vicinity of overhead lines, the Contractor shall request line rubber protection and pole holding services from the Owner of the overhead lines at least ten (10) calendar days in advance of performing the work.
- F. The Contractor shall be solely responsible for any damages, interferences, and interruptions of service caused to any utility's assets and services including water, sewer, electric, telephone, gas, cable, and other utility services, that result from the Contractor's failure to fulfill the above stated requirements.
- G. In the event the Contractor damages an existing utility, the Contractor shall immediately notify the property owner, the owner of the damaged utility and the Engineer. Should the damage cause an interruption of service, the Contractor shall be responsible for restoring service as soon as possible; however, the Contractor shall not make repairs, other than any required to restore safe conditions, without the approval of the property owner, or the owner of the damaged utility. The Contractor shall be responsible for coordinating any repair effort, and any associated costs should the utility owner or a licensed repair contractor be required to make the repair. The Owner reserves the right to deduct any unsettled claim amount from Contractor's invoices until such time as the claim is satisfactorily resolved.

3.10.3 Interference With Other Owner Work or Other Companies

A. The Contractor shall perform the Work in a manner that minimizes the interference with other Owner work, or with work performed by other companies. The Contractor shall coordinate the Work with other persons and companies employed by the Owner. If a difference of opinion regarding scheduling or coordination of the work arises between the Contractor and another Owner contractor(s) performing work at the Work Location,

the Owner may arbitrate the matter. In such cases where the Owner makes a decision regarding the scheduling or coordination of the work, the Contractor agrees to fully abide by the Owner's decision. Unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Owner, the Owner will not be responsible for additional costs.

B. Any claims arising against the Contractor from damages to other companies' work, equipment, machinery, tools or other property shall be settled directly between the Contractor and the other companies involved. The Owner will not, in any way, be a party to arbitrating or mediating any such disputes, nor shall the Owner be responsible for any costs associated with such disputes.

3.10.4 Interference with Railroads

- A. The Contractor shall not build across, into, over or under, either temporarily or permanently, any portion of a railway or railway right-of-way without first obtaining all required permits. If the Contractor's operations render any railroad unsafe, the Contractor shall immediately notify the Engineer, and the railroad owner and take appropriate actions and such temporary safeguards as required to protect life, limb, and property, and to maintain orderly traffic.
- B. The Contractor shall procure all railroad permits required for the Work beyond those procured by the Owner and the costs for such permits shall be included in the Bid Documents. All costs associated with railroad fees for railroad flagmen, watchouts, inspectors, supervisors, any additional training of Contractor's employees that is required by applicable laws, rules and regulations when performing Work in association with railways, any certifications required for successful completion of the Work and all other associated costs shall be included in the Bid Form.

3.10.5 Interruption of Service

- A. The Contractor shall not operate any valves, nor otherwise interrupt water and/or sewer service, without first obtaining permission from the Owner. The Owner shall be present during any interruption of service.
- B. If the Contractor must shut down a main or portion of a main, thereby causing an interruption of water service, the Contractor shall provide the Owner with the following information, in writing, a minimum of five (5) business days in advance of any anticipated interruption of service:
 - 1. Date and time of outage.
 - 2. Purpose of the outage.
 - 3. Map of the area to be affected by the outage.

- 4. Letter stating all offices, businesses, and residents have been or will be notified by the Contractor at least four (4) business days in advance of the outage (unless the Owner chooses to issue such notification).
- C. The Contractor is not authorized to proceed with the requested Work without prior written notice from the Owner that such actions are approved.
- D. In the event of a major emergency that endangers life or property, the Contractor may take immediate action before notifying the Owner. In all cases, however, the Owner shall be notified in writing at the earliest opportunity after addressing the emergency.

3.10.6 Protection of Existing Facilities and Grounds

- A. The Contractor shall be responsible for protecting all the existing facilities including, but not limited to, buildings, lawns, landscaping, sprinkler systems, and pavements, both public and private, that are encountered during the performance of the Work. At all times, the Contractor shall cooperate with the owners of such facilities by arranging and performing the Work in and around such facilities in a manner that facilitates their preservation, relocation, and/or reconstruction. The Contractor shall be responsible for the full restoration or replacement if the Contractor damages such facilities during or resulting from performance of the Work.
- B. The Contractor shall verify the existing dimensions and clearances before laying out the Work. When the Work involves the laying of utility lines across landscaped areas and grassed areas, which may include, but is not limited to, irrigation systems, streets, sidewalks, and other paved areas, the Contractor shall protect and preserve all trees, shrubs, palms, landscaping, etc., and restore such areas and all paved areas to their original sound conditions using construction techniques and materials that are the same as existing including replacing plants and trees with those of similar size and age. In the case of planted areas, the Contractor shall maintain the restoration Work until positive growth has been acknowledged in writing by the Engineer.
- C. All costs for such restoration and replacement work shall be included in the associated lines on the Bid Form, and shall not be paid for separately.
- D. The Contractor shall not (except upon written consent from the property owner and Contract Administrator) enter or occupy with workers, tools, equipment or vehicles any land outside the easements, right-of-ways, or the Owner's property.

3.10.7 Temporary Closure of Roadways

A. The Contractor shall not close or obstruct any portion of a street, road, or private way without first obtaining permits. If any street or private way is rendered unsafe by the Contractor's operations, the Contractor shall make such repairs or provide such temporary ways and guards necessary for the protection and safety of persons on the Work and the public and for the orderly maintenance of traffic. All costs associated with temporary closure of roadways shall be included in the Bid price.

- B. The Contractor shall notify the police and fire departments in writing if it will be necessary to close a street. The Contractor shall copy the Owner on all correspondence relating to street closure. The Contractor shall notify the police and fire departments prior to closure of the street. The Contractor shall be responsible for maintaining proper coordination with the proper authorities.
- C. Temporary closure of business entrances must be approved in writing by and coordinated with the Owner.
- D. For the purposes of this Contract, the Contractor shall refer to the DIVISION 6: TECHNICAL SPECIFICATIONS.

SECTION 3.11: DRAWINGS

3.11.1 Shop Drawings

- A. The Contractor shall submit all Shop Drawings according to the Schedule of Submittals approved by the Engineer and the DIVISION 6: TECHNICAL SPECIFICATIONS.
- B. Shop drawings shall establish the actual quantities, dimensions, materials and specified performance and design details of all manufactured or fabricated items, services and equipment that Contractor proposes to provide for the Work; indicate proper relation to adjoining Work; amplify design details of mechanical and electrical equipment in proper relation to physical spaces in the structure; and incorporate minor changes of design or construction to suit actual conditions.
- C. Shop drawings shall be complete in every detail, properly identified with the Contract name, Contract and subsection number for identification of each item, and state the qualifications, departures or deviations from the Contract, if any. Shop drawings for each section of the Work shall be numbered consecutively and the numbering system shall be retained throughout all revisions. Each drawing shall have a clear space above the title block in the lower right-hand corner for the approval stamps of the Contractor and the Engineer.
- D. In checking the Shop Drawings, the Contractor shall:
 - Verify all dimensions and field conditions, and shall check and coordinate the Shop Drawings of any section or trade with the requirements of all other sections or trades whose Work is related thereto, as required for proper and complete installation of the Work.
 - 2. Verify all rough-in and connections for utilities shall conform to approved equipment Shop Drawings
 - 3. Review and coordinate each Shop Drawing with other Shop Drawings and the Contract Documents

- 4. Determine and verify all information relative to Contractor's responsibilities for means, methods, techniques, sequences, and procedures of construction, and safety programs.
- E. The Engineer will review the Shop Drawings and will return them to the Contractor stamped to indicate the action taken. For planning purposes, the Contractor shall allow a minimum of two (2) weeks for review of each Shop Drawing. The stamp will indicate that the Shop Drawing is "No Exception Taken", "Make Corrections Noted", "Revise and Resubmit" or "Rejected". Only those Shop Drawings stamped "Revise and Resubmit" or "Rejected" shall be resubmitted for subsequent review. Resubmittals shall be in the same form and number of copies as original submittals, with notation indicating a revised submittal. The Shop Drawings stamped "No Exception Taken" or "Make Corrections Noted" will be returned to the Contractor, who will be responsible for obtaining prints thereof and distributing them to the field and Subcontractors.
- F. At the same time the Engineer returns a reviewed submittal to the Contractor it will forward two copies of each item stamped "No Exception Taken" or "Make Corrections Noted" together with any conditions of approval, to for field and office use. The Engineer may revoke approval of Shop Drawings, should field conditions so dictate.

SECTION 3.12: INSPECTIONS, QUALITY & REPORTING

3.12.1 Contractor's Daily Reports

- A. The Contractor shall complete and submit daily reports for each calendar day of the Work, starting with the date of the Notice to Proceed, and said reports shall be submitted to the Owner's Representative by noon of the following workday. The Contractor's failure to submit the daily reports as specified herein will be grounds for withholding payments.
- B. Upon review of the Contractor's Daily Reports, any discrepancies in the information noted by the Owner's Representative will be provided to the Contractor. A revised Daily Report will be resubmitted within one (1) business day.

3.12.2 Reporting

- A. The Contractor shall provide the reports as defined in the Contract Documents. The Contractor shall refer to DIVISION 6: TECHNICAL SPECIFICATIONS.
- B. Where the reporting frequency is daily, reports shall be submitted by noon of the following workday. Where the reporting frequency is weekly, reports are due by Monday at noon, covering the prior workweek. Where Monday is a Holiday, the reports are due at noon on the next workday. Where reports are due monthly, reports are due by noon on the first business day of each month. Sample forms for reports may be included in the Contract Documents. Where they are included they are to be used. Where they are not included, the Contractor shall provide a sample of its proposed report format for each report to the Engineer at least one (1) week prior to its initial due

date. The Engineer will review and either approve or reject the use of the report. Where the proposed report is rejected, the Contractor shall resubmit revised report formats, until the Engineer approves format. The Reporting Cycle shall begin on the Notice to Proceed date or the date of the purchase order, if used.

C. Where the Contract calls for reports to be submitted by the Contractor, such reports shall be in both paper and electronic format, with the electronic version submitted electronically via email to the Engineer.

3.12.3 Quality Control and Quality Assurance

- A. The Contractor shall provide Quality Control to ensure the Work is performed in accordance with the Contract. Quality Control shall be appropriate for the nature of the Work, and shall be conducted in a manner consistent with sound quality management and industrial engineering principles. The Contractor shall have only personnel trained in Quality Control techniques and experienced with the nature of the Work perform the Quality Control function.
- B. The Owner may perform Quality Assurance activities. Such activities, whether performed or not, do not in any way limit or reduce the Contractor's requirements. The Owner may become aware of quality related problems during its performance of Quality Assurance, but has no obligation to notify the Contractor of its findings. The Contractor shall provide access to all areas of Work, including the Contractor's facilities, for the Owner's Quality Assurance personnel and the Owner's Representatives. The Owner will conduct Quality Assurance activities so as not to excessively interfere with the Work, however, where the Owner Quality Assurance personnel request specific actions of the Contractor, the Contractor shall comply with the request and agrees that such compliance is included as part of its Contract Price.
- C. The Contractor shall refer to DIVISION 6: TECHNICAL SPECIFICATIONS.

3.12.4 Inspections and Testing

- A. The Owner, or its designated representatives, will perform inspections at the Contractor facilities during normal business hours and in a manner that minimizes disruption to the normal day-to-day work activities of the Contractor. Contractor shall provide safe and proper facilities for inspection access and observation of the Work and also for any inspection or testing by others.
- B. If the Contractor has covered or concealed any Work from inspection in any way that the Engineer has not specifically requested prior to the Owner's Representative's inspection, or if the Engineer considers it necessary or advisable that covered Work be inspected or tested by others, the Contractor, at the Engineer's request, shall uncover, expose or otherwise make available the portion of the Work in question for observation, inspection or testing as the Engineer may require. The Contractor shall furnish all necessary labor, material and equipment to make such Work available.

- C. The Contractor shall bear all expenses of uncovering, exposure, observation, inspection and testing and of satisfactory reconstruction, including, but not limited to, compensation for additional professional services required by the Owner, and no change in Contract Time will be considered as a result of the foregoing.
- D. The Owner may, at its sole discretion, grant the Contractor an extension of the Contract Time directly attributable to such uncovering, exposure, observation, inspection, testing and reconstruction.
- E. All materials and equipment used in the construction of the Contract shall be subject to adequate inspection and testing in accordance with accepted standards. The Contractor shall select the laboratory or inspection agency for making all tests required by the specifications, and shall pay for this laboratory service direct, as a part of this Contract.
- G. The Contractor shall pay for all required testing of materials and equipment. Two (2) copies of each test showing certification of each test shall be furnished to the Engineer immediately after such test has been made and with the exception of concrete, prior to delivery of the materials or equipment tested to the Work Location. The Owner will not accept the materials or equipment until tests have been approved.
- H. Materials of construction, particularly those upon which the strength and durability of the structure may depend, shall be subject to inspection and testing to establish conformance with specifications and suitability for uses intended. Test requirements for all materials are set out in the detailed specifications for that particular material. All materials and equipment prior to being incorporated in the Work, and required by the Engineer to be tested, shall be tested for conformance with contractual requirements. Standard items of a uniform nature may be accepted on the manufacturer's certification. Where specific performance and/or quality is referred to, it is the Contractor's responsibility to have the necessary tests performed by qualified persons to show that the contractual requirements are being met except those tests named in the Contact Documents to be performed by the Owner. Certified test results shall be submitted promptly in quadruplicate to the Engineer for review. All tests shall be performed in accordance with referenced standards. Where no reference is made, tests shall be performed in accordance with the methods prescribed by the American Society for Testing and Materials or such other organization as would be applicable.
- I. The Contractor shall pay for any retests resulting from its failure to provide Work that passes required tests.
- J. The Engineer, or the Owner appointed Inspectors may inspect any and all materials and Work. Such inspection may extend to any or all parts of the Work and to the preparation and manufacture of the materials to be used. The Inspectors shall not be authorized to alter, revoke, enlarge or relax the provisions of the Contract, nor will they be authorized to approve or accept any portion of the completed Work, nor to issue instructions contrary to the Contract. The Inspector shall inform the Engineer of the progress of the Work and the manner in which it is being done, and notify the Contractor of any infringement upon the Contract Documents. The Inspectors will have the authority to

reject defective materials or to suspend any Work that is being improperly done subject to the final decision of the Engineer.

3.12.5 Performance Evaluation

- A. The Owner may, upon completion of the Work or at any time during the Work, issue to the Contractor a written performance evaluation of the Contractor's performance of Work under this Contract. The evaluation will be based upon the Owner's and the Engineer's reports, inspections, and first-hand experience in dealing with the Contractor and the Contractor's representatives. The performance evaluation will indicate whether the Contractor's performance has been deemed "Satisfactory," "Unsatisfactory" or "Top Performance" with regard to the following criteria:
 - 1. Timeliness;
 - 2. Customer Service to Owner;
 - 3. Care of Owner's Customers;
 - 4. Financial Performance;
 - 5. Quality of Workmanship;
 - 6. Quality of Materials & Equipment;
 - 7. Safety;
 - 8. Environmental;
 - 9. Compliance with DBE/WBE Requirements; and
 - 10. Project Administration.

SECTION 3.13: OWNER FURNISHED ITEMS

3.13.1 Conditions of Provisioning

- A. The Contractor understands and agrees that it shall be solely responsible for providing everything necessary to perform the Work and to be in full compliance with the Contract Documents, except for those items specifically listed herein as being provided by the Owner.
- B. Any use of Owner furnished items on non-Owner work is a breach of the Contract and a violation of the law. All Owner furnished items are the property of the Owner when issued, stored by Contractor, and used in performance of the Work. The Contractor agrees that it shall use all Owner furnished items in a manner consistent with industry practice, codes, laws, considering the condition of the Owner furnished item, the skills of the

individuals using the Owner furnished item, and all environmental conditions. The Contractor understands and agrees that where the Owner and the Contractor shall share Owner furnished items, Owner usage shall always have priority over Contractor usage, and the Contract Administrator shall have sole authority to resolve any usage dispute and such resolution shall not result in any claim by Contractor.

C. The Contractor agrees to return to the Owner, and to the location as established by the Engineer, any unused or salvageable items prior to final payment. The Contractor agrees that the Owner has the right to audit and investigate at any time how the Contractor is using Owner furnished items. The Owner will bill the Contractor for unaccountable Owner furnished material at the current Owner cost.

3.13.2 Access to Work Locations

A. The Owner will provide, as indicated in the Contract Documents, and no later than the date when needed by the Contractor, access to the Work Location, including rights-of-way or access thereto, and such other lands that are designated for the Contractor's use. The Owner will secure easements for permanent structures or permanent changes in existing facilities, unless otherwise specified in the Contract Documents.

3.13.3 Contract Documents

A. After Contract Award, the Owner will furnish a maximum of one (1) complete set of the Contract Documents, or portions requested thereof, upon request by the Contractor. Additional copies will be supplied at cost to the Contractor.

3.13.4 Site Conditions

- A. The Owner will provide to Contractor test data results from field tests. Such data has been determined by the Owner to be sufficient to describe the conditions to be expected during the performance of the Work. The Contractor shall not be entitled to any claim for additional costs associated with any ground related Work, unless the actual conditions found substantially differ from those described by the test data.
- B. The Contractor is responsible for verifying Site conditions and obtaining additional data as the Contractor deems necessary. The Contractor will be responsible for all costs associated with the gathering of additional Site data.

SECTION 3.14: CHANGES TO WORK

3.14.1 Unforeseen Conditions

A. The Contractor understands and agrees that it is its responsibility to conduct due diligence prior to the start of Work. Such due diligence includes, but is not limited to, verifying all Work conditions, measurements, dimensions and latent and patent obstructions, the accuracy of drawings, test results, inspections and other informational materials provided in the Contract Documents, and any other causes for existing or potential changes to

the Work prior to initiating the Work. In the event that the Work must be changed due to the Contractor's failure to fulfill the above requirements, the Contractor understands and agrees that it will be responsible for all costs associated with the changed condition.

B. In the event, however, that the Contractor exercises the requisite due diligence and a change to the Work becomes necessary resulting from conditions that are clearly unforeseen and that could not have been discovered, the costs for adjusting the Work in response to such unforeseen conditions shall be addressed as stated herein in Article 3.14.2 below titled "Changes in the Work and Change Orders."

3.14.2 Changes in the Work and Change Orders

- A. The Engineer may issue to the Contractor a written Field Order to authorize minor changes to the Work having no impact on Contract Price or Contract Time. If the Contractor anticipates that the Field Order work will impact the Contract Price or Contract Time the Contractor should immediately notify the Engineer.
- B. In the event of an emergency endangering life or property where it is appropriate for the Contractor to take action, the Contractor shall undertake such actions to preserve life and property. The Owner and the Contractor will determine after emergency is concluded, the extent of out-of-scope work performed by the Contractor, and the Owner will issue a Change Order or amend the Contract for such work, if any and as necessary.
- C. Anything to the contrary notwithstanding, in the event that the Owner determines that a change must proceed immediately or if the Owner rejects all or a portion of the Contractor's estimated effect of a change, then the Owner may direct, and the Contractor shall commence immediately and perform until completion, the necessary services to implement the change. The Owner will issue such direction in the form of a written Work Change Directive. The Contractor shall be compensated for such change in the work, notwithstanding any objections of the Contractor, which objections shall be preserved and not waived by the Contractor's commencement or performance of the Work as directed by the Owner.
- D. To request or claim any change in the Work including, but not limited to change in scope, quantities, pricing, or schedules, the Contractor shall submit a letter to the Engineer stating such request or claim. The Engineer shall review and submit a written recommendation to the Owner. The Owner shall have the right to approve or disapprove any request or claim for change as it deems necessary and in its best interests consistent with the other Contract requirements. Whether requested by the Contractor, claimed by the Contractor, or contemplated by the Owner, no change shall be authorized unless made on an Owner Change Order signed by the Contract Administrator or through a formal written amendment to this Contract.
- E. All requests for changes filed by the Contractor shall be in writing delivered to the Owner's Representative within ten (10) business days of when the event that prompted

the claim was discovered or should have been discovered. The Contractor's failure to timely submit a written claim will constitute a waiver of the right to pursue a claim. Upon receipt of the Contractor's claim notification, Owner's Representative will provide written direction as to the procedures that will be used to address the request. The Contractor's request shall be sufficiently detailed including itemized costs, condition and work descriptions and other information necessary to evaluate the merits of the claim. A cost breakdown showing all labor, material and equipment shall be provided. The Owner's Representative may reject requests providing insufficient supporting information. Any change in the Contract resulting from the request will be incorporated into the Contract via a Change Order or Purchase Order. Where the Engineer and the Contractor are unable to reach a mutually acceptable resolution of request, the Owner's determination will be final.

- F. Where necessary, the Owner will determine the value of work covered by a change order using one of the following methods:
 - Where the work is covered by established unit prices contained in the contract, the
 unit price, if the Owner agrees that this is a fair and reasonable price; otherwise, a
 negotiated price will be applied to the quantity of work at the discretion of the Owner,
 - 2. By mutual acceptance of lump sum price,
 - 3. By actual cost and a mutually acceptable fixed amount for overhead and profit, or
 - 4. Where Bid Price was based on estimated quantities, prior to making final payment, the Owner will determine actual quantities using sampling, surveying and other industry recognized means and prepare a Change Order adjusting the price to reflect actual volumes.
- G. The Contractor shall immediately notify the Owner's Representative in writing of any unauthorized change in the scope of the Work or significant change in the quantities of the Work that may increase the Contract Price, require an extension of Work schedule, or negatively impact permitting or other regulatory requirements.
- H. The Contractor shall submit requests or claims for a Work schedule adjustment in writing and delivered to the Engineer within five (5) business days following the discovery of the event that prompted the claim or when the event should have been discovered. Where accepted by the Owner, changes to Work schedule will only adjust for critical path impacts. Failure to include the necessary critical path analysis with request shall be grounds for rejecting the claim. The path of critical events mentioned herein means the series of interdependent Work events that must be sequentially performed and that require a longer total time to perform than any other such series. Upon receipt of the Contractor's request for a change in the Work schedule, the Owner's Representative will provide any additional directions in writing detailing the procedures that will be used to resolve the request, including provision of time impact or manpower and equipment loading schedules. Where the Owner and the Contractor

are unable to reach a mutually acceptable resolution of request, the Owner will make a commercially reasonable determination, made in accordance with the Owner's established policies and procedures, which shall be final.

I. All Work defined on Field Orders, Work Change Directives and Change Orders shall be subject to the conditions of the Contract, unless specifically noted on the Field Order Form, Work Change Directive Form, or Change Order.

3.14.3 No Damage for Delay

- A. Damage, loss, expense or delay incurred or experienced by the Contractor in the prosecution of the Work by reason of unforeseen circumstances, unanticipated difficulties and obstructions, bad weather, or other mischances that are generally considered to be a part of the usual hazards associated with Work, shall be borne entirely by the Contractor and shall not be the subject of any claim for additional compensation or change in Approved Schedule.
- B. The Contractor agrees that its sole remedy for any claims, damages or losses related to any delay, disruption or hindrance alleged to be caused by the Owner or any of the Owner's agents or other contractors, shall be an extension of the Contract completion date. As such, the Contractor shall not recover any cost associated with extended home/field office overhead, idle labor/equipment/materials, subcontractors' claims or any other miscellaneous costs.
- C. Any demand for equitable time adjustment must be served in writing to the Owner within five (5) calendar days of the event giving rise to any delay, disruption or hindrance. Any request for an equitable time adjustment shall be accompanied by a logical time impact analysis, demonstrating the nature and magnitude of the event to the critical path. Any request that is not clearly shown to be an impact to the project's critical path will be denied.
- D. Failure to strictly comply with these requirements shall be deemed a waiver of any right to seek equitable adjustment.

3.14.4 Notification of Surety

A. The Contractor shall notify its surety of any changes affecting the general scope of the Work or altering the Contract Price.

3.14.5 Contingency Work

A. The Owner will issue a written Change Order to incorporate cost or schedule changes into the Contract. Issuance of a Change Order is solely at the discretion of the Owner. The Change Order shall be used for increases or decreases in the Contract Price, within the contingency amount set forth in the Contract Price, or to make changes in schedule for performance of the Work.

- B. The Contractor should not expect that any Change Orders for contingency work will be issued. Owner shall have no obligation to pay for contingency work unless the same is performed pursuant to a written Change Order form signed before the contingency work is commenced.
- C. The Contractor and the Engineer shall mutually agree to the pricing of a Change Order for contingency work. Any negotiated increase or decrease in the Contract Price shall be based on the Contractor's costs for labor, materials and supplies directly applicable to the increase or decrease plus ten percent (10%) thereof for Contractor's supervision, overhead, bonds and profit. For any negotiated increase or decrease, the Contractor will provide a complete detailed breakdown for all labor, material, and equipment, etc. associated with the change. A lump sum figure submitted with no breakdown will be returned to the Contractor without review.
- D. Cost Reimbursable (Time and Materials) Method:
 - 1. The Owner may, at its sole discretion, implement cost reimbursable procedures in order to limit the costs for performance of contingency work. Also, whenever the Contractor and the Owner are unable to agree on costs for an increase in the Work, the Owner or Engineer shall order the Contractor to proceed with the Work on a cost reimbursable (time and material) basis. The Owner will pay the Contractor for the contingency work in the manner hereinafter described, and the compensation thus provided shall constitute full payment for said work. The Owner shall issue the Change Order for the Contractor to perform the specific contingency work with payment determined as follows:
 - a. For materials purchased by the Contractor and used in the work, the Contractor shall be paid the actual cost of such materials, including sales taxes if required, and freight and delivery charges as shown by original receipted bills. A mark-up amount equal to ten percent (10%) of the sum thereof shall be added to this cost. The Owner reserves the right to select and approve, or to reject the materials to be used and the sources of supply of any materials furnished by the Contractor.
 - b. The Contractor will be paid the cost of wages for all labor that is engaged in the Work, plus the actual cost chargeable to the Work for workers' compensation insurance, social security taxes, unemployment compensation insurance and such additional amounts as are paid by the Contractor. A total mark-up shall be added equal to ten percent (10%) of wages and other cost listed above. In evidence of the costs of labor the Contractor shall provide a certified statement of wages actually paid, together with copies of supporting payrolls. Wage rates used in determining the amount of the payment will be the actual wage rates paid by the Contractor for Work under this Contract, except that no rate used shall exceed the rate of comparable labor currently employed on the project.
 - c. Payment for the services of foremen in direct charge of the specific operation will be made. Payment for the service of superintendents, timekeepers or other

overhead personnel will not be made nor will payment for the services of watchmen be made unless required specifically by the contingency Work. The actual function performed by an employee rather than its payroll title will be the criterion used in determining the eligibility of an employee's services for payment under this provision.

- d. The types and amounts of equipment and machinery used by the Contractor in carrying out its work under the contingency shall be made in keeping with normal practice for work of similar nature. Owner may, at its discretion, limit by specific instruction the types and amounts of equipment and machinery to be used. For all equipment and machinery used in the contingency work, the Owner will pay eighty percent (80%) of the rental value as set forth in the Blue Book value or actual cost, whichever is less, to which no mark-up percentages will be added.
- e. In computing the hourly rental of such equipment, less than thirty (30) minutes shall be considered 1/2 hour except when the minimum rental time to be paid is one hour. Rental time will not be allowed while equipment is inoperative due to breakdowns. The rental time of equipment to be paid for shall be the time the equipment is in operation on the contingency work being performed. The Contractor shall be reimbursed for the time required to move the equipment to the Work, and return it to its original location, only if the Contractor is charged this cost by the renting agency. Excess rental time of equipment due to inefficient work practices will not be reimbursed.
- f. No payment will be allowed for the use of small tools and minor items of equipment, which, as used herein, are defined as individual tools or pieces of equipment having a replacement value of \$500.00 or less.
- g. The Contractor and the Engineer shall compare records of the Work performed on a Cost Reimbursable basis at the end of each day. These records shall be prepared by the Contractor and shall be signed by both the Owner and the Contractor's Representative. A copy of these records shall be submitted to the Owner with the invoice for the work.
- h. Payment for cost reimbursable contingency work will be included in monthly progress payments.
- i. The Contractor's Subcontractors will be allowed a ten percent (10%) mark-up on Work performed by their own forces. The Contractor will be allowed a five percent (5%) mark-up on the Subcontractor's costs (i.e. labor, materials and equipment) only, no mark-up on the Subcontractor's profit.

3.14.6 Suspension of Work

A. The Owner may suspend the performance of the Work rendered by providing the Contractor with five (5) business days written notice of such suspension. Schedules and

compensation for performance of the Work shall be amended by mutual agreement to reflect such suspension. In the event of suspension of Work, the Contractor shall resume the full performance of the Work when the Owner gives written direction to do so. Suspension of Work caused by the Contractor's sole negligence or failure to perform shall not affect the Contractor's compensation as outlined in the Contract Documents.

3.14.7 Unauthorized Work

A. The Owner will consider any Work done without lines and grades given, Work done beyond the lines and grades shown on the Contract or as given, or any extra Work done without written authority, as unauthorized Work and will not pay the Contractor for such Work. If so ordered by the Contract Administrator, the Contractor shall remove such Work and properly replace it at the Contractor's own expense.

3.14.8 Payment of Overtime

- A. Any Overtime required for the Contractor to complete the Work within the Contract Time shall be at the sole cost and expense of the Contractor.
- B. If the Owner requires the Contractor to perform Overtime Work in order to complete the Work prior to the Contract Time, the Contractor shall bill the Owner for the Overtime such that only the actual costs incurred by the Contractor relating to the payment of Overtime premiums, in accordance with its labor policies and applicable laws. Such actual costs include Overtime wage premium, and additional taxes and insurance directly associated with the Overtime wage premium. The Contractor agrees that it will not charge for personnel paid a salary, or other form of compensation such that the Contractor incurs no direct costs as a result of the Overtime. The Contractor shall total the direct Overtime charges, and add the agreed upon overhead rate, but in no case, shall such overhead rate exceed ten percent (10%) of the total overtime costs.
- C. Overtime may only be charged to the Owner if the Contractor was directed in writing by the Contract Administrator to incur the Overtime. Such authorization for Overtime shall be accompanied by a Change Order.

3.14.9 Scheduling of Overtime (Contractor Initiated Overtime)

A. Whenever the Contractor schedules Work beyond ten (10) hours per day, beyond fifty (50) hours per week, or on Saturdays, Sundays, or Owner Holidays, then the Contractor shall arrange, in advance, for the Engineer to inspect the Work performed during Overtime. The Contractor shall not perform Overtime Work or after-hours Work without an Owner's Representative at the Work Location or available to perform the inspections, as directed by the Contract Administrator. Except where the Owner has requested the Contractor schedule Overtime to perform additional Work, the Contractor shall reimburse the Owner for any additional costs associated with the Owner's Representatives' Overtime pay.

SECTION 3.15: LABOR

3.15.1 DBE, MBE and/or WBE Requirements

A. Contractor represents that it will comply with all applicable provisions regarding DBE, MBE and/or WBE enterprises requirements stated in the DIVISION 4: SUPPLEMENTAL CONDITIONS.

3.15.2 Contractor's Labor Relations

A. The Contractor shall negotiate and resolve any disputes between the Contractor and its employees, or anyone representing its employees. The Contractor shall immediately notify the Owner of any actual or potential labor dispute that may affect the Work and shall inform the Owner of all actions it is taking to resolve the dispute.

3.15.3 Minimum Qualifications of Contractor Personnel

- A. All Contractor personnel shall be at a minimum qualified for the tasks they are assigned. All Contractor personnel shall act in a professional manner, with due sensitivity to other persons at the Work Location. If the Owner, at its sole discretion, determines that a Contractor's person is unqualified, unfit, or otherwise unsuitable for the tasks assigned, the Contractor shall immediately stop the person from performing the tasks, and replace the person with a qualified individual. The Contractor shall pay all costs associated with replacing the unqualified person including, but not limited to, termination, recruiting, training, and certification costs.
- B. The Contractor personnel assigned supervisory roles, and those with increased authority shall be held to strict scrutiny of their qualifications and suitability for their positions. In addition to the other provisions of this clause, the Contractor shall provide written documentation as to experience, education, licenses, certifications, professional affiliations, and other qualifications of the individual, within one (1) day of request from the Engineer. Any changes to such personnel after approval shall require the written permission of the Engineer.

3.15.4 Nondiscrimination

- A. Contractor represents that it will comply with all applicable provisions regarding equal employment requirements stated in the DIVISION 4: SUPPLEMENTAL CONDITIONS.
- B. The Contractor represents that it has adopted and will maintain a policy of nondiscrimination against employees or applicants for employment on account of race, religion, sex, color, national origin, age or handicap, in all areas of employee relations, throughout the Term of this Contract. The Contractor agrees that on written request, it will allow the Owner reasonable access to the Contractor's records of employment, employment advertisement, application forms and other pertinent data and records for the purpose of investigation to ascertain compliance with the nondiscrimination provisions of this Contract; provided however, the Contractor shall not be required to

produce, for inspection, records covering periods of time more than one (1) year from the effective date of this Contract.

- C. The Contractor shall comply with the following executive orders, acts, and all rules and regulations implementing said orders or acts, which are by this reference incorporated herein as if set out in their entirety:
 - 1. The provisions of Presidential Order 11246, as amended, and the portions of Executive Orders 11701 and 11758 as applicable to Equal Employment Opportunity;
 - 2. The provisions of section 503 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as amended, and the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA); and
 - 3. The provisions of the Employment and Training of Veterans Act, 38 U.S.C. 4212 (formerly 2012).
- D. The Contractor agrees that if any of the Work of this Contract will be performed by a Subcontractor, then the provisions of this subsection shall be incorporated into and become a part of the subcontract.

3.15.5 Show-Up Pay

A. In the event that inclement weather prevents the Contractor from performing Work, the Contractor may be obligated to pay its crew a show-up pay. The Contractor shall be solely responsible for providing this pay.

SECTION 3.16: RIGHTS & REMEDIES

3.16.1 Intellectual Property

- A. The Contractor grants to the Owner an irrevocable, perpetual, royalty free and fully paid-up right to use (and such right includes, without limitation, a right to copy, modify and create derivative works from the subject matter of the grant of the right to sublicense all, or any portion of, the foregoing rights to an affiliate or a third party service provider) the Contractor's intellectual property (including, without limitation, all trade secrets, patents, copyright and know-how) that is contained or embedded in, required for the use of, that was used in the production of or is required for the reproduction, modification, maintenance, servicing, improvement or continued operation of any applicable unit of Work.
- B. If the Work contains, has embedded in, requires for the use of any third party intellectual property, or if the third party intellectual property is required for the reproduction, modification, maintenance, servicing, improvement or continued operation of the Work, the Contractor shall secure for the Owner an irrevocable, perpetual, royalty free and fully paid-up right to use all third party intellectual property. The Contractor shall secure such right at its expense and prior to incorporating any third party intellectual property (including, without limitation, all trade secrets, patents,

copyright and know-how) into any Work, including, without limitation, all drawings or data provided under the Contract, and such right must include, without limitation, a right to copy, modify and create derivative works from the subject matter of the grant of the right and a right to sublicense all or any portion of the foregoing rights to an affiliate or a third party service provider.

- C. Should the Owner, or any third party obtaining such work product through the Owner, use the Work or any part thereof for any purpose other than that which is specified herein, it shall be at the Owner's sole risk.
- D. The Contractor will, at its expense, defend all claims, actions or proceedings against the Owner based on any allegation that the Work, or any part of the Work, constitutes an infringement of any patent or any other intellectual property right, and will pay to the Owner all costs, damages, charges, and expenses occasioned to the Owner by reason thereof. The Owner will give the Contractor written notice of any such claim, action or proceeding and, at the request and expense of the Contractor, the Owner will provide the Contractor with available information, assistance and authority for the defense.
- E. If, in any action or proceeding, the Work, or any part thereof, is held to constitute an infringement, the Contractor will forthwith either secure for Owner the right to continue using the Work or will, at the Contractor's expense, replace the infringing items with noninfringing Work or make modifications as necessary so that the Work no longer infringes.
- F. The Contractor will obtain and pay for all patent and other intellectual property royalties and license fees required in respect of the Work.

3.16.2 Offsets

A. If the Contractor is in violation of any requirement of the Contract, the Owner may withhold payments that may be due the Contractor, and may offset existing balances with any Owner incurred costs against funds due the Contractor under this and any other Contractor Contract with the Owner, as a result of the violation, or other damages as allowed by the Contract Documents and applicable law.

3.16.3 Proprietary Information

A. The Contractor shall not copy, reproduce, or disclose to third parties, except in connection with the Work, any information that the Owner furnishes to the Contractor. The Contractor shall insert in any subcontract a restriction on the use of all information furnished by the Owner. The Contractor shall not use this information on another project. All information furnished by the Owner will be returned to the Owner upon completion of the Work. The Contractor may retain a copy of such information solely for its own project records.

3.16.4 Removal of Work

A. The Contractor shall not sell, assign, mortgage, hypothecate or remove Work that has been delivered to or installed at the Work Location without the Owner's approval.

3.16.5 Right to Audit and Financial Reporting

- A. Upon the Owner's requests, the Contractor agrees to allow the Owner to audit its financial and operating records for the purpose of determining invoice accuracy, or otherwise assessing compliance with the Contract Documents. The Contractor agrees to allow Owner personnel, their qualified representative, and/or representatives as stated in DIVISION 4: SUPPLEMENTAL CONDITIONS access the records at Contractor's office, with three (3) business days written notice, for a reasonable period, not less than five (5) business days, in a workspace suitable for the audit provided by the Contractor. All audit work will be done on the Contractor's premises, and no Contractor documentation will be removed from the Contractor's offices. The Contractor agrees to have knowledgeable personnel available to answer questions for the auditors during the time they are at the Contractor's offices and for a period of two (2) weeks thereafter. The Contractor shall provide to the Owner audited financial statements for the most recent fiscal year upon the Owner's request, not later than five (5) business days after receipt of written request.
- B. Contractor represents that it will comply with all applicable provisions stated in the DIVISION 4: SUPPLEMENTAL CONDITIONS.

3.16.6 Title to Materials Found

A. The Owner shall retain the title to water, mineral matter, timber and any other materials that the Contractor, or its Subcontractors, encounter during the excavation or other operations of the Work. The Contractor shall use or dispose of this material in accordance with the Contract or written instructions from the Engineer. Any materials found in the excavation, or other operations of the Contractor, that are of archaeological or historical value shall be left in place. The Contractor shall immediately notify the Owner of the find and shall take no further action until directed by the Owner.

SECTION 3.17: REPRESENTATIONS & WARRANTIES

3.17.1 Contractor's Knowledge of the Work

A. The Contractor represents that the Contract Price and the detailed schedule for the execution of the Work are based on its own knowledge and judgment of the conditions and hazards involved, and not upon any representation of the Owner. The Owner assumes no responsibility for any understanding or representation made by any of its representatives during or prior to execution of the Contract unless such understandings or representations are expressly stated in the Contract and the Contract expressly provides that the Owner assumes the responsibility.

3.17.2 Contractor's Plans and Specifications

A. All plans and specifications that the Contractor provides for any building, structure, system or equipment where required by federal, state, local laws and regulation as part of the Work shall bear the seal of a Professional Engineer duly registered in the State of Florida at no cost to the Owner.

3.17.3 Contractor's Warranties

- A. The Contractor unconditionally warrants to the Owner for a period of not less than two (2) years (unless otherwise stated in DIVISION 6: TECHNICAL SPECIFICATIONS) from the earlier of Final Acceptance or Substantial Completion and beginning of normal use by the Owner, that all Work furnished under the Contract including, but not limited to, materials, equipment, workmanship, and intellectual property, including derivative works will be:
 - 1. Performed in a safe, professional and workman like manner;
 - 2. Free from Defects in design, material, and workmanship;
 - 3. Fit for the use and purpose specified or referred to in the Contract;
 - 4. Suitable for any other use or purpose as represented in writing by the Contractor;
 - 5. In conformance with the Contract Documents; and
 - 6. Merchantable, new and of first-class quality.
- B. The Contractor warrants that the Work shall conform to all applicable standards and regulations promulgated by federal, state, local laws and regulations, standards boards, organizations of the Department of State, and adopted industry association standards. If the Work fails to conform to such laws, rules, standards and regulations, the Owner may return the Work for correction or replacement at the Contractor's expense, or return the Work at the Contractor's expense and cancel the Contract. If the Contractor performs services that fail to conform to such standards and regulations the Contractor shall make the necessary corrections at Contractor's expense. The Owner may correct services to comply with standards and regulations at the Contractor's expense if the Contractor fails to make the appropriate corrections within a reasonable time.
- C. If the Work includes items covered under a manufacturer's or Subcontractor's warranty that exceeds the requirements stated herein, the Contractor shall transfer such warranty to the Owner. Such warranties, do not in any way limit the warranty provided by the Contractor to the Owner.
- D. If, within the warranty period, the Owner determines that any of the workmanship or supplies are defective or exhibit signs of deterioration, in the opinion of the Owner, the Contractor, at its own expense, shall repair, adjust, or replace the defective Work to the

complete satisfaction of the Owner. The Contractor shall pay all costs of removal, transportation, reinstallation, repair, and all other associated costs incurred in connection with correcting such Defects in the Work. The Contractor shall correct any Defects only at times designated by the Owner. The Contractor shall extend the warranty period an additional twelve (12) months (thirty-six (36) months total) for any portion of the Work that has undergone warranty repair or replacement.

- E. When operational conditions warrant, the Owner may repair or replace any defective equipment at the Contractor's expense. The Owner may repair or replace any defective Work at the Contractor's expense when the Contractor fails to correct the Defect within a reasonable time of receiving written notification of the Defect by the Owner, when the Contractor is unable to respond in an emergency situation, or when necessary to prevent the Owner from substantial financial loss. Where the Owner makes repairs or replaces defective Work, the Owner will issue the Contractor a written accounting and invoice of all such work to correct Defects. The Contractor's liability to the Owner for the costs of removal, transportation, reinstallation, and all other associated costs incurred in connection with correcting Defects in the Work will be limited to 1.5 times the original installed purchase price of the specific Work.
- F. The Contractor's warranty excludes remedy for damage or Defect caused by abuse, improper or insufficient maintenance, improper operation, or wear and tear under normal usage.

3.17.4 Competent Performance of the Work

A. The Contractor represents that it will conduct the Work in a manner and with sufficient labor, materials and equipment necessary to affect a diligent pursuance of the Work through Final Completion. If, in the sole opinion of the Owner, the Contractor fails to perform the Work as represented, the Owner may, at its sole discretion, take charge of the Work and furnish and provide the labor, materials, and equipment necessary to complete the Work as planned within the required time if the Owner deems the organization of the Contractor or its management, or the manner in which Contractor is performing the Work, to be manifestly incompetent or inadequate to complete the Work as specified. The Contractor shall pay the Owner for the cost of all such Work completed by the Owner.

3.17.5 Encroachment on Outside Property

A. The Contractor warrants that it shall not encroach on any rights or property of the public or adjoining property owners and shall hold the Owner harmless because of any encroachments that may result from the Contractor's lack of proper layout. If such an encroachment occurs, the Contractor agrees to remove any Work or portion thereof, that encroaches on the property of others, or that is built beyond legal building or setback limits, and shall rebuild the affected Work, or portion thereof, at the proper location, all without extra cost to the Owner.

3.17.6 Free and Clear Title

A. The Contractor warrants that it has title to all equipment and materials furnished under the Contract where title will pass to the Owner, and that the equipment and materials passed to the Owner are free and clear of all liens, claims, security interests and encumbrances.

3.17.7 Performance of the Work

A. The Contractor represents and warrants that it has the full corporate right, power and authority to enter into the Contract and to perform the acts required of it hereunder, and that the performance of its obligations and duties hereunder does not and will not violate any Contract to which the Contractor is a party or by which it is otherwise bound. The Contractor warrants that all items provided under the Contract shall be free from Defect and services shall be performed in a professional manner and with professional diligence and skill, consistent with the prevailing standards of the industry. The Contractor warrants that the Work will meet the functional and performance requirements defined in the Contract.

3.17.8 Safety Representation

A. The Contractor represents and warrants to the Owner that it has the capacity to train and supervise its employees, Subcontractors and Suppliers to ensure the Work complies with all safety requirements of the Contract Documents. The Contractor shall be responsible for executing the necessary safety training and supervision of its employees and Subcontractors, and acknowledges that the Owner is not responsible for training or supervising the Contractor's employees, except when noted for the purpose of enforcing compliance with these safety requirements.

SECTION 3.18: TERM & TERMINATION

3.18.1 Term of Contract (Through Work Completion)

A. The Contract shall be in force through completion of all Work, Final Acceptance and final payment, including resolution of all disputes, claims, or suits, if any. Certain provisions of this Contract may extend past termination including Warranty provisions.

3.18.2 Termination for Convenience

- A. The Owner shall have the absolute right to terminate in whole or part the Contract, with or without cause, at any time after Award upon written notification of such termination.
- B. In the event of termination for convenience, the Owner will pay the Contractor for all disbursements and expenses that the Contractor has incurred, or those for which it becomes obligated prior to receiving the Owner's notice of termination. Owner will also pay the Contractor costs incurred less the reasonable resale value, of materials or

equipment that the Contractor has already ordered, obtained or fabricated in connection with the Contract.

- C. Upon receipt of such notice of termination, the Contractor shall stop the performance of the Work hereunder except as may be necessary to carry out such termination and take any other action toward termination of the Work that the Owner may reasonably request, including all reasonable efforts to provide for a prompt and efficient transition as directed by the Owner.
- D. The Owner will have no liability to the Contractor for any cause whatsoever arising out of, or in connection with, termination (whether for convenience or default) including, but not limited to, lost profits, lost opportunities, or resulting change in business condition, except as expressly stated within these Contract Documents.

3.18.3 Termination for Default

- A. Owner may give the Contractor written notice to discontinue all Work under the Contract in the event that:
 - 1. The Contractor assigns or subcontracts the Work without prior written permission;
 - 2. Any petition is filed or any proceeding is commenced by or against the Contractor for relief under any bankruptcy or insolvency laws;
 - 3. A receiver is appointed for the Contractor's properties or the Contractor commits any act of insolvency (however evidenced);
 - 4. The Contractor makes an assignment for the benefit of creditors;
 - 5. The Contractor suspends the operation of a substantial portion of its business;
 - 6. The Contractor suspends the whole or any part of the Work to the extent that it impacts the Contractor's ability to meet the Work schedule, or the Contractor abandons the whole or any part of the Work;
 - 7. The Contractor, at any time, violates any of the conditions or provisions of the Contract Documents, or the Contractor fails to perform as specified in the Contract Documents, or the Contractor is not complying with the Contract Documents;
 - 8. The Contractor attempts to willfully impose upon the Owner items or workmanship that are, in the Owner's sole opinion, defective or of unacceptable quality;
 - 9. The Contractor breaches any of the representations or warranties;
 - 10. The Contractor is determined, in the Owner's sole opinion, to have misrepresented the utilization of funds or misappropriated property belonging to the Owner; or

- 11. There is any material change in the financial or business condition of the Contractor.
- B. If, within twenty-four (24) hours after service of such notice upon the Contractor, an arrangement satisfactory to the Owner has not been made by the Contractor for continuance of the Work, the Owner may terminate the Contract.
- C. Once a Contractor is declared in default, the surety shall assume the Contractor's place in all respects and shall be paid by the Owner all monies, if any, due the Contractor at the time of such notice to discontinue, or any monies thereafter that may become due the Contractor in accordance with the terms of the Contract.
- D. If the Contractor fails to make arrangements satisfactory to the Owner within ten (10) days after service to the Contractor of a notice to discontinue Work, and in the case where a Payment Bond and a Performance Bond are in effect, the surety has not exercised its option, then without further notice to the Contractor or the surety, the Owner may terminate the Contract and shall have the power to complete the Work herein described as it may determine. In such a case, the Owner shall have the right to take possession of and use any of the materials, plant, tools, equipment, supplies and property of any kind provided by the Contractor for the purpose of this Work.
- E. The Owner will charge the expense of completing the Work to the Contractor and will deduct such expenses from monies due, or which at any time thereafter may become due, to the Contractor. If such expenses are more than the sum that would otherwise have been payable under the Contract, then the Contractor shall pay the amount of such excess to the Owner upon notice of the expenses from the Owner. The Owner shall not be required to obtain the lowest price for completing the Work under the Contract, but may make such expenditures that, in its sole judgment, shall best accomplish such completion. The Owner will, however, make reasonable efforts to mitigate the excess costs of completing the Work.
- F. The Contract Documents shall in no way limit the Owner's right to all remedies for nonperformance provided under law or in equity, except as specifically set forth herein. In the event of termination for nonperformance, the Contractor shall immediately surrender all Work records to the Owner. In such a case, the Owner may offset any money owed to the Contractor against any liabilities resulting from the Contractor's nonperformance.
- G. The Owner has no responsibility whatsoever to issue notices of any kind, including but not limited to deficient performance letters and scorecards, to the Contractor regarding its performance prior to default by Contractor for performance related issues.
- H. The Owner shall have no liability to the Contractor for termination costs arising out of the Contract, or any of the Contractor's subcontracts, as a result of termination for default.

SECTION 3.19: MISCELLANEOUS TERMS & CONDITIONS

3.19.1 Ambiguous Contract Provisions

A. The parties agree that this Contract has been the subject of meaningful analysis and/or discussions of the specifications, terms and conditions contained in this Contract. Therefore, doubtful or ambiguous provisions, if any, contained in this Contract will not be construed against the party who physically prepared this Contract. The rule commonly known as "Fortius Contra Proferentum" will not be applied to this Contract or any interpretation thereof.

3.19.2 Amendments

A. This Contract may not be altered or amended except in writing, signed by the Owner and the Contractor, or each of their duly authorized representatives.

3.19.3 Choice of Law

A. This Contract, and the rights and duties of the parties arising from or relating to this Contract or its subject matter, shall be construed in accordance with the laws of the State of Florida and the ordinances of the City of Bowling Green without regard to its conflicts of provisions. Each of the parties irrevocably submits to the exclusive jurisdiction of the courts of Florida, and further agree that the venue for any legal action brought by or filed against the Owner relating to any matter arising under this Contract shall be exclusively in that state or federal court, sitting in Hardee County, Florida that has jurisdiction over such legal actions.

3.19.4 Confidentiality and Public Record Laws

A. Any information disclosed by one party ("Disclosing Party") to the other party ("Recipient") in connection with this Contract that is marked confidential or that due to its character and nature, a reasonable person under like circumstances would treat as confidential (the "Confidential Information") will be protected and held in confidence by the Recipient. Confidential Information will be used only for the purposes of this Contract and related internal administrative purposes. Disclosure of the Confidential Information will be restricted to the Recipient's employees, contractors, or alliance companies on a "need to know" basis in connection with the Work, who are bound by confidentiality obligations no less stringent than these prior to any disclosure. Each party may disclose Confidential Information relating to the Work to providers of goods and services for the engagement to the extent such disclosure is necessary and reasonably anticipated. Confidential Information does not include information which: (i) is already known to Recipient at the time of disclosure; (ii) is or becomes publicly known through no wrongful act or failure of the Recipient; (iii) is independently developed by Recipient without benefit of Disclosing Party's Confidential Information; or (iv) is received from a third party which is not under and does not thereby breach an obligation of confidentiality. Each party agrees to protect the other's Confidential Information at all times and in the same manner as each protects the confidentiality of its own proprietary and confidential

materials, but in no event with less than a reasonable standard of care. A Recipient may disclose Confidential Information to the extent required by law, but that disclosure does not relieve Recipient of its confidentiality obligations with respect to any other party. Except as to the confidentiality of trade secrets, these confidentiality restrictions and obligations will terminate five (5) years after the expiration or termination of the Contract under which the Confidential Information was disclosed, unless the law requires a longer period.

B. The parties acknowledge that the Owner is a body politic and corporate that is subject to Chapter 119, Florida Statutes, and related statutes known as the "Public Records Laws". If a request is made to view such Confidential Information, the Owner will notify the Contractor of such request and the date that such records will be released to the requester unless the Contractor obtains a court order enjoining such disclosure. If the Contractor fails to obtain that court order enjoining disclosure, the Owner will release the requested information on the date specified. Such release shall be deemed to be made with the Contractor's consent and will not be deemed to be a violation of law, including but not limited to laws concerning trade secrets, copyright or other intellectual property. In the event the Contractor breaches this Contract, then the Contractor hereby grants the Owner a limited license to use the Confidential Information in any reasonable way in order to mitigate the Owner's damages.

3.19.5 Cumulative Remedies

A. Except as otherwise expressly provided in this Contract, all remedies provided for in this Contract shall be cumulative and in addition to and not in lieu of any other remedies available to either party at law, in equity or otherwise.

3.19.6 Entire Agreement

- A. This Contract contains all of the understandings and agreements of the parties hereto in respect of the subject matter hereof as of the Effective Date of the Contract. Any and all prior understandings and agreements, expressed or implied, between the parties hereto in respect of the subject matter hereof shall be superseded hereby. Parol or extrinsic evidence will not be used to vary or contradict the express terms of this Contract.
- B. The Contract Documents are complementary; what is called for by one is binding as if called for by all. The Contractor shall, upon discovery, inform the Owner in writing of any conflict, error or discrepancy in the Contract Documents. Should the Contractor proceed with the Work prior to written resolution of the error or conflict by the Owner, all Work done is at the sole risk of the Contractor.

3.19.7 Expanded Definitions

A. Unless otherwise specified, words importing the singular include the plural and vice versa and words importing gender include all genders. The term "including" means "including without limitation", and the terms "include", "includes" and "included" have similar meanings. Any reference in this Contract to any other agreement is deemed to

include a reference to that other agreement, as amended, supplemented or restated from time to time. Any reference in the Contract to "all applicable laws, rules and regulations" means all federal, state and local laws, rules, regulations, ordinances, statutes, codes and practices.

3.19.8 Force Majeure

- A. No party shall be liable for any default or delay in the performance of its obligations under this Contract due to an act of God or other event to the extent that: (a) the non-performing party is without fault in causing such default or delay; (b) such default or delay could not have been prevented by reasonable precautions; and (c) such default or delay could not have been reasonably circumvented by the non-performing party through the use of alternate sources, work-around plans or other means. Such causes include, but are not limited to: act of civil or military authority (including but not limited to courts or administrative agencies); acts of God; war; terrorist attacks; riot; insurrection; inability of the Owner to secure approval, validation or sale of bonds; inability of the Owner or the Contractor to obtain any required permits, licenses or zoning; blockades; embargoes; sabotage; epidemics; fires; hurricanes, tornados, floods; or strikes.
- B. In the event of any delay resulting from such causes, the time for performance of each of the parties hereunder (including the payment of monies if such event actually prevents payment) shall be extended for a period of time reasonably necessary to overcome the effect of such delay, except as provided for elsewhere in the Contract Documents.
- C. In the event of any delay or nonperformance resulting from such causes, the party affected shall promptly notify the other in writing of the nature, cause, date of commencement and the anticipated impact of such delay or nonperformance. Such written notice, including Change Orders, shall indicate the extent, if any, to which it is anticipated that any delivery or completion dates will be thereby affected.

3.19.9 Headings

A. The division of this Contract into sections, the insertion of headings and/or index numbers and the provision of a table of contents are for convenience of reference only and are not to affect the construction or interpretation of this Agreement.

3.19.10 Language and Measurements

A. All communication between the Contractor and the Owner, including all documents, notes on drawings, and submissions required under the Contract, will be in the English language. Unless otherwise specified in the Contract, the US System of Measurements shall be used for quantity measurement. All instrumentation and equipment will be calibrated in US System of Measures.

3.19.11 Nonwaiver

A. Failure by either party to insist upon strict performance of any of the provisions of the Contract will not release either party from any of its obligations under the Contract.

3.19.12 Publicity and Advertising

A. The Contractor shall not take any photographs for the purpose of making any announcements or release any information concerning the Contract or the Work to any member of the public, press or official body unless prior written consent is obtained from the Owner. The Owner is governed by the Florida Public Records Laws therefore all Contract Documents are available for public inspection. In addition, the Owner is governed by Florida Sunshine Laws and as such, certain meetings are required to be open to the public.

3.19.13 References

A Unless otherwise specified, each reference to a statute, ordinance, law, policy, procedure, process, document, drawing, or other informational material is deemed to be a reference to that item, as amended or supplemented from time to time. All referenced items shall have the enforcement ability as if they are fully incorporated herein.

3.19.14 Relationship of the Parties

A. The Contractor agrees that it shall perform the Work as an independent contractor and that it does not (a) have the power or authority to bind the Owner or to assume or create any obligation or responsibility, express or implied, on the Owner's part or in the Owner's name, except as may be authorized by the Owner under a separate written document, or (b) represent to any person or entity that it has such power or authority except as may be authorized by the Owner under a separate written document.

3.19.15 Severability

A. In the event that any provision of this Contract is found to be unenforceable under applicable law, the parties agree to replace such provision with a substitute provision that most nearly reflects the original intentions of the parties and is enforceable under applicable law, and the remainder of this Contract shall continue in full force and effect.

3.19.16 Subcontracting or Assigning of Contract

- A. Each party agrees that it shall not subcontract, assign, delegate, or otherwise dispose of the Contract, the duties to be performed under the Contract, or the monies to become due under the Contract without the other party's prior written consent.
- B. The assignment of the Contract will not relieve either of the parties of any of its obligations until such obligations have been assumed in writing by the assignee. If the

Contract is assigned by either of the parties, it will be binding upon and will inure to the benefit of the permitted assignee. The Contractor shall be liable for all acts and omissions of its assignee or its Subcontractor.

3.19.17 Survival

A. The obligations of the Owner and the Contractor under this Contract that are not, by the express terms of this Contract, fully to be performed during the Term, shall survive the termination of this Contract for any reason.

3.19.18 Third Party Agreements

A. Unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Owner, the Owner shall have no obligation to enter into any third party agreements under this Contract. Such third party agreements shall include, but not be limited to: joint check agreements, and revocable or irrevocable letters of direction with sureties. In the event the Owner agrees to execute any such agreement(s), then such agreement(s) shall incorporate additional language as required by the Owner.

3.19.19 Time and Date

A. Unless otherwise specified, references to time of day or date mean the local time or date in Bowling Green, Florida. If under this Contract any payment or calculation is to be made, or any other action is to be taken, on or as of a day that is not a regular business day for the Owner, that payment or calculation is to be made, and that other action is to be taken, as applicable, on or as of the next day that is a regular business day. Where reference is made to day or days, it means calendar days. Where reference is made to workday, workdays, business day, or business days, it means regular working days for the Owner.

3.19.20 Waiver of Claims

- A. A delay or omission by the Owner hereto to exercise any right or power under this Contract shall not be construed to be a waiver thereof. A waiver by the Owner under this Contract shall not be effective unless it is in writing and signed by the party granting the waiver. A waiver by a party of a right under, or breach of, this Contract shall not be construed to operate as a waiver of any other or successive rights under, or breaches of, this Contract.
- B. The Contractor's obligations to perform and complete the Work in accordance with the Contract shall be absolute. None of the following will constitute a waiver of any of the Owner's rights under the Contract: approval or payment of any progress payments or any other payments, including final payment; issuance of the Certificate of Substantial Completion or Certificate of Contract Completion; any use or occupancy of the Work by the Owner; nor any correction of faulty or defective work by the Owner.

[END OF SECTION]

DIVISION 4: SUPPLEMENTAL CONDITIONS

There are no Supplemental Conditions included in the Bid Documents for this Project.

DIVISION 5: FORMS

SECTION 5.1: FORMS TO SUBMIT WITH BID

The following forms must be completed and included in the Bidder's response to this Solicitation. This list represents the forms only and does not include all information and items necessary to be responsive to the Bid Solicitation.

5.1.1 **Bid Form** 5.1.2 **Bid Security** 5.1.3 **Bidder's Qualifications** 5.1.4 Bidder's Statement of Disputes, Litigation, Arbitration, and Surety Completion 5.1.5 **Drug-Free Workplace Certificate** 5.1.6 Florida Trench Safety Act Acknowledgement 5.1.7 **Non-Collusion Affidavit** 5.1.8 **Public Entity Crimes Statement** 5.1.9 **Tabulation of Subcontractors and Suppliers**

SECTION 5.2: FORMS FOR CONVENIENCE

The following forms are included for convenience in the Bid Documents. The Owner may require additional forms during the performance of the Work:

5.2.1 **Certificate of Final Completion Form Certification of Substantial Completion Form** 5.2.2 5.2.3 **Change Order Form** 5.2.4 **Contractor's Application for Payment Form** 5.2.5 **Field Order Form** 5.2.6 **Notice of Award Form Notice to Proceed Form** 5.2.7 5.2.8 **Payment Bond Form Performance Bond Form** 5.2.9 5.2.10 **Work Change Directive Form**

5.1.1 Bid Form

BIDDER'S COMPANY NAME:	

PROJECT: City of Bowling Green Roadway Improvements FPID No. 442234-1, 442236-1, 442237-1, & 442346-1

A. Bid Recipient

1. This Bid is submitted to:

City of Bowling Green Attn: City Manager 104 East Main Street Bowling Green, FL 33834

 The undersigned Bidder proposes and agrees, if this Bid is accepted, to enter into an Agreement with the Owner in the form included in the Bid Documents to perform all Work as specified or indicated in the Bid Documents for the prices and within the times indicated in this Bid and in accordance with the other terms and conditions of the Bid Documents.

B. Bidder's Acknowledgements

 The Bidder accepts all of the terms and conditions of DIVISION 1: INSTRUCTIONS TO BIDDERS, including without limitation those dealing with the disposition of the Bid Security. The Bid will remain subject to acceptance for 120 days after the Bid Opening, or for such longer period of time that Bidder may agree to in writing upon request of Owner.

C. Bidder's Representations

- 1. In submitting this Bid, the Bidder represents that:
 - a. The Bidder has received from the Issuing Office a complete set of Bid Documents and other related data identified in the Bid Documents, and the following Addenda, receipt of which is hereby acknowledged:

Addendum No.	Addendum Date

b. The Bidder has examined and carefully studied the Bid Documents, Addenda, and the other related data identified in the Bidding Documents, and provided the information to Subcontractors and Suppliers who have provided quotations to the Bidder for the Work.

- c. The Bidder has visited the Site and become familiar with and is satisfied as to the general, local, and Site conditions that may affect cost, progress, and performance of the Work.
- d. The Bidder is familiar with and is satisfied as to all Laws and Regulations that may affect cost, progress, and performance of the Work.
- e. The Bidder has carefully studied all: (1) reports of explorations and tests of subsurface conditions at or contiguous to the Site and all drawings of physical conditions relating to existing surface or subsurface structures at the Site (except Underground Facilities) that have been identified in DIVISION 1: INSTRUCTIONS TO BIDDERS, and (2) reports and drawings of Hazardous Environmental Conditions, if any, at the Site that have been identified in DIVISION 1: INSTRUCTIONS TO BIDDERS.
- f. The Bidder has obtained and carefully studied (or accepts the consequences for not doing so) all additional or supplemental examinations, investigations, explorations, tests, studies and data concerning conditions (surface, subsurface, and Underground Facilities) at or contiguous to the Site which may affect cost, progress, or performance of the Work or which relate to any aspect of the means, methods, techniques, sequences, and procedures of construction to be employed by the Bidder, including applying the specific means, methods, techniques, sequences, and procedures of construction expressly required by the Bid Documents to be employee by the Bidder, and safety precautions and programs incident thereto.
- g. The Bidder does not consider that any further examinations, investigations, explorations, tests, studies, or data are necessary for the determination of this Bid for performance of the Work at the price(s) bid and within the times and in accordance with the other terms and conditions of the Bid Documents
- h. The Bidder is aware of the general nature of the Work to be performed by the Owner and others at the Site that relates to the Work as indicated in the Bid Documents.
- i. The Bidder has correlated the information known to the Bidder, information and observations obtained from visits to the Site, reports and drawings identified in the Bid Documents, and all additional examinations, investigations, explorations, tests, studies, and data with the Bid Documents.
- j. The Bidder has given the Engineer written notice of all conflicts, errors, ambiguities, or discrepancies that the Bidder has discovered in the Bid Documents, and the written resolution thereof by the Engineer is acceptable to the Bidder.

Division 5: Forms

Bid Form

January 2021

Page 2 of 10

- k. The Bid Documents are generally sufficient to indicate and convey understanding of all terms and conditions for the performance of the Work for which this Bid is submitted.
- I. Bidder certifies Bidder's authority and qualification to do business in the state where the Project is located, that the Bidder is a state-certified Contractor in good standing and holds current registration with the Florida Construction Industry Licensing Board of the Florida Department of Professional Regulation, that the type of license is in a class that authorizes the Bidder to perform the general nature of the construction to be performed on this project, and that the Bidder's State Contractor's license number for the state of the project is shown on the Bid Form.

D. Bidder's Certification

1. Bidder certifies that:

- a. This Bid is genuine and not made in the interest of or on behalf of any undisclosed individual or entity and is not submitted in conformity with any collusive agreement or rules of any group, association, organization, or corporation;
- b. The Bidder has not directly or indirectly induced or solicited any other Bidder to submit a false or sham Bid;
- c. The Bidder has not solicited or induced any individual or entity to refrain from bidding; and
- d. The Bidder has not engaged in corrupt, fraudulent, collusive, or coercive practices in competing for the Contract. For the purposes of this Paragraph:
 - "corrupt practice" means the offering, giving, receiving, or soliciting of anything of value likely to influence the action of a public official in the bidding process;
 - ii. "fraudulent practice" means an intentional misrepresentation of facts made (a) to influence the bidding process to the detriment of the Owner, (b) to establish Bid Prices at artificial non-competitive levels, or (c) to deprive the Owner of the benefits of free and open competition;
 - iii. "collusive practice" means a scheme or arrangement between two or more Bidders, with or without the knowledge of the Owner, a purpose of which is to establish Bid Prices at artificial, non-competitive levels; and
 - iv. "coercive practice" means harming or threatening to harm, directly or indirectly, persons or their property to influence their participation in the bidding process or affect the execution of the Contract.

Division 5: Forms

Bid Form

January 2021

Page 3 of 10

E. Basis of Bid

1. The Bidder has reviewed DIVISION 6: TECHNICAL SPECIFICATIONS; and will complete the Work in accordance with the Contract Documents for the following price(s):

a. BASE BID (JONES STREET FPID NO. 442234-1)

Item No.	FDOT Item No.	Description	Unit	Estimated Quantity	Bid Unit Price	Bid Price
1	0101 1	Mobilization/Demobilization	LS	1		
2	0102 1	Maintenance of Traffic	LS	1		
3	0327 70 1	Milling Existing Asphalt Pavement (1" Avg. Depth)	SY	1854		
4	0334 1 11	Superpave Asphalt Conc. Traffic A (1" SP 9.5)	TN	102		
5	0334 1 11	Superpave Asphalt Conc. Traffic A (1.5" SP 12.5)	TN	153		
6	0711 11125	Thermoplastic Standard, White, 24"	LF	23		
9		Contingency (10% of Total)	LS	1		
					TOTAL	

TOTAL BASE BID:		
	(\$)
(words)	(numerals)	

b. BASE BID (BERTHA FULSE STREET FPID NO. 442236-1)

Item No.	FDOT Item No.	Description	Unit	Estimated Quantity	Bid Unit Price	Bid Price
1	0101 1	Mobilization/Demobilization	LS	1		
2	0102 1	Maintenance of Traffic	LS	1		
3	0327 70 1	Milling Existing Asphalt Pavement (1" Avg. Depth)	SY	1120		
4	0334 1 11	Superpave Asphalt Conc. Traffic A (1" SP 9.5)	TN	62		
5	0334 1 11	Superpave Asphalt Conc. Traffic A (1.5" SP 12.5)	TN	93		
6	0711 11125	Thermoplastic Standard, White, 24"	LF	9		
9		Contingency (10% of Total)	LS	1		
					TOTAL	

TOTAL BASE BID:			
		(\$)
	(words)	(numerals)	

c. BASE BID (FAIR AVENUE FPID NO. 442237-1)

Item No.	FDOT Item No.	Description	Unit	Estimated Quantity	Bid Unit Price	Bid Price
1	0101 1	Mobilization/Demobilization	LS	1		
2	0102 1	Maintenance of Traffic	LS	1		
3	0327 70 1	Milling Existing Asphalt Pavement (1" Avg. Depth)	SY	1495		
4	0334 1 11	Superpave Asphalt Conc. Traffic A (1" SP 9.5)	TN	83		
5	0334 1 11	Superpave Asphalt Conc. Traffic A (1.5" SP 12.5)	TN	134		
6	0711 11125	Thermoplastic Standard, White, 24"	LF	18		
7	0711 15101	Thermoplastic Standard, White, 6"	LF	60		
8	0711 15201	Thermoplastic Standard, Yellow, 6"	LF	100		
9		Contingency (10% of Total)	LS	1		
					TOTAL	

TOTAL BASE BID:		
	(\$)
(words)	(numerals)	

d. BASE BID (CHURCH AVENUE FPID NO. 442346-1)

Item No.	FDOT Item No.	Description	Unit	Estimated Quantity	Bid Unit Price	Bid Price
1	0101 1	Mobilization/Demobilization	LS	1		
2	0102 1	Maintenance of Traffic	LS	1		
3	0327 70 1	Milling Existing Asphalt Pavement (1" Avg. Depth)	SY	3350		
4	0334 1 11	Superpave Asphalt Conc. Traffic A (1" SP 9.5)	TN	185		
5	0334 1 11	Superpave Asphalt Conc. Traffic A (1.5" SP 12.5)	TN	276		
6	0711 11125	Thermoplastic Standard, White, 24"	LF	16		
9		Contingency (10% of Total)	LS	1		
					TOTAL	

TOTAL BASE BID:			
	(\$)
(words)		(numerals)	•
GRAND TOTAL—ALL FOUR SITES (a-d):			
	 (\$		_)
(words)		(numerals)	

The Bidder acknowledges that estimated quantities are not guaranteed, and are solely for the purpose of comparison of Bids, and final payment for all Unit Price Bid items will be based on actual quantities, determined as provided in the Contract Documents.

F. Time of Completion

- The Bidder agrees that the Work will be substantially complete within 60 calendar days after the issuance of the Notice to Proceed, and completed and ready for final payment in accordance with the Contract Documents within 90 calendar days after the date when the Contract Time commences to run. The Contract Time will be extended 30 calendar days for each Additive Alternative accepted by the Owner.
- 2. The Bidder accepts the provisions of the Agreement as to liquidated damages.

G. Attachments to This Bid

- 1. The following documents are submitted with and made a part of this Bid:
 - a. DIVISION 5: FORMS Bid Form
 - d. DIVISION 5: FORMS Bid Security
 - c. DIVISION 5: FORMS Bidder's Qualifications
 - d. DIVISION 5: FORMS Bidder's Statement of Disputes, Litigation, Arbitration, and Surety Completion, Last Three (3) Years
 - e. DIVISION 5: FORMS Drug-Free Workplace Certificate
 - DIVISION 5: FORMS Florida Trench Safety Act Acknowledgement
 - g. DIVISION 5: FORMS Non-Collusion Affidavit
 - h. DIVISION 5: FORMS Public Entity Crimes Statement
 - i. DIVISION 5: FORMS Tabulation of Subcontractors and Suppliers
 - j. Evidence of authority to do business in the State of the Project; or a written covenant to obtain such license within the time for acceptance of Bids;

Contractor's License No.:	
CONTRIBUTION 3 EICCHISC NO	

H. Defined Terms

 The terms used in this Bid with initial capital letters have the meanings stated in DIVISION 1: INSTRUCTIONS TO BIDDERS and DIVISION 4: SUPPLEMENTAL CONDITIONS.

I. Bid Submittal 1. This Bid is submitted by: If Bidder is: An Individual Name (typed or printed): _____ (SEAL) (Individual's signature) Doing business as: A Partnership Partnership Name: _____ (SEAL) (Signature of general partner – attach evidence of authority to sign) Name (typed or printed): State Contract License No. A Corporation Corporation Name: ______ _____ (SEAL) State of Incorporation: Type (General Business, Professional, Service, Limited Liability): (Signature – attach evidence of authority to sign) Name (typed or printed): (Corporate Seal) (Signature of Corporate Secretary) State Contractor License No.______. A Joint Venture

Name of Joint Venture:

First Joint Venturer Name:(SEAL)
Ву:
(Signature of first joint venture partner – attach evidence of authority to sign)
Name (typed or printed):
Title:
Second Joint Venturer Name:(SEAL)
Ву:
(Signature of first joint venture partner – attach evidence of authority to sign) Name (typed or printed):
Title:
Bidder's Business Address
Phone No Fax No
E-mail
SUBMITTED on, 20
State Contractor License No

5.1.2 Bid Security Form

Any singular reference to Bidder, Surety, Owner, capplicable.	or other party shall be considered plural where	
BIDDER (Name and Address):		
SURETY (Name and Address of Principal Place of B	Business):	
OWNER (Name and Address):		
BID Bid Due Date: Project (Brief Description Including Location):		
BOND		
Bond Number:		
Date (Not later than Bid due date):		
Penal sum		
(Words)	(Figures)	
	nereby, subject to the terms printed on the reverse xecuted on its behalf by its authorized officer, age	
BIDDER	SURETY	
(Seal) Bidder's Name and Corporate Seal	(Se Surety's Name and Corporate Seal	eal)
-		
By: Signature and Title	By: Signature and Title (Attach Power of Attorney)	
Attest:	Attest:	
Signature and Title	Signature and Title	
Note: Above addresses are to be used for giving re	equired notice.	

Division 5: Forms January 2021

- A. Bidder and Surety, jointly and severally, bind themselves, their heirs, executors, administrators, successors and assigns to pay to the Owner upon default of the Bidder the penal sum set forth on the face of this Bond. Payment of the penal sum is the extent of Surety's liability.
- B. Default of Bidder shall occur upon the failure of the Bidder to deliver within the time required by the Bid Documents (or any extension thereof agreed to in writing by the Owner) the executed Agreement required by the Bid Documents and any performance and payment bonds required by the Bid Documents.
- C. This obligation shall be null and void if:
 - The Owner accepts the Bidder's Bid and the Bidder delivers within the time required by the Bid Documents (or any extension thereof agreed to in writing by the Owner) the executed Agreement required by the Bid Documents and any performance and payment bonds required by the Bid Documents, or
 - ii. All Bids are rejected by the Owner, or
 - iii. The Owner fails to issue a Notice of Award to the Bidder within the time specified in the Bid Documents (or any extension thereof agreed to in writing by the Bidder and, if applicable, consented to by Surety when required by Paragraph Ehereof).
- D. Payment under this Bond will be due and payable upon default by the Bidder and within 30 calendar days after receipt by the Bidder and the Surety of written notice of default from the Owner, which notice will be given with reasonable promptness, identifying this Bond and the Project and including a statement of the amount due.
- E. The Surety waives notice of any and all defenses based on or arising out of any time extension to issue the Notice of Award agreed to in writing by the Owner and the Bidder, provided that the total time for issuing the Notice of Award including extensions shall not in the aggregate exceed 120 days from the Bid Due Date without the Surety's written consent.
- F. No suit or action shall be commenced under this Bond prior to 30 calendar days after the notice of default required in Paragraph D above is received by the Bidder and the Surety and in no case later than one year after the Bid Due Date.
- G. Any suit or action under this Bond shall be commenced only in a court of competent jurisdiction located in the state in which the Project is located.
- H. Notices required hereunder shall be in writing and sent to the Bidder and the Surety at their respective addresses shown on the face of this Bond. Such notices may be sent by personal delivery, commercial courier, or by United States Registered or Certified Mail, return receipt requested, postage pre-paid, and shall be deemed to be effective upon receipt by the party concerned.
- The Surety shall cause to be attached to this Bond a current and effective Power of Attorney
 evidencing the authority of the officer, agent, or representative who executed this Bond on behalf of
 Surety to execute, seal, and deliver such Bond and bind the Suretythereby.

Division 5: Forms

Bid Security

January 2021

Page 2 of 3

- J. This Bond is intended to conform to all applicable statutory requirements. Any applicable requirement of any applicable statute that has been omitted from this Bond shall be deemed to be included herein as if set forth at length. If any provision of this Bond conflicts with any applicable statute, then the provision of said statute shall govern and the remainder of this Bond that is not in conflict therewith shall continue in full force and effect.
- K. The term "Bid" as used herein includes a Bid, offer, or proposal as applicable.

Division 5: Forms

Bid Security

January 2021

Page 3 of 3

5.1.3 Bidder's Qualifications

The Bidder warrants the truth and accuracy of all statements and answers herein contained. (Include additional sheets if necessary.)

THIS QUESTIONNAIRE MUST BE COMPLETED AND SUBMITTED WITH YOUR BID.

Α.	LICENSE # and COMPANY'S NAME:
В.	CO. PHYSICAL ADDRESS:
C.	TELEPHONE NUMBER: (
E.	Bidding as an; individual:; a partnership:; a corporation:; a joint venture:
F.	If a partnership: list names and addresses of partners; if a corporation: list names of officers, directors, shareholders, and state of incorporation; if joint venture: list names and addresses of venturers and the same if any venturer is a corporation for each such corporation, partnership, or joint venture:
G.	Your organization has been in business (under this firm's name) as a
	for how many years?
Н.	Describe and give the date and owner of the last three government projects you've completed which are similar in cost, type, size, and nature as the one proposed (for a public entity). Include contact name and phone number:
I.	Have you ever been awarded additional time to complete work awarded to you during the past five (5) years? If so, state when, where (contact name, address, and phone number) and why.
J.	Have you ever been assessed liquidated damages under a contract during the past five (5) years? If so, state when, where (contact name, address, and phone number) and why.

K.	Have you ever failed to complete work awarded to you? If so, state when, where (contact name, address, phone number) and why?					
L.	Have you ever been debarred or prohibited from bidding on a governmental entity's construction project? If yes, name the entity and describe the circumstances:					
M.	Name three individuals, governmental entities, or corporations for which you have performed similar work and to which you refer. Include contact name and phone number:					
N.	What specific steps have you taken to examine the physical conditions at or contiguous to the site, including but not limited to, the location of existing underground facilities?					
О.	What specific physical conditions, including but not limited to, the location of existing underground facilities have you found which will, in any manner, affect cost, progress, performance, or finishing of the work?					
P.	Will you subcontract any part of this Work? If so, describe which major portion(s):					
Q.	If any, list (with contract amount) MBE/WBE's to be utilized:					
R.	What equipment do you own to accomplish this Work?					

ŝ.	What equipment will you purchase/rent for the Work? (specifywhich)				
Γ.	List the following in connection with the Surety which is providing the Bond(s):				
	Surety's Name:				
	Surety's Address:				
	Name, address and phone number of Surety's resident agent for service of process in Florida:				
					
					

5.1.4 Bidder's Statement of Disputes, Litigation, Arbitration, and Surety Completion – Last Three (3) Years Name and Phone Number of Name and Address of Owner or Engineer Date of Project Owner or Engineer Representative Contract Amount Status

5.1.5 **Drug-Free Workplace Certificate** I, the undersigned, in accordance with Florida Statutes 287.087, hereby certify that (Print or Type Name of Firm) ☐ Publishes a written statement notifying that the unlawful manufacture, distribution, dispensing, possession, or use of a controlled substance is prohibited in the workplace named above and specifying actions that will be taken against violations of such prohibition. ☐ Informs employees about the dangers of drug abuse in the workplace; the firm's policy of maintaining a drugfree working environment and available drug counseling, rehabilitation, and employee assistance programs; and the penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug-use violations. ☐ Gives each employee engaged in providing commodities or contractual services that are under bid or proposal a copy of the statement specified above. □ Notifies the employees that as a condition of working on the commodities or contractual services under bid or proposal, the employees will abide by the terms of the statement and will notify the employer of any conviction of or plea of guilty or nolo contendere to any violation of Chamber 1893 or any controlled substance law of the State of Florida or the United States for a violation occurring in the workplace, no later than 5 days after such conviction, and requires employees to sign copies of such written statement to acknowledge their receipt. ☐ Imposes a sanction on or requires the satisfactory participation in a drug-abuse assistance or rehabilitation program, if such is available in the employee's community, by any employee who is so convicted. ☐ Makes a good faith effort to continue to maintain a drug-free workplace through the implementation of the drug-free workplace program. "As a person authorized to sign this statement, I certify that the business, firm, or corporation named above complies fully with the requirements set forthherein." Authorized Signature Date Signed State of: _____ County of:

Sworn to and subscribed before me this day of , 20 .

Personally known_____or Produced Identification _____

Signature of Notary

My Commission Expires:

Division 5: Forms January 2021

Specify Type of Identification

5.1.6 Certificate of Compliance with the Florida Trench Safety Act

The Bidder acknowledges sole responsibility for complying with the Florida Trench Safety Act (Act) and Occupational Safety and Health Administration's excavation safety standard 29 CFR 1926.650 (Subpart P as amended). The Bidder further acknowledges that included in the various items of the Proposal and in the Total Base Bid Price are costs for complying with the Florida Trench Safety Act (90-96, Laws of Florida) effective October 1, 1990. The Bidder further identifies the costs to be summarized below:

	Trench Safety Method (Description)	Units of Measure (LF, SY)	Unit (Quantity)	Extended Cost	Unit Extended Cost			
A.								
В.								
C.								
D.								
				Total:				
		Bidder Date:_	By:					
		Addio	izeu Signature.					
	of:							
Count	ty of:							
Sworr	n to and subscribed before	me this	day of	f	, 20			
Perso	nally known	or Produced Id	entification		of Identification			
	Signature of Notary		_					
My Co	ommission Expires:		_					

5.1.7 Non-Collusion Affidavit of Prime Bidder State of _____ County of , being first duly sworn, deposes and says that: Name 1. He/She is _____, the Title Bidder that has submitted the attached bid; 2. He/She is fully informed respecting the preparation and contents of the attached Bid and of all pertinent circumstances respecting such Bid; 3. Such Bid is genuine and is not a collusive or sham Bid; 4. Neither the said Bidder not any of his/her officers, partners, owners, agents, representatives, employees or parties in interest, including this affiant, has in any way colluded, conspired, connived or agreed, directly or indirectly with any other Bidder, firm or person to submit a collusive or sham Bid in connection with the Contract for which the attached Bid has been submitted or has refrained from bidding in connection with such Contract; nor in any manner, directly or indirectly, sought by agreement or collusion or communication or conference with any other Bidder, firm or person to fix the price or prices in the attached Bid or if any other Bidder; not has fixed any overhead, profit or cost element of the Bid Price, or the Bid Price of any other Bidder; not has secured through any collusion, conspiracy, connivance or unlawful agreement, any advantage against the City of Bowling Green, Florida or any person interested in the proposed Contract; and 5. The price or prices quoted in the attached bid are fair and proper and are not tainted by any collusion, conspiracy, connivance or unlawful agreement on the part of the Bidder or any of its agents, representatives, owners, employees, or parties in interest, including this affiant. (Signed) Name Title Subscribed and sworn to before me this day of , 20 Signature Title My commission expires _____

5.1.8 Sworn Statement Pursuant to Section 287.133(3)(A), Florida Statues, on Public Entity Crimes

THIS FORM MUST BE SIGNED AND SWORN TO IN THE PRESENCE OF A NOTARY PUBLIC OR OTHER OFFICIAL AUTHORIZED TO ADMINISTER OATHS.

1. This sworn statement is submitted to the City of Bowling Green, Florida by

(print individual's name and title)
for
(print name of entity submitting sworn statement)
whose business address is
And (if applicable) its Federal Employer Identification Number (FEIN) is
(If the entity has no FEIN, include the Social Security of the individual signing this swornstatement: _
)

- 2. I understand that a "public entity crime" as defined in Paragraph 287.133 (1)(g), <u>Florida Statues</u> means a violation of any state or federal law by a person with respect to and directly related to the transaction of business with any public entity or with an agency or political subdivision of any other state or of the United States, including, but not limited to, any bid or contract for goods or services to be provided to any public entity or such an agency or political subdivision of any other state or of the United States and involving anti-trust, fraud, theft, bribery, collusion, racketeering, conspiracy, or material misrepresentation.
- 3. I understand that "convicted" or "conviction" as defined in Paragraph 287.133(1)(b), <u>Florida Statutes</u>, means a finding of guilt or a conviction of a public entity crime, with or without an adjudication of guilt, in any federal or stated trial court of record relating to charges brought by indictment or information after July 1. 1989, as a result of a jury verdict, nonjury trial, or entry of a plea of guilty or nolo contendere.
- 4. I understand that "affiliate" as defined in Paragraph 287.133(1)(a), Florida Statutes, means:
 - 1. A predecessor or successor of a person convicted of a public entity crime: or
 - 2. An entity under the control of any natural person who is active in the management of the entity and who has been convicted of a public entity crime. The term "affiliate" includes those officers, directors, executives, partners, shareholders, employees, members, and agents who are active in the management of an affiliate. The ownership by one person of shares constituting a controlling interest in another person, or a pooling of equipment or income among persons when not for fair market value under an arm's length agreement, shall be a prima facie case that one person controls another person. A person who knowingly enters in to a joint venture with a person who has been convicted of a public entity crime in Florida during the preceding 36 months shall be considered an affiliate.

Division 5: Forms Public Entity Crimes
January 2021 Page 1 of 2

- 5. I understand that a "person" as defined in Paragraph 287.133 (1)(e), <u>Florida Statutes</u>, means any natural person or entity organized under the laws of any state or of the United States with the legal power to enter into a binding contract and which bids or applies to bid on contracts for the provision of goods or services let by a public entity, or which otherwise transacts or applies to transact business with a public entity. The term "person" includes those officers, directors, executives, partners, shareholders, employees, members, and agents who are active in management of an entity.
- 6. Based on information and belief, the statement which I have marked below is true in relation to the entity submitting this sworn statement. (indicate which statement applies).

____ Neither the entity submitting this sworn statement, nor any of its officers, directors, executives, partners, shareholders, employees, members, or agents who are active in the management of the entity, nor any

affiliate of the entity has been charged with and convicted of a public entity crime subsequent to July 1, 1989.
The entity submitting this sworn statement, or one or more of its officers, directors, executives, partners, shareholders, employees, members, or agents who are active in management of the entity, or an affiliate of the entity has been charged with and convicted of a public entity crime subsequent to July 1, 1989.
The entity submitting this sworn statement, or one or more of the officers, directors, executives, partners, shareholders, employees, members, or agents who are active in the management of the entity, or an affiliate of the entity has been charged with and convicted of a public entity crime subsequent to July 1, 1989. However, there has been a subsequent proceeding before a Hearing Officer of the State of Florida, Division of Administrative Hearings and the Final Order entered by the Hearing Officer determined that it was not in the public interest to place the entity submitting this sworn statement on the convicted vendor list. (attach a copy of the final order)

I UNDERSTAND THAT THE SUBMISSION OF THIS FORM TO THE CONTRACTING OFFICER FOR THE PUBLIC ENTITY IDENTIFIED IN PARAGRAPH 1 (ONE) ABOVE IS FOR THAT PUBLIC ENTITY ONLY AND, THAT THIS FORM IS VALID THROUGH DECEMBER 31 OF THE CALENDAR YEAR IN WHICH IT IS FILED. I ALSO UNDERSTAND THAT I AM REQUIRED TO INFORM THE PUBLIC ENTITY PRIOR TO ENTERING INTO A CONTRACT IN EXCESS OF THE THRESHOLD AMOUNT PROVIDED IN SECTION 287.017, FLORIDA STATUES, FOR CATEGORY TWO OF ANY CHANGE IN THE INFORMATION CONTAINED IN THIS FORM.

	(Signature)
Sworn to and subscribed before me this	day of, 20
Personally known	
OR Produced Identification	Notary Public-State of
	My commission expires
(Type of Identification)	·
	(Printed, Typed or Stamped Commissioned Name of Notary Public)

Division 5: Forms Public Entity Crimes
January 2021 Page 2 of 2

5.1.9 Tabulation of Subcontractors and Suppliers

The Undersigned states that the following is a full and complete list of the proposed Subcontractors and Suppliers on this Project and the class of work to be performed by each and that such list will not be added to nor altered without written consent to the Owner through the Engineer.

	SUBCONTRACTOR OR SUPPLIER AND ADDRESS	MBE/WBE STATUS	CLASS OF WORK OR MATERIAL
1.			
2.			
3.		· · ———	
4.			
5.		- - 	
6.			
7.			
8.			
		-	
BIDI	DER:	_	
Ву:_		_	
	ne:		
	:	-	
Date	2:		

5.2.1 Certificate of Final Completion

Project:	Owner: City of Bowling Green	Owner's Contract No.:
Contract:		Date of Contract:
Contractor:		Engineer's Project No.:
This Certificate of Final Completion	n applies to:	
☐ All Work under the Contract Do	cuments: \square The follow	ing specified portions:
		Date of Final Completion
	applies has been inspected by autho nd found to be complete and final. ted above is hereby declared.	•
	Executed by Engineer	Date
	Accepted by Contractor	 Date
	 Accepted by Owner	 Date

5.2.2 Certificate	of Substantial Completion	
Project:	Owner: City of Bowling Green	Owner's Contract No.:
Contract:		Date of Contract:
Contractor:		Engineer's Project No.:
This [tentative] [definitive All Work under the Co	e] Certificate of Substantial Completion applientract Documents: The following	es to: g specified portions:
		Date of Substantial Completion
and Engineer, and found thereof designated above	to be substantially complete. The Date of Su	horized representatives of Owner, Contractor bstantial Completion of the Project or portion of commencement of applicable warranties
may not be all-inclusive,		eted or corrected, is attached hereto. This list th list does not alter the responsibility of the uments.
	reen OWNER and CONTRACTOR for security, or shall be as provided in the Contract Docume	operation, safety, maintenance, heat, utilities, nts except as amended as follows:
☐ Amended Responsibili	ities	Amended
Owner's Amended Respo	onsibilities:	
Contractor's Amended Re	esponsibilities:	
The following documents	s are attached to and made part of this Certifi	cate:
	constitute an acceptance of Work not in accoobligation to complete the Work in accordan	ordance with the Contract Documents nor is it ce with the Contract Documents.
	Executed by Engineer	 Date
	Accepted by Contractor	 Date
	Accepted by Owner	 Date

5.2.3 **Change Order Form** No. _____ Date of Issuance: Effective Date: Owner's Contract No.: Project: Owner: City of Bowling Green Contract: Date of Contract: Contractor: **Engineer's Project No.:** The Contract Documents are modified as follows upon execution of this Change Order: **Description:** Attachments: (List documents supporting change): CHANGE IN CONTRACT TIMES: CHANGE IN CONTRACT PRICE: Original Contract Price: Original Contract Times: ☐ Working days ☐ Calendar days Substantial completion (days ordate): _____ Ready for final payment (days or date): [Increase] [Decrease] from previously approved Change [Increase] [Decrease] from previously approved Change Orders Orders No.______to No._____ No._____to No._____ Substantial completion (days): Ready for final payment (days): Contract Price prior to this Change Order: Contract Times prior to this Change Order: Substantial completion (days ordate): _____ Ready for final payment (days or date): _____ [Increase] [Decrease] of this Change Order: Increase] [Decrease] of this Change Order: Substantial completion (days ordate): _____ Ready for final payment (days or date): Contract Price incorporating this Change Order: Contract Times with all approved Change Orders: Substantial completion (days ordate): _____ Ready for final payment (days or date): _____ RECOMMENDED: ACCEPTED: ACCEPTED: Engineer (Authorized Signature) Owner (Authorized Signature) Contractor (Authorized Signature) Date: _____ Date: Approved by Funding Agency (if applicable):______ Date: ____

5.2.4 Contractor's Applic	ation for Payment			Application for Paymer	nt No.:
		Application Period:		Application Date:	
To (Owner): City of Bowling G	Green	From (Contractor):		Via (Engineer):	
Project:		Contract:			
Owner's Contract No.: Contractor's Project N			lo.:	Engineer's Project No.:	
APPLICATION FOR PAYMENT Change	e Order Summary			E\$\$	
Approved Change O	rders			ders\$\$	
Number	Additions	Deductions		CE (Line 1 ± 2)\$	
			4. TOTAL COMPLETED AND		
				timate)\$	
			5. RETAINAGE:		
				Work Completed\$	
				Stored Material\$	
			c. Total Retainage (Line 5	a + Line 5b)\$\$	
			6. AMOUNT ELIGIBLE TO DA	NTE (Line 4 - Line 5c)\$\$	
TOTALS			7. LESS PREVIOUS PAYMENT	rs (Line 6 from prior Application)\$	
NET CHANGE BY			8. AMOUNT DUE THIS APPLIC	CATION\$\$	
CHANGE ORDERS			9. BALANCE TO FINISH, PLU		
CHANGE ONDERS				stimate + Line 5 above)\$\$	
CONTRACTOR'S CERTIFICATION	ON				
The undersigned Contractor certifies			Payment of: \$		_
account of Work done under the C				(Line 8 or other - attach explanation of other amount)	
legitimate obligations incurred in co (2) title of all Work, materials and		,, ,,	is recommended by:	(Engineer)	
covered by this Application for Payr	ment will pass to Owner at tim	e of payment free and clear of all		(Engineer)	(Date)
Liens, security interests and encumb	•		Payment of: \$	(Line 8 or other - attach explanation of other amount)	_
indemnifying Owner against any su covered by this Application for Pay		* * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * *	is suppressed by a	(Line 8 of other - attach explanation of other amount)	
defective.			is approved by:	(Owner)	(Date)
			Approved by:	(Owner)	(Date)
Ву:	Date:		Approved by.	Funding Agency (if applicable)	(Date)

Progress Estimate Contractor's Application

For (contract):				Application	n Number:			
Application Perio	od:			Application	n Date:			
	A	В	Work Comple	eted	E	F		G
Item			С	D		Total Completed	%	Balance
Specification Section No.	Description	Scheduled Value	From Previous Application (C + D)	This Period	Materials Presently Stored (not in C or D)	and Stored to Date (C + D + E)	(F) B	to Finish (B - F)
	Totals							

Progress Estimate Contractor's Application

For (contract):				Application	n Number:			
i or (contract).				Application	i Number.			
Application Period:				Application				
	Α	В	Work Comple	eted	E	F		G
Item			С	D		Total Completed	%	Balanc
Specification	Description	Scheduled	From Previous	This	Materials Presently	and Stored to	(F)	to Fini
Section No.	·	Value	Application (C + D)	Period	Stored (not in C or D)	Date	В	(B - F)
			, ,			(C + D + E)		, ,
	Totals							

Progress Estimate Contractor's Application For (contract): **Application Number:** Application Period: Application Date: **Work Completed** Α В Ε F G **Total Completed** % Item D Balance Specification Description Scheduled From Previous This **Materials Presently** and Stored to (F) to Finish Section No. Value Application (C + D) Period Stored (not in C or D) В (B - F) Date (C + D + E)**Totals**

5.2.5 Field Order Form No. _____ Date of Issuance: Effective Date: Project: Owner: Owner's Contract No.: City of Bowling Green Contract: Date of Contract: **Contractor: Engineer's Project No.:** Attention: You are hereby directed to promptly execute this Field Order for minor changes in the Work without changes in Contract Price or Contract Times. If you consider that a change in Contract Price or Contract Times is required, please notify the Engineer immediately and before proceeding with this Work. Reference: _____ (Specification Section(s)) (Drawing(s) / Detail(s)) Description: Attachments: Engineer: Date: Receipt Acknowledged by (Contractor): Date:

Copy to Owner

5.2.6	Notice of Award		5	
			Dated	
Project:		Owner: City of Bowling Green	Owner's Contract No.:	
Contract:		City of bowning dicen	Date of Contract:	
Contractor	r:		Engineer's Project No.:	
Bidder:				
Bidder's A	ddress: (send Certified M	ail, Return Receipt Requested)	
		for the above Contrac or	t has been considered. You are the Successf	iul ——
	(Indi	cate total Work, alternates or section	s or Work awarded)	
	·		•	
	•		Dollars (\$)
		•	ept Drawings) accompany this Notice of Awar wise made available to you immediately.	d.
You must co Award.	omply with the following	conditions precedent within f	ive (5) days of the date you receive this Notic	e of
1.	Deliver to the Owner fu	ılly executed counterparts of t	he Contract Documents.	
2.	Deliver with the execut	ed Contract Documents the Co	ontract Security [Bonds].	
3.	Other conditions prece	dent:		
		ons within the time specified vare your Bid security forfeited.	will entitle Owner to consider you in default,	
	days after you comply with the Contract Docume		er will return to you one fully executed	
			City of Bowling Green	
			Owner	
		Ву:		
		-	Authorized Signature	
Copy to Engir	neer		Title	

5.2.7 Notice to Proceed

		Dated		
Project:	Owner: City of Bowling Gree	Owner's Contract No.:		
Contract:		Date of Contract:		
Contractor:		Engineer's Project No.:		
Contractor:				
Contractor's Address: (se	nd Certified Mail, Return Receip	t Requested)		
On or before that date, you	u are to start performing your ob	ontract will commence to run on ligations under the Contract Documents. The de date of readiness for final payment is	he date of	
[(or) the	number of days to achieve Subs	antial Completion is		
and the number of days to	achieve readiness for final paym	ent is].		
and other identified additi in accordance with the Cor	onal insureds) certificates of ins	must each deliver to the other (with copie urance which each is required to purchase and other requirements]:		
Contractor		Owner		
Received by:		Given By:		
		Authorized Signature		
Title		Title		
Date		Date		
Copy to Engineer				

5.2.8 Payment Bond

CONTRACTOR (Name and Address):	SURETY (Nar	ne and Address of Principal Place of Business):	
OWNER (Name and Address):			
CONTRACT			
Date:			
Amount:			
Description (Name and Location):			
BOND			
Bond Number:			
Date (Not earlier than Contract Date):			
Amount: Modifications to this Bond Form:			
Modifications to this Bond Form:			
Surety and Contractor, intending to be legally bound here Payment Bond to be duly executed on its behalf by its aut		ne terms printed on the reverse side hereof, do each cause agent, or representative.	this
CONTRACTOR AS PRINCIPAL		SURETY	
Company:			
Signature:	(Seal)		(Seal)
Name and Title:		Surety's Name and Corporate Seal	
		Ву:	
		Signature and Title	
/a		(Attach Power of Attorney)	
(Space is provided below for signatures of additiona parties, if required.)	I		
		Attest:	
		Signature and Title	
CONTRACTOR AS PRINCIPAL SURETY			
Company:			
Signature:	(Seal)		(Seal)
Name and Title:		Surety's Name and Corporate Seal	
		Ву:	
		Signature and Title	
		(Attach Power of Attorney)	
		Attest:	
		Signature and Title:	

FPID No. 442234-1, 442236-1, 442237-1, & 442346-1

- Contractor and Surety, jointly and severally, bind themselves, their heirs, executors, administrators, successors, and assigns to Owner to pay for labor, materials, and equipment furnished by Claimants for use in the performance of the Contract, which is incorporated herein by reference.
- 2. With respect to Owner, this obligation shall be null and void if Contractor:
 - 2.1. Promptly makes payment, directly or indirectly, for all sums due Claimants. and
 - 2.2. Defends, indemnifies, and holds harmless Owner from all claims, demands, liens, or suits alleging non-payment by Contractor by any person or entity who furnished labor, materials, or equipment for use in the performance of the Contract, provided Owner has promptly notified Contractor and Surety (at the addresses described in Paragraph 12) of any claims, demands, liens, or suits and tendered defense of such claims, demands, liens, or suits to Contractor and Surety, and provided there is no Owner Default.
- 3. With respect to Claimants, this obligation shall be null and void if Contractor promptly makes payment, directly or indirectly, for all sums due.
- 4. Surety shall have no obligation to Claimants under this Bond until:
 - 4.1. Claimants who are employed by or have a direct contract with Contractor have given notice to Surety (at the addresses described in Paragraph 12) and sent a copy, or notice thereof, to Owner, stating that a claim is being made under this Bond and, with substantial accuracy, the amount of the claim.
 - 4.2. Claimants who do not have a direct contract with Contractor:
 - Have furnished written notice to Contractor and sent a copy, or notice thereof, to Owner, within 90 days after having last performed labor or last furnished materials or equipment included in the claim stating, with substantial accuracy, the amount of the claim and the name of the party to whom the materials or equipment were furnished or supplied, or for whom the labor was done or performed; and
 - Have either received a rejection in whole or in part from Contractor, or not received within 30 days of furnishing the above notice any communication from Contractor by which Contractor had indicated the claim will be paid directly or indirectly; and
 - Not having been paid within the above 30 days, have sent a written notice to Surety and sent a copy, or notice thereof, to Owner, stating that a claim is being made under this Bond and enclosing a copy of the previous written notice furnished to Contractor.
- 5. If a notice by a Claimant required by Paragraph 4 is provided by Owner to Contractor or to Surety, that is sufficient compliance.
- 6. When a Claimant has satisfied the conditions of Paragraph 4, the Surety shall promptly and at Surety's expense take the following actions:
 - 6.1. Send an answer to that Claimant, with a copy to Owner, within 45 days after receipt of the claim, stating the amounts that are undisputed and the basis for challenging any amounts that are disputed.
 - 6.2. Pay or arrange for payment of any undisputed amounts.
- Surety's total obligation shall not exceed the amount of this Bond, and the amount of this Bond shall be credited for any payments made in good faith by Surety.

- 8. Amounts owed by Owner to Contractor under the Contract shall be used for the performance of the Contract and to satisfy claims, if any, under any performance bond. By Contractor furnishing and Owner accepting this Bond, they agree that all funds earned by Contractor in the performance of the Contract are dedicated to satisfy obligations of Contractor and Surety under this Bond, subject to Owner's priority to use the funds for the completion of the Work.
- 9. Surety shall not be liable to Owner, Claimants, or others for obligations of Contractor that are unrelated to the Contract. Owner shall not be liable for payment of any costs or expenses of any Claimant under this Bond, and shall have under this Bond no obligations to make payments to, give notices on behalf of, or otherwise have obligations to Claimants under this Bond.
- 10. Surety hereby waives notice of any change, including changes of time, to the Contract or to related Subcontracts, purchase orders and other obligations.
- 11. No suit or action shall be commenced by a Claimant under this Bond other than in a court of competent jurisdiction in the location in which the Work or part of the Work is located or after the expiration of one year from the date (1) on which the Claimant gave the notice required by Paragraph 4.1 or Paragraph 4.2.3, or (2) on which the last labor or service was performed by anyone or the last materials or equipment were furnished by anyone under the Construction Contract, whichever of (1) or (2) first occurs. If the provisions of this paragraph are void or prohibited by law, the minimum period of limitation available to sureties as a defense in the jurisdiction of the suit shall be applicable.
- 12. Notice to Surety, Owner, or Contractor shall be mailed or delivered to the addresses shown on the signature page. Actual receipt of notice by Surety, Owner, or Contractor, however accomplished, shall be sufficient compliance as of the date received at the address shown on the signature page.
- 13. When this Bond has been furnished to comply with a statutory requirement in the location where the Contract was to be performed, any provision in this Bond conflicting with said statutory requirement shall be deemed deleted herefrom and provisions conforming to such statutory requirement shall be deemed incorporated herein. The intent is that this Bond shall be construed as a statutory Bond and not as a common law bond.
- 14. Upon request of any person or entity appearing to be a potential beneficiary of this Bond, Contractor shall promptly furnish a copy of this Bond or shall permit a copy to be made.

15. DEFINITIONS

- 15.1. Claimant: An individual or entity having a direct contract with Contractor, or with a first-tier subcontractor of Contractor, to furnish labor, materials, or equipment for use in the performance of the Contract. The intent of this Bond shall be to include without limitation in the terms "labor, materials or equipment" that part of water, gas, power, light, heat, oil, gasoline, telephone service, or rental equipment used in the Contract, architectural and engineering services required for performance of the Work of Contractor and Contractor's Subcontractors, and all other items for which a mechanic's lien may be asserted in the jurisdiction where the labor, materials, or equipment were furnished.
- 15.2. Contract: The agreement between Owner and Contractor identified on the signature page, including all Contract Documents and changes thereto.
- 15.3. Owner Default: Failure of Owner, which has neither been remedied nor waived, to pay Contractor as required by the Contract or to perform and complete or comply with the other terms thereof.

FOR INFORMATION ONLY (Name, Address and Telephone)
Surety Agency or Broker:
Owner's Representative (Engineer or Other Party):

5.2.9 **Performance Bond** Any singular reference to Contractor, Surety, Owner, or other party shall be considered plural where applicable. CONTRACTOR (Name and Address): SURETY (Name, and Address of Principal Place of Business): OWNER (Name and Address): CONTRACT Effective Date of Agreement: Amount: Description (Name and Location): BOND Bond Number: Date (Not earlier than Effective Date of Agreement): Amount: Modifications to this Bond Form: Surety and Contractor, intending to be legally bound hereby, subject to the terms set forth below, do each cause this Performance Bond to be duly executed by an authorized officer, agent, or representative. CONTRACTOR AS PRINCIPAL **SURETY** _(Seal) Contractor's Name and Corporate Seal (Seal) Surety's Name and Corporate Seal By: By: Signature (Attach Power of Attorney) Signature **Print Name** Print Name Title Title Attest: Attest: Signature Signature

Title

Note: Provide execution by additional parties, such as joint ventures, if necessary.

Title

FPID No. 442234-1, 442236-1, 442237-1, & 442346-1

Contractor and Surety, jointly and severally, bind themselves, their heirs, executors, administrators, successors, and assigns to Owner for the performance of the Contract, which is incorporated herein by reference.

- 1. If Contractor performs the Contract, Surety and Contractor have no obligation under this Bond, except to participate in conferences as provided in Paragraph 2.1.
- 2. If there is no Owner Default, Surety's obligation under this Bond shall arise after:
 - 2.1 Owner has notified Contractor and Surety, at the addresses described in Paragraph 9 below, that Owner is considering declaring a Contractor Default and has requested and attempted to arrange a conference with Contractor and Surety to be held not later than 15 days after receipt of such notice to discuss methods of performing the Contract. If Owner, Contractor, and Surety agree, Contractor shall be allowed a reasonable time to perform the Contract, but such an agreement shall not waive Owner's right, if any, subsequently to declare a Contractor Default; and
 - 2.2 Owner has declared a Contractor Default and formally terminated Contractor's right to complete the Contract. Such Contractor Default shall not be declared earlier than 20 days after Contractor and Surety have received notice as provided in Paragraph 2.1; and
 - 2.3 Owner has agreed to pay the Balance of the Contract Price to:
 - 1. Surety in accordance with the terms of the Contract; or
 - 2. Another contractor selected pursuant to Paragraph 3.3 to perform the Contract.
- 3. When Owner has satisfied the conditions of Paragraph 2, Surety shall promptly, and at Surety's expense, take one of the following actions:
 - 3.1 Arrange for Contractor, with consent of Owner, to perform and complete the Contract; or
 - 3.2 Undertake to perform and complete the Contract itself, through its agents or through independent contractors; or
 - 3.3 Obtain bids or negotiated proposals from qualified contractors acceptable to Owner for a contract for performance and completion of the Contract, arrange for a contract to be prepared for execution by Owner and contractor selected with Owner's concurrence, to be secured with performance and payment bonds executed by a qualified surety equivalent to the bonds issued on the Contract, and pay to Owner the amount of damages as described in Paragraph 5 in excess of the Balance of the Contract Price incurred by Owner resulting from Contractor Default; or
 - 3.4 Waive its right to perform and complete, arrange for completion, or obtain a new contractor, and with reasonable promptness under the circumstances:
 - 1. After investigation, determine the amount for which it may be liable to Owner and, as soon as practicable after the amount is determined, tender payment therefor to Owner; or
 - 2. Deny liability in whole or in part and notify Owner citing reasonstherefor.
- 4. If Surety does not proceed as provided in Paragraph 3 with reasonable promptness, Surety shall be deemed to be in default on this Bond 15 days after receipt of an additional written notice from Owner to Surety demanding that Surety perform its obligations under this Bond, and Owner shall be entitled to enforce any remedy available to Owner. If Surety proceeds as provided in Paragraph 3.4, and Owner refuses the payment tendered or Surety has denied liability, in whole or in part, without further notice Owner shall be entitled to enforce any remedy available to Owner.
- 5. After Owner has terminated Contractor's right to complete the Contract, and if Surety elects to act under Paragraph 3.1, 3.2, or 3.3 above, then the responsibilities of Surety to Owner shall not be greater than those of Contractor under the Contract, and the responsibilities of Owner to Surety shall not be greater than those of Owner under the Contract. To the limit of the amount of this Bond, but subject to commitment by Owner of the Balance of the Contract Price to mitigation of costs and damages on the Contract, Surety is obligated without duplication for:

- 5.1 The responsibilities of Contractor for correction of defective Work and completion of the Contract;
- 5.2 Additional legal, design professional, and delay costs resulting from Contractor's Default, and resulting from the actions of or failure to act of Surety under Paragraph 3; and
- 5.3 Liquidated damages, or if no liquidated damages are specified in the Contract, actual damages caused by delayed performance or non-performance of Contractor.
- 6. Surety shall not be liable to Owner or others for obligations of Contractor that are unrelated to the Contract, and the Balance of the Contract Price shall not be reduced or set off on account of any such unrelated obligations. No right of action shall accrue on this Bond to any person or entity other than Owner or its heirs, executors, administrators, or successors.
- 7. Surety hereby waives notice of any change, including changes of time, to Contract or to related subcontracts, purchase orders, and other obligations.
- 8. Any proceeding, legal or equitable, under this Bond may be instituted in any court of competent jurisdiction in the location in which the Work or part of the Work is located, and shall be instituted within two years after Contractor Default or within two years after Contractor ceased working or within two years after Surety refuses or fails to perform its obligations under this Bond, whichever occurs first. If the provisions of this paragraph are void or prohibited by law, the minimum period of limitation available to sureties as a defense in the jurisdiction of the suit shall be applicable.
- 9. Notice to Surety, Owner, or Contractor shall be mailed or delivered to the address shown on the signature page.
- 10. When this Bond has been furnished to comply with a statutory requirement in the location where the Contract was to be performed, any provision in this Bond conflicting with said statutory requirement shall be deemed deleted herefrom and provisions conforming to such statutory requirement shall be deemed incorporated herein. The intent is that this Bond shall be construed as a statutory bond and not as a common law bond.

11. Definitions.

- 11.1 Balance of the Contract Price: The total amount payable by Owner to Contractor under the Contract after all proper adjustments have been made, including allowance to Contractor of any amounts received or to be received by Owner in settlement of insurance or other Claims for damages to which Contractor is entitled, reduced by all valid and proper payments made to or on behalf of Contractor under the Contract.
- 11.2 Contract: The agreement between Owner and Contractor identified on the signature page, including all Contract Documents and changes thereto.
- 11.3 Contractor Default: Failure of Contractor, which has neither been remedied nor waived, to perform or otherwise to comply with the terms of the Contract.
- 11.4 Owner Default: Failure of Owner, which has neither been remedied nor waived, to pay Contractor as required by the Contract or to perform and complete or otherwise comply with the other terms thereof.

FOR INFORMATION ONLY (Name, Address and Telephone)
Surety Agency or Broker:
Owner's Representative (Engineer or Other Party):

5.2.10 Work Change Directive Form

				No
Date of Issuance:		Effe	ective Date:	
Project:	Owner: City of Bov	vling Green	C	Owner's Contract No.:
Contract:	,		D	ate of Contract:
Contractor:			E	ngineer's Project No.:
You are directed to pro	oceed promptly with t	he following ch	ange(s):	
Item No.	Description			
Attachments (list docu	ments supporting cha	nge):		
Purpose for Work Char	nge Directive: Work described herein t	n nroceed on the	hasis of Cost	of the Work due to:
	nt on pricing of proposed ch	-	Da313 01 C031	of the work due to.
□ Necessity to e	expedite Work described he	rein prior to agree	ing to changes	on Contract Price and Contract Time
Estimated change in Co	ontract Price and Cont	ract Times:		
Contract Price \$	(increase/de	crease) Cont	ract Time	(increase/decrease)
If the change involves an i	increase, the estimated a	amounts are not	to be exceede	ed without further authorization.
Recommended for Appr	oval by Engineer:			Date:
Authorized for Owner by	<i>/</i> :			Date:
Accepted for Contractor	hv:			Date:
	~1.			Date.
Approved by Funding Ag	gency (if applicable):			Date:

DIVISION 6: TECHNICAL SPECIFICATIONS

CONTRACT BIDDING DOCUMENTS

FOR CITY OF BOWLING GREEN ROADWAY IMPROVEMENTS

JONES STREET (FPID NO. 442234-1) BERTHA FULSE STREET (FPID NO. 442236-1) FAIR AVENUE (FPID NO. 442237-1) CHURCH AVENUE (FPID NO. 442346-1)



January 2021

PROJECT OWNER:

CITY OF BOWLING GREEN 104 EAST MAIN STREET BOWLING GREEN, FL 33834 (863) 375-2255

PREPARED BY:

ELISA T. HARDEN, P.E.

KIMLEY-HORN AND ASSOCIATES, INC.

116 SOUTH KENTUCKY AVENUE

LAKELAND, FL 33801

(863) 226-6862

ELISA.HARDEN@KIMLEY-HORN.COM

CA#00000696

ELISA T. HARDEN, P.E. FL REG. # 65710 KIMLEY-HORN AND ASSOCIATES, INC. 116 SOUTH KENTUCKY AVENUE LAKELAND, FL 33801

INFRASTRUCTURE ENGINEERING STANDARD SPECIFICATIONS

DIVISION 1	GENERAL REQUIREMENTS	3
SECTION 01005	GENERAL REQUIREMENTS	3
SECTION 01010	SUMMARY OF WORK	14
SECTION 01015	CONTROL OF WORK	16
SECTION 01030	SPECIAL PROJECT PROCEDURES	21
SECTION 01045	CUTTING AND PATCHING	25
SECTION 01050	FIELD ENGINEERING AND SURVEYING	27
SECTION 01090	REFERENCE STANDARDS	28
SECTION 01150	MEASUREMENT AND PAYMENT	32
SECTION 01152	REQUESTS FOR PAYMENT	36
SECTION 01153	CHANGE ORDER PROCEDURES	37
SECTION 01200	PROJECT MEETINGS	41
SECTION 01310	CONSTRUCTION SCHEDULE & PROJECT RESTRAINTS	43
SECTION 01340	SHOP DRAWINGS, PROJECT DATA AND SAMPLES	48
SECTION 01370	SCHEDULE OF VALUES	53
SECTION 01380	CONSTRUCTION PHOTOGRAPHS	54
SECTION 01410	TESTING AND TESTING LABORATORY SERVICES	56
SECTION 01510	TEMPORARY AND PERMANENT UTILITIES	58
SECTION 01570	TRAFFIC REGULATION	60
SECTION 01580	PROJECT IDENTIFICATION AND SIGNS	62
SECTION 01600	MATERIAL AND EQUIPMENT	64
SECTION 01620	STORAGE AND PROTECTION	66
SECTION 01700	CONTRACT CLOSEOUT	68
SECTION 01710	CLEANING	71
SECTION 01720	PROJECT RECORD DOCUMENTS	73
SECTION 01740	WARRANTIES AND BONDS	76
DIVISION 2	SITE WORK	78
SECTION 02100	SITE PREPARATION	78
SECTION 02276	TEMPORARY EROSION AND SEDIMENTATION CONTROL	80
SECTION 02485	SEEDING AND SODDING	82
SECTION 02618	ASPHALT CONCRETE PAVING	85

This specification includes by reference the Florida Department of Transportation Standard Specifications for Road and Bridge Construction, latest edition.

DIVISION 1 GENERAL REQUIREMENTS

SECTION 01005 GENERAL REQUIREMENTS

PART 1 GENERAL

1.01 SCOPE AND INTENT

A. Description

The work to be done consists of the furnishing of all labor, materials and equipment, and the performance of all work included in this Contract.

B. Work Included

The Contractor shall furnish all labor, superintendence, materials, plant, power, light, heat, fuel, water, tools, appliances, equipment, supplies, shop drawings, working drawings and other means of construction necessary or proper for performing and completing the work. The Contractor shall obtain and pay for all required permits necessary for the work. The Contractor shall perform and complete the work in the manner best calculated to promote rapid construction consistent with safety of life and property and to the satisfaction of the City, and in strict accordance with the Contract Documents. The Contractor shall clean up the work and maintain it during and after construction, until accepted, and shall do all work and pay all incidental costs. He shall repair or restore all structures and property that may be damaged or disturbed during performance of the work.

The cost of incidental work described in these General Requirements, for which there are no specific Contract Items, shall be considered as part of the general cost of doing the work and shall be included in the prices for the various Contract Items. No additional payment will be made.

The Contractor shall be solely responsible for the adequacy of his workmanship, materials and equipment.

C. Public Utility Installations and Structures

Public utility installations and structures shall be understood to include all poles, tracks, pipes, wires, conduits, house service connections, vaults, manholes and all other appurtenances and facilities pertaining thereto.

The Contractor shall protect all installations and structures from damage during the work. Access across any buried public utility installation or structure shall be made only in such locations and by means approved by the City. All required protective devices and construction shall be provided by the Contractor at his expense. All existing public utilities damaged by the Contractor which are shown on the Drawings or have been located in the field by the utility shall be repaired by the Contractor, at his expense, as approved by the City. No separate payment shall be made for such protection or repairs to public utility installations or structures.

Public utility installations or structures owned or controlled by the City or other

governmental body, which are required by this contract to be removed, relocated, replaced or rebuilt by the Contractor not identified in any separate bid item shall be considered as a part of the general cost of doing the work and shall be included in the prices bid for the various contract items. No separate payment shall be made.

Where public utility installations or structures owned or controlled by the City or other governmental body are encountered during the course of the work, and are not indicated on the Drawings or in the Specifications, and when, in the opinion of the City, removal, relocation, replacement or rebuilding is necessary to complete the work under this Contract, such work shall be accomplished by the utility having jurisdiction, or such work may be ordered, in writing by the City, for the contractor to accomplish. If such work is accomplished by the utility having jurisdiction, it will be carried out expeditiously and the Contractor shall give full cooperation to permit the utility to complete the removal, relocation, replacement or rebuilding as required. If such work is accomplished by the Contractor, it will be in accordance with the General and Supplemental General Conditions.

The Contractor shall give written notice to City and other governmental utility departments and other owners of public utilities of the location of his proposed construction operations, at least forty-eight hours in advance of breaking ground in any area or on any unit of the work. This can be accomplished by making the appropriate contact with the "Sunshine State One-Call of Florida, Inc. Call Center ("Call Sunshine") and per all requirements provided for in the Florida Underground Facilities Damage Prevention and Safety Act (Florida Statutes, Title XXXIII, Chapter 556).

The maintenance, repair, removal, relocation or rebuilding of public utility installations and structures, when accomplished by the Contractor as herein provided, shall be done by methods approved by the City.

1.02 DRAWINGS AND SPECIFICATIONS

A. Drawings

When obtaining data and information from the Drawings, figures shall be used in preference to scaled dimensions, and large scale drawings in preference to small scale drawings.

B. Copies Furnished to Contractor

The Contractor shall furnish each of the subcontractors, manufacturers, and material men such copies of the Contract Documents as may be required for their work. Additional copies of the Drawings, Gopher Tortoise Survey, and Specifications, when requested, may be furnished to the Contractor at cost of reproduction.

C. Supplementary Drawings

When, in the opinion of the City, it becomes necessary to explain more fully the work to be done or to illustrate the work further or to show any changes which may be required, drawings known as Supplementary Drawings, with specifications pertaining thereto, will be prepared by the City and five paper prints thereof will be given to the Contractor.

D. Contractor to Check Drawings and Data

The Contractor shall verify all dimensions, quantities and details shown on the Drawings,

Gopher Tortoise Survey, Supplementary Drawings, Schedules, Specifications or other data received from the City, and shall notify him of all errors, omissions, conflicts, and discrepancies found therein. Failure to discover or correct errors, conflicts or discrepancies shall not relieve the Contractor of full responsibility for unsatisfactory work, faulty construction or improper operation resulting therefrom nor from rectifying such conditions at his own expense. He will not be allowed to take advantage of any errors or omissions, as full instructions will be furnished by the City, should such errors or omissions be discovered. All schedules are given for the convenience of the City and the Contractor and are not guaranteed to be complete. The Contractor shall assume all responsibility for the making of estimates of the size, kind, and quality of materials and equipment included in work to be done under the Contract.

E. Specifications

The Technical Specifications consist of three parts: General, Products and Execution. The General Section contains General Requirements which govern the work. Products and Execution modify and supplement these by detailed requirements for the work and shall always govern whenever there appears to be a conflict.

F. Intent

All work called for in the Specifications applicable to this Contract, but not shown on the Drawings in their present form, or vice versa, shall be of like effect as if shown or mentioned in both. Work not specified in either the Drawings or in the Specifications, but involved in carrying out their intent or in the complete and proper execution of the work, is required and shall be performed by the Contractor as though it were specifically delineated or described.

The apparent silence of the Specifications as to any detail, or the apparent omission from them of a detailed description concerning any work to be done and materials to be furnished, shall be regarded as meaning that only the best general practice is to prevail and that only material and workmanship of the best quality is to be used, and interpretation of these Specifications shall be made upon that basis.

The inclusion of the Related Requirements (or work specified elsewhere) in the General part of the specifications is only for the convenience of the Contractor, and shall not be interpreted as a complete list of related Specification Sections.

1.03 MATERIALS AND EQUIPMENT

A. Manufacturer

All transactions with the manufacturers or subcontractors shall be through the Contractor, unless the Contractor shall request, in writing to the City, that the manufacturer or subcontractor deal directly with the City. Any such transactions shall not in any way release the Contractor from his full responsibility under this Contract.

Any two or more pieces or material or equipment of the same kind, type or classification, and being used for identical types of services, shall be made by the same manufacturer.

B. Delivery

The Contractor shall deliver materials in ample quantities to insure the most speedy and uninterrupted progress of the work so as to complete the work within the allotted time. The Contractor shall also coordinate deliveries in order to avoid delay in, or impediment of, the progress of the work of any related Contractor.

C. Tools and Accessories

The Contractor shall, unless otherwise stated in the Contract Documents, furnish with each type, kind or size of equipment, one complete set of suitably marked high grade special tools and appliances which may be needed to adjust, operate, maintain or repair the equipment. Such tools and appliances shall be furnished in approved painted steel cases, properly labeled and equipped with good grade cylinder locks and duplicate keys.

Spare parts shall be furnished as specified.

Each piece of equipment shall be provided with a substantial nameplate, securely fastened in place and clearly inscribed with the manufacturer's name, year of manufacture, serial number, weight and principal rating data.

D. Installation of Equipment.

The Contractor shall have on hand sufficient proper equipment and machinery of ample capacity to facilitate the work and to handle all emergencies normally encountered in work of this character.

Equipment shall be erected in a neat and workmanlike manner on the foundations at the locations and elevations shown on the Drawings, unless directed otherwise by the City during installation. All equipment shall be correctly aligned, leveled and adjusted for satisfactory operation and shall be installed so that proper and necessary connections can be made readily between the various units.

The Contractor shall furnish, install and protect all necessary anchor and attachment bolts and all other appurtenances needed for the installation of the devices included in the equipment specified. Anchor bolts shall be as approved by the City and made of ample size and strength for the purpose intended. Substantial templates and working drawings for installation shall be furnished.

The Contractor shall furnish all materials and labor for, and shall properly bed in nonshrink grout, each piece of equipment on its supporting base that rests on masonry foundations.

E. Service of Manufacturer's Engineer

The Contract prices for equipment shall include the cost of furnishing (as required by equipment specifications sections) a competent and experienced engineer or superintendent who shall represent the manufacturer and shall assist the Contractor, when required, to install, adjust, test and place in operation the equipment in conformity with the Contract Documents. After the equipment is placed in permanent operation by the City, such engineer or superintendent shall make all adjustments and tests required by the City to prove that such equipment is in proper and satisfactory operating condition,

and shall instruct such personnel as may be designated by the City in the proper operation and maintenance of such equipment.

1.04 INSPECTION AND TESTING

A. General

Inspection and testing of materials will be performed by the City unless otherwise specified.

For tests specified to be made by the Contractor, the testing personnel shall make the necessary inspections and tests and the reports thereof shall be in such form as will facilitate checking to determine compliance with the Contract Documents. Three (3) copies of the reports shall be submitted and authoritative certification thereof must be furnished to the City as a prerequisite for the acceptance of any material or equipment.

If, in the making of any test of any material or equipment, it is ascertained by the City that the material or equipment does not comply with the Contract, the Contractor will be notified thereof and he will be directed to refrain from delivering said material or equipment, or to remove it promptly from the site or from the work and replace it with acceptable material, without cost to the City.

Tests of electrical and mechanical equipment and appliances shall be conducted in accordance with recognized test codes of the ANSI, ASME, or the IEEE, except as may otherwise be stated herein.

The Contractor shall be fully responsible for the proper operation of equipment during tests and instruction periods and shall neither have nor make any claim for damage which may occur to equipment prior to the time when the City formally takes over the operation thereof.

B. Costs

All inspection and testing of materials furnished under this Contract will be performed by the Contractor without cost to the City, unless otherwise expressly specified.

The cost of shop and field tests of equipment and of certain other tests specifically called for in the Contract Documents shall be borne by the Contractor and such costs shall be deemed to be included in the Contract price.

Materials and equipment submitted by the Contractor as the equivalent to those specifically named in the Contract may be tested by the City for compliance. The Contractor shall reimburse the City for the expenditures incurred in making such tests on materials and equipment which are rejected for non-compliance.

C. Inspections of Materials

The Contractor shall give notice in writing to the City, at least two weeks in advance of his intention to commence the manufacture or preparation of materials especially manufactured or prepared for use in or as part of the permanent construction. Such

notice shall contain a request for inspection, the date of commencement and the expected date of completion of the manufacture of preparation of materials. Upon receipt of such notice, the City will arrange to have a representative present at such times during the manufacture as may be necessary to inspect the materials or he will notify the Contractor that the inspection will be made at a point other than the point of manufacture, or he will notify the Contractor that inspection will be waived. The Contractor must comply with these provisions before shipping any material. Such inspection shall not release the Contractor from the responsibility for furnishing materials meeting the requirements of the Contract Documents.

D. Certificate of Manufacture

When inspection is waived or when the City so requires, the Contractor shall furnish to him authoritative evidence in the form of Certificates of Manufacture that the materials to be used in the work have been manufactured and tested in conformity with the Contract Documents. These certificates shall be notarized and shall include copies of the results of physical tests and chemical analyses, where necessary, that have been made directly on the product or on similar products of the manufacturer.

E. Shop Tests of Operating Equipment

Each piece of equipment for which pressure, duty, capacity, rating, efficiency, performance, function or special requirements are specified shall be tested in the shop of the maker in a manner which shall conclusively prove that its characteristics comply fully with the requirements of the Contract Documents. No such equipment shall be shipped to the work until the City notifies the Contractor, in writing, that the results of such tests are acceptable.

The cost of shop tests and of furnishing manufacturer's preliminary and shop test data of operating equipment shall be borne by the Contractor.

F. Preliminary Field Tests

As soon as conditions permit, the Contractor shall furnish all labor, materials, and instruments and shall make preliminary field tests of equipment. If the preliminary field tests disclose any equipment furnished under this Contract which does not comply with the requirements of the Contract Documents, the Contractor shall, prior to the acceptance tests, make all changes, adjustments and replacements required. The furnishing Contractor shall assist in the preliminary field tests as applicable.

G. Final Field Tests

Upon completion of the work and prior to final payment, all equipment, piping, pavement, and embankment installed under this Contract shall be subjected to acceptance tests as specified or required to prove compliance with the Contract Documents.

The Contractor shall furnish labor, fuel, energy, water and all other materials, equipment and instruments necessary for all acceptance tests, at no additional cost to the City. The Supplier shall assist in the final field tests as applicable.

H. Failure of Tests

Any defects in the materials and equipment or their failure to meet the tests, guarantees or requirements of the Contract Documents shall be promptly corrected by the Contractor. The decision of the City as to whether or not the Contractor has fulfilled his obligations under the Contract shall be final and conclusive. If the Contractor fails to make these corrections or if the improved materials and equipment, when tested, shall again fail to meet the guarantees of specified requirements, the City, notwithstanding its partial payment for work, and materials and equipment, may reject the materials and equipment and may order the Contractor to remove them from the site at his own expense.

In case the City rejects any materials and equipment, then the Contractor shall replace the rejected materials and equipment within a reasonable time. If he fails to do so, the City may, after the expiration of a period of thirty (30) calendar days after giving him notice in writing, proceed to replace such rejected materials and equipment, and the cost thereof shall be deducted from any compensation due or which may become due the Contractor under his Contract.

I. Final Inspection

During such final inspections, the work shall be clean and free from water. In no case will the final pay application be prepared until the Contractor has complied with all requirements set forth and the City has made his final inspection of the entire work and is satisfied that the entire work is properly and satisfactorily constructed in accordance with the requirements of the Contract Document.

1.05 TEMPORARY STRUCTURES

A. Temporary Fences

If, during the course of the work, it is necessary to remove or disturb any fence or part thereof, the Contractor shall, at his own expense, if so ordered by the City, provide a suitable temporary fence which shall be maintained until the permanent fence is replaced. The City shall be solely responsible for the determination of the necessity for providing a temporary fence and the type of temporary fence to be used.

1.06 TEMPORARY SERVICES

A. First Aid

The Contractor shall keep upon the site, at each location where work is in progress, a completely equipped first aid kit and shall provide ready access thereto at all times when people are employed on the work.

1.07 LINES AND GRADES

A. Grade

All work under this Contract shall be constructed in accordance with the lines and grades shown on the Drawings, or as given by the City. The full responsibility for keeping alignment and grade shall rest upon the Contractor.

B. Safeguarding Marks The Contractor shall safeguard all points, stakes, grade marks, monuments and bench marks made or established on the work, bear the cost of reestablishing them if disturbed, and bear the entire expense of rectifying work improperly installed due to not maintaining or protecting or removing without authorization such established points, stakes and marks.

The Contractor shall safeguard all existing and known property corners, monuments and marks adjacent to but not related to the work and, if required, shall bear the cost of reestablishing them if disturbed or destroyed.

C. Datum Plane (not used)

1.08 ADJACENT STRUCTURES AND LANDSCAPING

A. Responsibility

The Contractor shall also be entirely responsible and liable for all damage or injury as a result of his operations to all other adjacent public and private property, structures of any kind and appurtenances thereto met with during the progress of the work. The cost of protection, replacement in their original locations and conditions or payment of damages for injuries to such adjacent public and private property and structures affected by the work, whether or not shown on the Drawings or the Gopher Tortoise Survey, and the removal, relocation and reconstruction of such items called for on the Drawings, Gopher Tortoise Survey or specified shall be included in the various Contract Items and no separate payments will be made therefore. Where such public and private property, structures of any kind and appurtenances thereto are not shown on the Drawings of Gopher Tortoise Survey and when, in the opinion of the City, additional work is deemed necessary to avoid interference with the work, payment therefore will be made as provided for in the General Conditions.

Contractor is expressly advised that the protection of buildings, structures, tunnels, tanks, pipelines, etc. and related work adjacent and in the vicinity of his operations, wherever they may be, is solely his responsibility. Conditional inspection of buildings or structures in the immediate vicinity of the project which may reasonably be expected to be affected by the Work shall be performed by and be the responsibility of the Contractor.

Contractor shall, before starting operations, make an examination of the interior and exterior of the adjacent structures, buildings, facilities, etc., and record by notes, measurements, photographs, etc., conditions which might be aggravated by open excavation and construction. Repairs or replacement of all conditions disturbed by the construction shall be made to the satisfaction of the City. This does not preclude conforming to the requirements of the insurance underwriters. Copies of surveys, photographs, reports, etc., shall be given to the City.

Prior to the beginning of any excavations, the Contractor shall advise the City of all buildings or structures on which he intends to perform work or which performance of the project work will affect.

B. Protection of Trees

- 1. All trees and shrubs outside of the limits of ditch filling activities as delineated in the contract documents shall be adequately protected by the Contractor with boxes and otherwise and in accordance with ordinances governing the protection of trees. No excavated materials shall be placed so as to injure such trees or shrubs. Trees or shrubs destroyed by negligence of the Contractor or his employees shall be replaced by him with new stock of similar size and age, at the proper season and at the sole expense of the Contractor.
- 2 Beneath trees or other surface structures, where possible, pipelines may be built in short tunnels, backfilled with excavated materials, except as otherwise specified, or the trees or structures carefully supported and protected from damage.
- 3. The City may order the Contractor, for the convenience of the City, to remove trees along the line or trench excavation. If so ordered, the City will obtain any permits required for removal of trees. Such tree removal ordered shall be paid for under the appropriate Contract Items.

C. Lawn Areas

Lawn areas shall be left in as good condition as before the starting of the work. Where sod is to be removed, it shall be carefully removed, and later replaced, or the area where sod has been removed shall be restored with new sod.

D. Restoration of Fences

Any fence, or part thereof, that is damaged or removed during the course of the work shall be replaced or repaired by the Contractor and shall be left in as good a condition as before the starting of the work. The manner in which the fence is repaired or replaced and the materials used in such work shall be subject to the approval of the City. The cost of all labor, materials, equipment, and work for the replacement or repair of any fence shall be deemed included in the appropriate Contract Item or items, or if no specific Item is provided therefore, as part of the overhead cost of the work, and no additional payment will be made therefore.

1.09 PROTECTION OF WORK AND PUBLIC

A. Barriers and Lights

During the prosecution of the work, the Contractor shall put up and maintain at all times such barriers and lights as will effectually prevent accidents. The Contractor shall provide suitable barricades, red lights, "danger" or "caution" or "street closed" signs and watchmen at all places where the work causes obstructions to the normal traffic or constitutes in any way a hazard to the public, in accordance with state and local requirements.

B. Smoke Prevention

A strict compliance with ordinances regulating the production and emission of smoke will be required. No open fires will be permitted other than those in designated burn areas as coordinated with the City of Bowling Green personnel.

C. Noise

The Contractor shall eliminate noise to as great an extent as practicable at all times. Air compressing plants shall be equipped with silencers and the exhaust of all engines or other power equipment shall be provided with mufflers. In the vicinity of hospitals and schools, special care shall be used to avoid noise or other nuisances. The Contractor shall strictly observe all local regulations and ordinances covering noise control.

D. Access to Public Services

Neither the materials excavated nor the materials or plant used in the construction of the work shall be so placed as to prevent free access to all fire hydrants, valves or manholes.

E. Dust prevention

The Contractor shall prevent dust nuisance from his operations or from traffic by keeping the roads and/or construction areas sprinkled with water at all times.

1.10 CUTTING AND PATCHING

The Contractor shall do all cutting, fitting or patching of his portion of the work that may be required to make the several parts thereof join and coordinate in a manner satisfactory to the City and in accordance with the Drawings and Specifications. The work must be done by competent workmen skilled in the trade required by the restoration.

1.11 CLEANING

A. During Construction

During construction of the work, the Contractor shall, at all times, keep the site of the work and adjacent premises as free from material, debris and rubbish as is practicable and shall remove the same from any portion of the site if, in the opinion of the City, such material, debris, or rubbish constitutes a nuisance or is objectionable. The Contractor shall remove from the site all of his surplus materials and temporary structures when no further need therefore develops.

B. Final Cleaning

At the conclusion of the work, all equipment, tools, temporary structures and materials belonging to the Contractor shall be promptly taken away, and he shall remove and promptly dispose of all water, dirt, rubbish or any other foreign substances.

The Contractor shall thoroughly clean all equipment and materials installed by him and shall deliver such materials and equipment undamaged in a bright, clean, polished and new operating condition.

1.12 MISCELLANEOUS

A. Protection Against Siltation and Bank Erosion

1. The Contractor shall arrange his operations to minimize siltation and bank erosion on construction sites and on existing or proposed water courses and drainage ditches.

The Contractor, at his own expense, shall remove any siltation deposits and correct any erosion problems as directed by the City which results from his construction operations.

B. Protection of Wetland Areas

The Contractor shall properly dispose of all surplus material, including soil, in accordance with Local, State and Federal regulations. Under no circumstances shall surplus material be disposed of in wetland areas outside of the limits of project activities as delineated in the contract documents as defined by the Florida Department of Environmental Protection or Southwest Florida Water Management District.

C. Existing Facilities

The work shall be so conducted to maintain existing facilities in operation insofar as is possible. Requirements and schedules of operations for maintaining existing facilities in service during construction shall be as described in the Special Provisions.

D. Use of Chemicals

All chemicals used during project construction or furnished for project operation, whether herbicide, pesticide, disinfectant, polymer, reactant, or of other classification, must show approval of either EPA or USDA. Use of all such chemicals and disposal of residues shall be in strict conformance with instructions.

PART 2 PRODUCTS (NOT USED)

PART 3 EXECUTION (NOT USED)

END OF SECTION

SECTION 01010 SUMMARY OF WORK

PART 1 GENERAL

1.01 WORK COVERED BY CONTRACT DOCUMENTS/REQUIREMENTS INCLUDED

- A The work included in this contract consists of the following:
 - 1. Milling and resurfacing of approximately 1,000-ft of existing asphalt approximately 32-ft in width.
 - 2 Replacement of existing signage and striping.
- B. The Contractor shall furnish all shop drawings, working drawings, labor, materials, equipment, tools, services and incidentals necessary to complete all work required by these Specifications and as shown on the Drawings and Gopher Tortoise Survey.
- C. The Contractor shall perform the work complete, in place and ready for continuous service and shall include any repairs, replacements, and/or restoration required as a result of damages caused prior to acceptance by the City.
- D. The Contractor shall furnish and install all materials, equipment and labor which is reasonably and properly inferable and necessary for the proper completion of the work, whether specifically indicated in the Drawings and/or Gopher Tortoise Survey or not.

1.02 CONTRACTS

Construct all the Work under a single contract.

1.03 WORK SEQUENCE

- A All work done under this Contract shall be done with a minimum of inconvenience to the users of the system or facility. The Contractor shall coordinate his work with private property owners such that existing utility services are maintained to all users to the maximum extent possible.
- B. The Contractor shall, if necessary and feasible, construct the work in stages to accommodate the City's use of the premises during the construction period; coordinate the construction schedule and operations with the City's Representative.
- C. The Contractor shall, where feasible, construct the Work in stages to provide for public convenience and not close off public use of any facility until completion of construction to provide alternative usage.

1.04 CONSTRUCTION AREAS

- A The Contractor shall: Limit his use of the construction areas for work and for storage, to allow for:
 - 1. Work by other Contractors.
 - 2. City's Use.
 - 3. Public Use.

- B. Coordinate use of work site under direction of City's Representative.
- C. Assume full responsibility for the protection and safekeeping of products under this Contract, stored on the site.
- D. Move any stored products under the Contractor's control, which interfere with operations of the City or separate contractor.
- E Obtain and pay for the use of additional storage of work areas needed for Contractor operations.

1.05 CITY OCCUPANCY

A It is assumed that portions of the Work will be completed prior to completion of the entire Work. Upon completion of construction of each individual facility, including testing, if the City, at its sole discretion, desires to accept the individual facility, the Contractor will be issued a dated certificate of completion and acceptance for each individual facility. The City will assume ownership and begin operation of the individual facility on that date and the three-year guaranty period shall commence on that date. The City has the option of not accepting the entire work as a whole until it is completed, tested and approved by the City.

1.06 PARTIAL CITY OCCUPANCY

The Contractor shall schedule his operations for completion of portions of the Work, as designated, for the City's occupancy prior to substantial completion of the entire work.

PART 2 PRODUCTS (NOT USED)

PART 3 EXECUTION (NOT USED)

END OF SECTION

SECTION 01015 CONTROL OF WORK

PART 1 GENERAL

1.01 WORK PROGRESS

The Contractor shall furnish personnel and equipment which will be efficient, appropriate and adequately sized to secure a satisfactory quality of work and a rate of progress which will insure the completion of the work within the time stipulated in the Contract. If at any time such personnel appears to the City to be inefficient, inappropriate, or insufficient for securing the quality of work required for producing the rate of progress aforesaid, he may order the Contractor to increase the efficiency, change the character, or increase the personnel and equipment and the Contractor shall conform to such order. Failure of the City to give such order shall in no way relieve the Contractor of his obligations to secure the quality of the work and rate of progress required.

1.02 PRIVATE LAND

The Contractor shall not enter or occupy private land outside of easements, except by permission of the affected property owner.

1.03 WORK LOCATIONS

Work shall be located substantially as indicated on the drawings, but the City reserves the right to make such modifications in locations as may be found desirable to avoid interference with existing structures or for other reasons.

1.04 OPEN EXCAVATIONS

- A. All open excavations shall be adequately safeguarded by providing temporary barricades, caution signs, lights and other means to prevent accidents to persons and damage to property. The Contractor shall, at his own expense, provide suitable and safe bridges and other crossings for accommodating travel by pedestrians and workmen. Bridges provided for access to private property during construction shall be removed when no longer required. If the excavation becomes a hazard, or if it excessively restricts traffic at any point, the City may require special construction procedures such as limiting the length of open trench, prohibiting stacking excavated material in the street and requiring that the trench shall not remain open overnight.
- B. The Contractor shall take precautions to prevent injury to the public due to open trenches. All trenches, excavated material, equipment, or other obstacles which could be dangerous to the public shall be barricaded and well lighted at all times when construction is not in progress.

1.05 DISTRIBUTION SYSTEMS AND SERVICES

- A. The Contractor shall avoid interruptions to water, telephone, cable TV, sewer, gas, or other related utility services. He shall notify the City and the appropriate agency well in advance of any requirement for dewatering, isolating, or relocating a section of a utility, so that necessary arrangements may be made.
- B. If it appears that utility service will be interrupted for an extended period, the City may

order the Contractor to provide temporary service lines at the Contractor's expense. Inconvenience of the users shall be kept to the minimum, consistent with existing conditions. The safety and integrity of the systems are of prime importance in scheduling work.

1.06 PROTECTION AND RELOCATION OF EXISTING STRUCTURES AND UTILITIES

- A. The Contractor shall assume full responsibility for the protection of all buildings, structures and utilities, public or private, including poles, signs, services to building utilities, gas pipes, water pipes, hydrants, sewers, drains and electric and telephone cables and other similar facilities, whether or not they are shown on the Drawings. The Contractor shall carefully support and protect all such structures and utilities from injury of any kind. Any damage resulting from the Contractor's operation shall be repaired by the Contractor at his expense.
- B. The Contractor shall bear full responsibility for obtaining locations of all underground structures and utilities (including existing water services, drain lines and sewers). Services to buildings shall be maintained and all costs or charges resulting from damage thereto shall be paid by the Contractor.
- C. Protection and temporary removal and replacement of existing utilities and structures as described in this Section shall be a part of the work under the Contract and all costs in connection therewith shall be included in the unit prices established in the Bid.
- D. If, in the opinion of the City, permanent relocation of a utility owned by the City is required, he may direct the Contractor, in writing, to perform the work. Work so ordered will be paid for at the Contract unit prices, if applicable, or as extra work as classified in the General Conditions. If relocation of a privately owned utility is required, the City will notify the utility to perform the work as expeditiously as possible. The Contractor shall fully cooperate with the City and utility and shall have no claim for delay due to such relocation. The Contractor shall notify public utility companies in writing at least 48 hours (excluding Saturdays, Sundays and legal holidays) before excavating near their utilities.

1.07 TEST PITS

Test pits for the purpose of locating underground pipeline or structures in advance of the construction are not anticipated for this Contract.

1.08 CARE AND PROTECTION OF PROPERTY

- A. The Contractor shall be responsible for the preservation of all public and private property and shall use every precaution necessary to prevent damage thereto. If any direct or indirect damage is done to public or private property by or on account of any act, omission, neglect, or misconduct in the execution of the work on the part of the Contractor, such property shall be restored by the Contractor, at his expense, to a condition equal or better to that existing before the damage was done, or he shall make good the damage in another manner acceptable to the City.
- B. All sidewalks or trails which are disturbed by the Contractor's operations shall be restored to their original or better condition by the use of similar or comparable materials. All appurtenances shall be restored in a condition equal to the original construction and in accordance with the best modern practice.

- C. Along the location of this work, all fences, walks, bushes, trees, shrubbery and other physical features shall be protected and restored in a thoroughly workmanlike manner unless otherwise shown on the drawings. Fences and other features removed by the Contractor shall be replaced in the location indicated by the City as soon as conditions permit. All grass areas beyond the limits of construction which have been damaged by the Contractor shall be regraded and sodded to equal or exceed original conditions.
- D. Trees outside of the project activity areas as delineated in the contract documents, shall be boxed or otherwise protected against injury. The Contractor shall trim all branches that are liable to damage because of his operations, but in no case shall any tree be cut or removed without prior notification to the City. All injuries to bark, trunk, limbs and roots of trees shall be repaired by dressing, cutting and painting according to approved methods, using only approved tools and materials.
- E. The protection, removal and replacement of existing physical features along the line of work shall be a part of the work under the Contract and all costs in connection therewith shall be included in the unit and/or lump sum prices established under the items in the Bid.

1.09 MAINTENANCE OF TRAFFIC

- A. Open pits, trenches, unpaved streets, debris, or other obstructions due to construction that will prevent the normal flow of traffic during an extended construction stoppage, for any reason, shall be minimized. In the event an extended construction stoppage is found to be necessary, Contractor shall, at his own expense, provide normal traffic flow during extended construction stoppage. Extended stoppage will be defined by the City.
- B. All excavated material shall be placed so that vehicular and pedestrian traffic may be maintained at all times. If the Contractor's operations cause traffic hazards, he shall repair the road surface, provide temporary roadways, erect wheel guards or fences, or take other safety measures which are satisfactory to the City.
- C. Any changes to the traffic pattern require a Traffic Control Plan that is coordinated with the City of Bowling Green personnel.

1.10 WATER FOR CONSTRUCTION PURPOSES

- A In locations where public water supply is available, the Contractor may purchase water for all construction purposes.
- B. The Contractor shall be responsible for paying for all water tap fees incurred for the purpose of obtaining a potable water service or temporary use meter.

1.11 MAINTENANCE OF FLOW

The Contractor shall at his own cost, provide for the flow of sewers, drains and water courses interrupted during the progress of the work and shall immediately cart away and remove all offensive matter. The entire procedure of maintaining existing flow shall be fully discussed with the City well in advance of the interruption of any flow.

1.12 CLEANUP

During the course of the work, the Contractor shall keep the site of his operations in as clean and neat a condition as is possible. He shall dispose of all residue resulting from the construction work and at the conclusion of the work, he shall remove and haul away any surplus excavation, broken pavement, lumber, equipment, temporary structures and any other refuse remaining from the construction operations and shall leave the entire site of the work in a neat and orderly condition.

1.13 COOPERATION WITHIN THIS CONTRACT

- All firms or person authorized to perform any work under this Contract shall cooperate with the General Contractor and his subcontractors or trades and shall assist in incorporating the work of other trades where necessary or required.
- B. Cutting and patching, drilling and fitting shall be carried out where required by the trade or subcontractor having jurisdiction, unless otherwise indicated herein or directed by the City.

1.14 PROTECTION OF CONSTRUCTION AND EQUIPMENT

- A All newly constructed work shall be carefully protected from injury in any way. No wheeling or walking or placing of heavy loads on it shall be allowed and all portions injured shall be reconstructed by the Contractor at his own expense.
- B. All structures shall be protected in a manner approved by the City. Should any of the floors or other parts of the structures become heaved, cracked, or otherwise damaged, all such damaged portions of the work shall be completely repaired and made good by the Contractor, at his own expense and to the satisfaction of the City. If, in the final inspection of the work, any defects, faults, or omissions are found, the Contractor shall cause the same to be repaired or removed and replaced by proper materials and workmanship without extra compensation for the materials and labor required. Further, the Contractor shall be fully responsible for the satisfactory maintenance and repair of the construction and other work undertaken herein, for at least the warranty period described in the Contract.
- C. Further, the Contractor shall take all necessary precautions to prevent damage to any structure due to water pressure during and after construction and until such structure is accepted and taken over by the City.

1.15 CONSTRUCTION WITHIN RIGHT-OF-WAY

Where pipe lines are installed within City right-of-way, all excavation backfill and compaction for the purpose of reconstructing roadways and/or adjacent slopes contiguous thereto shall be in accordance with FDOT Standards and Specifications. Contractor shall satisfy the authorized representative of the FDOT with respect to proper safety procedures, construction methods, required permitting, etc., within the FDOT right-of-way.

PART 2 PRODUCTS (NOT USED)

PART 3 EXECUTION (NOT USED)

SECTION 01030

PART 1 GENERAL

1.01 PERMITS

Upon notice of award, the Contractor shall immediately apply for all applicable permits not previously obtained by the City to do the work from the appropriate governmental agency or agencies. No work shall commence until all applicable permits have been obtained and copies delivered to the City. The costs for obtaining all permits shall be borne by the Contractor.

1.02 CONNECTIONS TO EXISTING SYSTEM

The Contractor shall perform all work necessary to locate, excavate and prepare for connections to the existing systems all as shown on the Drawings or where directed by the City. The cost for this work and for the actual connection shall be included in the price bid for the project and shall not result in any additional cost to the City. The termination point for each contract shall be as shown on the Contract Drawings.

1.03 RELOCATIONS

The Contractor shall be responsible for the coordination of the relocation of structures, including but not limited to light poles, power poles, signs, sign poles, fences, piping, conduits and drains that interfere with the positioning of the work as set out on the Drawings. No relocation of the items under this Contract shall be done without approval from the City.

1.04 EXISTING UNDERGROUND PIPING, STRUCTURES AND UTILITIES

- A. The attention of the Contractor is drawn to the fact that during excavation, the possibility exists of the Contractor encountering various utility lines not shown on the Drawings. The Contractor shall exercise extreme care before and during excavation to locate and flag these lines as to avoid damage to the existing lines.
- B. It is the responsibility of the Contractor to ensure that all utility or other poles, the stability of which may be endangered by the close proximity of excavation, are temporarily stayed in position while work proceeds in the vicinity of the pole and that the utility or other companies concerned be given reasonable advance notice.
- C. The existing utility locations are shown without express or implied representation, assurance, or guarantee that they are complete or correct or that they represent a true picture of underground piping to be encountered. The Contractor shall be responsible for notifying the various utility companies to locate their respective utilities in advance of construction in conformance with all requirements provided for in the Florida Underground Facilities Damage Prevention and Safety Act (Florida Statutes, Title XXXIII, Chapter 556).
- D. The existing piping and utilities that interfere with new construction shall be rerouted as shown, specified, or required. Before any piping and utilities not shown on the Drawings are disturbed, the Contractor shall notify the City and shall provide suggestions on how best to resolve the issue.

- E. The Contractor shall exercise care in any excavation to locate all existing piping and utilities. All utilities which do not interfere with complete work shall be carefully protected against damage. Any existing utilities damaged in any way by the Contractor shall be restored or replaced by the Contractor at his expense as directed by the City.
- F. It is intended that wherever existing utilities such as water, sewer, gas, telephone, electrical, or other service lines must be crossed, deflection of the pipe within recommended limits and cover shall be used to satisfactorily clear the obstruction unless otherwise indicated in the Drawings. However, when in the opinion of the City this procedure is not feasible, he may direct the use of fittings for a utilities crossing as detailed on the Drawings. No deflections will be allowed in gravity sanitary sewer lines or in existing storm sewer lines.

1.05 SUSPENSION OF WORK DUE TO WEATHER

Refer to FDOT Standards and Specifications Book, Section 8.

1.06 HURRICANE PREPAREDNESS PLAN

- A. Within 30 days of the date of Notice to Proceed, the Contractor shall submit to the City a Hurricane Preparedness Plan. The plan should outline the necessary measures which the Contractor proposes to perform at no additional cost to the City in case of a hurricane warning.
- B. In the event of inclement weather, or whenever City shall direct, Contractor shall insure that he and his Subcontractors shall carefully protect work and materials against damage or injury from the weather. If, in the opinion of the City, any portion of work or materials is damaged due to the failure on the part of the Contractor or Subcontractors to protect the work, such work and materials shall be removed and replaced at the expense of the Contractor.

1.07 POWER SUPPLY

Electricity as may be required for construction and permanent power supply shall be secured and purchased by the Contractor.

1.08 SALVAGE

Any existing equipment or material, including, but not limited to millings, valves, pipes, fittings, couplings, etc., which is removed or replaced as a result of construction under this project may be designated as salvage by the City and if so shall be protected for a reasonable time until picked up by the City. Any equipment or material not worthy of salvaging, as directed by the City, shall be disposed of by the Contractor at no additional cost.

1.09 DEWATERING

A. The Contractor shall do all groundwater pumping necessary to prevent flotation of any part of the work during construction operations with his own equipment.

B. The Contractor shall pump out water and wastewater which may seep or leak into the excavations for the duration of the Contract and with his own equipment. He shall dispose of this water in an appropriate manner.

1.10 ADDITIONAL PROVISIONS

- A Before commencing work on any of the existing pipelines, structures or equipment, the Contractor shall notify the City, in writing, at least 10 calendar days in advance of the date he proposes to commence such work.
- B. The Contractor shall provide, at his own expense, all necessary temporary facilities for access to and for protection of, all existing facilities. The City's personnel must have ready access at all times to the existing facilities. The Contractor is responsible for all damage to existing structures, equipment and facilities caused by his construction operations and must repair all such damage when and as ordered by the City.

1.11 CONSTRUCTION CONDITIONS

The Contractor shall strictly adhere to the specific requirements of the governmental unit(s) and/or agency(ies) having jurisdiction over the work. Wherever there is a difference in the requirements of a jurisdictional body and these Specifications, the more stringent shall apply.

1.12 PUBLIC NUISANCE

- A The Contractor shall not create a public nuisance including but not limited to encroachment on adjacent lands, flooding of adjacent lands, excessive noise or dust.
- B. Sound levels must meet City of Bowling Green requirements. Sound levels in excess of such requirements are sufficient cause to have the work halted until equipment can be quieted to these levels. Work stoppage by the City for excessive noise shall not relieve the Contractor of the other portions of this specification.
- C. No extra charge may be made for time lost due to work stoppage resulting from the creation of a public nuisance.

1.13 WARRANTIES

- A All material supplied under these Specifications shall be warranted by the Contractor and the manufacturers for a period of three (3) years with the exception of seeding and sodding which shall be ninety (90) days. Warranty period shall commence on the date of City acceptance.
- B. The material shall be warranted to be free from defects in workmanship, design and materials. If any part of the system should fail during the warranty period, it shall be replaced at no expense to the City. All material and installation costs shall be 100% borne by the Contractor.
- C. The manufacturer's warranty period shall run concurrently with the Contractor's warranty or guarantee period. No exception to this provision shall be allowed. The Contractor

- shall be responsible for obtaining warranties from each of the respective suppliers or manufacturers for all the material specified under these contract specifications,
- D. In the event that the manufacturer is unwilling to provide a three-year warranty commencing at the time of City acceptance, the Contractor shall obtain from the manufacturer a four (4) year warranty starting at the time of equipment delivery to the job site. This four-year warranty shall not relieve the Contractor of the three-year warranty starting at the time of City acceptance of the equipment.

1.14 FUEL STORAGE & FILLING

- A If the contractor is storing fuel on site, or doing his own fuel filling of portable equipment (other than hand-held equipment), he is responsible for any required response, clean-up or reporting required, at no additional cost to the City.
- B. The Contractor shall prepare and submit a fuel storage / spill abatement plan prior to start of construction if required.
- PART 2 **PRODUCTS (NOT USED)**
- PART 3 **EXECUTION (NOT USED)**

SECTION 01045 CUTTING AND PATCHING

PART 1 GENERAL

1.01 REQUIREMENTS INCLUDED

- A. The Contractor shall be responsible for all cutting, fitting and patching, including excavation and backfill, required to complete the work or to:
 - 1. Make its several parts fit together properly.
 - 2. Uncover portions of the work to provide for installation of ill-timed work.
 - 3. Remove and replace defective work.
 - 4. Remove and replace work not conforming to requirements of Contract Documents.
 - 5. Provide penetrations of non-structural surfaces for installation of piping and electrical conduit.

PART 2 PRODUCTS

2.01 MATERIALS

Comply with specifications and standards for each specific product involved.

PART 3 EXECUTION

3.01 INSPECTION

- A. Inspect existing conditions of project, including elements subject to damage or to movement during cutting and patching.
- B. After uncovering work, inspect conditions affecting installation of products, or performance of work.
- C. Report unsatisfactory or questionable conditions to City. Do not proceed with work until City has provided further instructions.

3.02 PREPARATION

- A. Provide adequate temporary support as necessary to assure structural value to integrity of affected portion of work.
- B. Provide devices and methods to protect other portions of project from damage.
- C. Provide protection from elements for that portion of the project which may be exposed by cutting and patching work and maintain excavations free from water.

3.03 PERFORMANCE

A. Execute cutting and demolition by methods which will prevent damage to other work and

- will provide proper surfaces to receive installation of repairs.
- B. Execute excavating and backfilling by methods which will prevent settlement or damage to other work.
- C. Fit and adjust products to provide a finished installation to comply with specified products, functions, tolerances and finishes.
- D. Restore work which has been cut or removed; install new products to provide completed work in accordance with the requirements of the Contract Documents.
- E. Replace surfaces airtight to pipes, sleeves, ducts, conduit and other penetrations through surfaces.
- F. Refinish entire surfaces as necessary to provide an even finish to match adjacent finishes.

SECTION 01050 FIELD ENGINEERING AND SURVEYING

PART 1 GENERAL

1.01 REQUIREMENTS INCLUDED

- A The Contractor shall provide and pay for any field surveying service required for the project.
- B. The Contractor shall furnish and set all necessary stakes to establish the lines and grades as shown on the Contract Drawings and layout each portion of the Work of the Contract.

1.02 QUALIFICATION OF SURVEYOR AND ENGINEER

All construction staking shall be conducted by or under the supervision of a Florida Registered Professional Surveyor and Mapper. The Contractor shall be responsible for the layout of all such lines and grades, which will be subject to verification by the City.

1.03 SURVEY REFERENCE POINTS

- A Existing basic horizontal and vertical control points for the Project are designated on the Contract Drawings.
- B. Locate and protect all survey monumentation, property comers and project control points prior to starting work and preserve all permanent reference points during construction. All costs associated with the replacement of all survey monumentation, property corners and project control points shall be borne by the Contractor.

Make no changes or relocations without prior written notice to City.

Report to City when any reference point is lost or destroyed, or requires relocation because of necessary changes in grades or locations.

Require surveyor to replace project control points which may be lost or destroyed.

Establish replacements based on original survey control.

1.04 PROJECT SURVEY REQUIREMENTS

The Contractor shall establish temporary bench marks as needed, referenced to data established by survey control points.

1.05 RECORDS

The Contractor shall employ a Professional Engineer or Surveyor registered in the State of Florida to verify survey data and properly prepare record drawings per Section 01720.

PART 2 PRODUCTS (NOT USED)

PART 3 EXECUTION (NOT USED)

SECTION 01090 REFERENCE STANDARDS

PART 1 GENERAL

1.01 REQUIREMENTS

Abbreviations and acronyms used in Contract Documents to identify reference standards.

- A. Application: When a standard is specified by reference, comply with requirements and recommendations stated in that standard, except when requirements are modified by the Contract Documents, or applicable codes established stricter standards.
- B. Publication Date: The most recent publication in effect on the date of issue of Contract Documents, except when a specific publication date is specified.

1.03 ABBREVIATIONS, NAMES AND ADDRESSES OR ORGANIZATIONS

Obtain copies of reference standards direct from publication source, when needed for proper performance of work, or when required for submittal by Contract Documents.

AA Aluminum Association

818 Connecticut Avenue, N.W. Washington, DC 20006

AASHTO American Association of State Highway and Transportation

Officials 444 North Capital Street, N.W.

Washington, DC 20001

ACI American Concrete Institute

Box 19150 Reford Station Detroit, MI 48219

Al Asphalt Institute

Asphalt Institute Building College

Park, MD 20740

AISC American Institute of Steel Construction

1221 Avenue of the Americas

New York, NY 10020

AISI American Iron and Steel Institute

1000 16th Street NW Washington, DC 20036

ANSI American National Standards Institute

1430 Broadway New York, NY 10018 **ASHRAE** American Society of Heating, Refrigerating and Air Conditioning

Engineer

1791 Tullie Circle, N.E. Atlanta, GA 30329

ASME American Society of Mechanical

Engineers 345 East 47th Street

New York, NY 10017

American Society for Testing and **ASTM**

Materials 1916 Race Street Philadelphia, PA 19103

AWWA American Water Works Association 6666

> West Quincy Avenue Denver, CO 80235

AWS American Welding Society 2501 N.W. 7th

Street Miami, FL 33125

CRSI Concrete Reinforcing Steel Institute

180 North LaSalle Street, Suite 2110

Chicago, IL 60601

FDEP Florida Department of Environmental Protection

> 3900 Commonwealth Blvd. Tallahassee, Florida 32399

Florida Department of Transportation Standards Specifications for Road and Bridge Construction **FDOT**

605 Suwannee St.

Tallahassee, FL 32399-0450

FWC Florida Fish and Wildlife Conservation

Commission Southwest Region Office

3900 Drane Field Road Lakeland, FL 33811

Federal Specification FS

General Services Administration Specifications and Consumer

Information Distribution Section (WFSIS)

Washington Navy Yard, Bldg. 197

Washington, DC 20407

Metal Lath/Steel Framing Association 221 MLSFA

North LaSalle Street Chicago, IL 60601

MMA Monorail Manufacturer's Association 1326 Freeport Road

Pittsburgh, PA 15238

NAAMM National Association of Architectural Metal Manufacturers

21 North LaSalle Street

Chicago, IL 60601

NEMA National Electrical Manufacturer's Assoc.

2101 L Street N.W. Washington, DC 20037

NRCS United States Department of Agriculture Natural Resources

Conservation Service Sarasota Services Center

6942 Professional Pkwy E

Sarasota, FL 34240

OHSA Occupational Safety and Health Assoc.

5807 Breckenridge Pkwy., Suite A Tampa,

FL 33610-4249

PCA Portland Cement Association

5420 Old Orchard Road Skokie,

IL 20076

Prestressed Concrete Institute 20

PCI North Wacker Drive Chicago, IL 60606

Steel Door Institute

712 Lakewood Center North

SDI Cleveland, OH 44107

Sheet Metal and Air Conditioning Contractor's National Association

SMACNA 8224 Old Court House Road

Vienna, VA 2218

Steel Structures Painting Council

SSPC 402 24th Street, Suite 600

Pittsburgh, PA 15213

SWFWMD Southwest Florida Water Management District 2379

Broad Street

Brooksville, FL 34604-6899

UL Underwriter's Laboratories, Inc.

333 Pfingston Road

Northbrook, IL 600

PART 2 PRODUCTS (NOT USED)

PART 3 EXECUTION (NOT USED)

SECTION 01150 MEASUREMENT AND PAYMENT

PART 1

1.01

GENERAL SCOPE

- A. The scope of this section of the Contract Documents is to further define the items included in each Bid Item in the Bid Form section of the Contract Documents. Payment will be made based on the specified items included in the description in this section for each bid item.
- B. All contract prices included in the Bid Form section will be full compensation for all shop drawings, working drawings, labor, materials, tools, equipment and incidentals necessary to complete the construction as shown on the Drawings and/or as specified in the Contract Documents to be performed under this Contract. Actual quantities of each item bid on a unit price basis will be determined upon completion of the construction in the manner set up for each item in this section of the Specifications. Payment for all items listed in the Bid Form will constitute full compensation for all work shown and/or specified to be performed under this Contract.

1.02 ESTIMATED QUANTITIES

The quantities shown are approximate and are given only as a basis of calculation upon which the award of the Contract is to be made. The City does not assume any responsibility for the final quantities, nor shall the Contractor claim misunderstanding because of such estimate of quantities. Final payment will be made only for satisfactorily completed quantity of each item.

1.03 WORK OUTSIDE AUTHORIZED LIMITS

No payment will be made for work constructed outside the authorized limits of work.

1.04 MEASUREMENT STANDARDS

Unless otherwise specified for the particular items involved, all measurements of distance shall be taken horizontally or vertically.

1.05 AREA MEASUREMENTS

In the measurement of items to be paid for on the basis of area of finished work, the lengths and/or widths to be used in the calculations shall be the final dimensions measured along the surface of the completed work within the neat lines shown or designated.

1.06 LUMP SUM ITEMS

Where payment for items is shown to be paid for on a lump sum basis, no separate payment will be made for any item of work required to complete the lump sum items. Lump sum contracts shall be complete, tested and fully operable prior to request for final payment. Contractor may be required to provide a break-down of the lump sum totals.

1.07 UNIT PRICE ITEM

Separate payment will be made for the items of work described herein and listed on the Bid

Form. Any related work not specifically listed but required for satisfactory completion of the work shall be considered to be included in the scope of the appropriate listed work items.

No separate payment will be made for the following items and the cost of such work shall be included in the applicable pay items of work. Final payments shall not be requested by the Contractor or made by the City until as-built (record) drawings have been submitted and approved by the City.

- 1. Shop Drawings, Working Drawings.
- 2. Clearing, grubbing and grading except as hereinafter specified.
- 3. Trench excavation, including necessary pavement removal and rock removal, except as otherwise specified.
- 4. Dewatering and disposal of surplus water.
- 5. Structural fill, backfill, and grading.
- 6. Replacement of unpaved roadways, and shrubbery plots.
- 7. Cleanup and miscellaneous work.
- 8. Foundation and borrow materials, except as hereinafter specified.
- 9. Testing and placing system in operation.
- 10. Any material and equipment required to be installed and utilized for the tests.
- 11. Pipe, structures, pavement replacement, asphalt and shell driveways and/or appurtenances included within the limits of lump sum work, unless otherwise shown.
- 12. Maintaining the existing quality of service during construction.
- 13. Maintaining or detouring of traffic.
- 14. Appurtenant work as required for a complete and operable system.
- 15. Seeding and hydromulching.
- As-built Record Drawings.

BID ITEM NO. 1 — MOBILIZATION

Measurement and payment for this Bid Item shall include full compensation for the required 100 percent (100%) Performance Bond, 100 Percent (100%) Payment Bond, all required insurance for the project and the Contractor's mobilization and demobilization costs as shown in the Bid Form. Final payments shall not be requested by the Contractor or made by the Owner until tests have been submitted and approved by the Engineer.

Payment for mobilization shall not exceed 10 percent (10%) of the total Contract cost unless the Contractor can prove to the Owner that his actual mobilization cost exceeds 10 percent (10%).

BID ITEM NO. 2 — MAINTENANCE OF TRAFFIC

Payment for all work included, but is not limited to, under this Bid Item shall represent full compensation in accordance with the lump sum price bid for maintenance of traffic.

Measurement for periodic payments of this lump sum bid item will be in accordance with the approved Schedule of Values, to be supplied by the Contractor in accordance with the Contract Documents.

BID ITEM NO. 3 — MILLING EXISTING ASPHALT PAVEMENT

Payment for all work included, but is not limited to, under this Bid Item shall represent full compensation in accordance with the lump sum price bid for milling existing asphalt pavement.

Measurement for the proposed milling shall be per square yard shown on the Contract Drawings or as ordered by the Engineer in writing.

BID ITEM NO. 4 — SUPERPAVE ASPHALT CONCRETE TRAFFIC A (1" SP 9.5)

Payment for all work included, but is not limited to, under this Bid Item shall represent full compensation in accordance with the lump sum price bid for placing superpave asphalt concrete.

Measurement for the proposed paving shall be per ton shown on the Contract Drawings or as ordered by the Engineer in writing.

BID ITEM NO. 5—SUPERPAVE ASPHALT CONCRETE TRAFFIC A (1.5 "SP 12.5)

Payment for all work included, but is not limited to, under this Bid Item shall represent full compensation in accordance with the lump sum price bid for placing superpave asphalt concrete.

Measurement for the proposed paving shall be per ton shown on the Contract Drawings or as ordered by the Engineer in writing.

BID ITEM NO. 6 — THERMOPLASTIC STANDARD, WHITE, 24"

Payment for all work included, but is not limited to, under this Bid Item shall represent full compensation in accordance with the lump sum price bid for placing thermoplastic striping.

Measurement for the proposed striping shall be per linear foot shown on the Contract Drawings or as ordered by the Engineer in writing.

BID ITEM NO. 7 — THERMOPLASTIC STANDARD, WHITE, 6"

Payment for all work included, but is not limited to, under this Bid Item shall represent full compensation in accordance with the lump sum price bid for placing thermoplastic striping.

Measurement for the proposed striping shall be per linear foot shown on the Contract Drawings or as ordered by the Engineer in writing.

BID ITEM NO. 8 — THERMOPLASTIC STANDARD, YELLOW, 6"

Payment for all work included, but is not limited to, under this Bid Item shall represent full compensation in accordance with the lump sum price bid for placing thermoplastic striping.

Measurement for the proposed striping shall be per linear foot shown on the Contract Drawings or as ordered by the Engineer in writing.

BID ITEM NO. 9 — CONTINGENCY

Payment for all work under this Bid Item shall be made only at the City's discretion. This Bid Item shall not exceed 10% of the Bidders Total Base Bid. The Bidder shall calculate and enter a dollar amount for this Bid Item.

- PART 2 PRODUCTS (NOT USED)
- PART 3 EXECUTION (NOT USED)

SECTION 01152 REQUESTS FOR PAYMENT

PART 1 GENERAL

1.01 REQUIREMENTS INCLUDED

Submit Applications for Payment to the Project Manager or as directed at the preconstruction meeting, in accordance with the schedule established by Conditions of the Contract and Agreement between City and Contractor.

1.02 FORMAT AND DATA REQUIRED

- A. Submit payment requests in the form provided by the City with itemized data typed in accordance with the Bid Form.
- B. Provide construction photographs in accordance with Contract Documents.

1.03 SUBSTANTIATING DATA FOR PROGRESS PAYMENTS

- A. When the City requires substantiating data, Contractor shall submit suitable information with a cover letter.
- B. Submit one copy of data and cover letter for each copy of application.

1.04 PREPARATION OF APPLICATION FOR FINAL PAYMENT

Fill in application form as specified forprogress payments.

1.05 SUBMITTAL PROCEDURE

- Submit applications for payment at the times stipulated in the Agreement.
- B. Number: Three (3) copies of each application; all signed and certified by the Contractor.

PART PRODUCTS (NOT USED)

EXECUTION (NOT USED)

PART 3

SECTION 01153 CHANGE ORDER PROCEDURES

PART 1 GENERAL

1.01 DEFINITION

- A. Change Order: Change in contract scope, price or time that must be approved and executed by the Project Representative before it becomes effective.
- B. Administrative Change Adjustment: Minor change order under 10% of project cost or 20% time, does not have to be Board approved.
- C. Field Order: Change to contract quantity that does not require a change of price.

1.02 REQUIREMENTS INCLUDED

- A. The Contractor shall promptly implement change order procedures:
 - 1. Provide full written data required to evaluate changes.
 - 2. Maintain detailed records of work done on a time-and-material/force account basis.
 - 3. Provide full documentation to City on request.
- B. The Contractor shall designate a member of the Contractor's organization who:
 - 1. Is authorized to accept changes to the Work.
 - 2. Is responsible for informing others in the Contractor's employ of the authorized changes into the Work.

1.03 PRELIMINARY PROCEDURES

- A. Project Manager may initiate changes by submitting a Request to Contractor. Request will include:
 - 1. Detailed description of the change, products, costs and location of the change in the Project.
 - 2. Supplementary or revised Drawings and Specifications.
 - 3. The projected time extension for making the change.
 - 4. A specified period of time during which the requested price will be considered valid.
 - 5. Such request is for information only and is not an instruction to execute the changes, nor to stop work in progress.
- B. Contractor may initiate changes by submitting a written notice to the Project Manager, containing:
 - 1. Description of the proposed changes.
 - 2. Statement of the reason for making the changes.
 - 3. Statement of the effect on the Contract Sum and the Contract Time.
 - 4. Statement of the effect on the work of separate contractors.
 - 5. Documentation supporting any change in Contract Sum or Contract Time, as appropriate

1.04 FIELD ORDER CHANGE

- A. In lieu of a Change Order, the Project Manager may issue a Field Order for the Contractor to proceed with additional work within the original intent of the Project.
- B. Field Order will describe changes in the work, with attachments of backup information to define details of the change.
- C. Contractor must sign and date the Field Order to indicate agreement with the terms therein.

1.05 DOCUMENTATION OF PROPOSALS AND CLAIMS

- A. Support each quotation for a lump sum proposal and for each unit price which has not previously been established, with sufficient substantiating data to allow the City to evaluate the quotation.
- B. On request, provide additional data to support time and cost computations:
 - 1. Labor required.
 - 2. Equipment required.
 - 3. Products required.
 - a. Recommended source of purchase and unit cost.
 - b. Quantities required.
 - 4. Taxes, insurance and bonds.
 - 5. Credit for work deleted from Contract, similarly documented.
 - 6. Overhead and profit.
 - 7. Justification for any change in Contract Time.
- C. Support each claim for additional costs and for work done on a time-and-material/force account basis, with documentation as required for a lump-sum proposal.
 - 1. Name of the City's authorized agent who ordered the work and date of the order.
 - 2. Date and time work was performed and by whom.
 - 3. Time record, summary of hours work and hourly rates paid.
 - 4. Receipts and invoices for:
 - a. Equipment used, listing dates and time of use.
 - b. Products used, listing of quantities.
 - c. Subcontracts.

1.06 PREPARATION OF CHANGE ORDERS

- A. Project Manager will prepare each Change Order.
- B. Change Order will describe changes in the Work, both additions and deletions, with attachments as necessary to define details of the change.
- C. Change Order will provide an accounting of the adjustment in the Contract Sum and in the Contract Time.

1.07 LUMP SUM/FIXED PRICE CHANGE ORDER

- A. Project Manager initiates the form, including a description of the changes involved and attachments based upon documents and proposals submitted by the Contractor, or requests from the City, or both.
- B. Once the form has been completed, all copies should be sent to Contractor for approval. After approval by Contractor, all copies should be sent to City for approval. The City will distribute executed copies after approval by the Board of City Commissioners.

1.08 UNIT PRICE CHANGE ORDER

- A. Contents of Change Orders will be based on, either:
 - 1. City's definition of the scope of the required changes.
 - 2. Contractor's Proposal for a change, as approved by the City.
 - 3. Survey of completed work.
- B. The amounts of the unit prices to be:
 - 1. Those stated in the Agreement.
 - 2. Those mutually agreed upon between City and Contractor.

1.09 TIME AND MATERIAL/FORCE ACCOUNT CHANGE ORDER/CONSTRUCTION CHANGE AUTHORIZATION

- A. At completion of the change, Contractor shall submit itemized accounting and supporting data as provided in the Article "Documentation of Proposals and Claims" of this Section.
- B. City will determine the allowable cost of such work, as provided in General Conditions and Supplementary Conditions.
- C. City will sign and date the Change Order to establish the change in Contract Sum and in Contract Time.
- D. City and Contractor will sign and date the Change Order to indicate their agreement therewith.

1.10 CORRELATION WITH CONTRACTOR'S SUBMITTALS

- A. Periodically revise Schedule of Values and Application for Payment forms to record each change as a separate item of work, and to record the adjusted Contract Sum.
- B. Periodically revise the Construction Schedule to reflect each change in Contract Time. Revise sub schedules to show changes for other items of work affected by the changes.
- C. Upon completion of work under a Change Order, enter pertinent changes in Record Documents.

PART 2 PRODUCTS (NOT USED)

PART 3 EXECUTION (NOT USED)

SECTION 01200 PROJECT MEETINGS

PART 1 GENERAL

1.01 REQUIREMENTS INCLUDED

- A. The City shall schedule the pre-construction meeting, periodic progress meetings and special meetings, if required, throughout progress of work.
- B. Representatives of contractors, subcontractors and suppliers attending meetings shall be qualified and authorized to act on behalf of the entity each represents.
- C. The Contractor shall attend meetings to ascertain that work is expedited consistent with Contract Documents and construction schedules.

1.02 PRE-CONSTRUCTION MEETING

A. Attendance:

- 1. City's Engineer
- 2. City's Project Manager
- 3. Contractor
- 4. FDOT Project Manager
- 5. Related Labor Contractor's Superintendent
- 6. Major Subcontractors
- 7. Major Suppliers
- 8. Others as appropriate

B. Suggested Agenda:

- 1. Distribution and discussion of:
 - a. List of major subcontractors.
 - b. Projected Construction Schedules.
 - c. Coordination of Utilities
- 2. Critical work sequencing.
- 3. Project Coordination.
 - a. Designation of responsible personnel.
 - b. Emergency contact persons with phone numbers.
- 4. Procedures and processing of:
 - a. Field decisions.
 - b. Submittals.
 - c. Change Orders.
 - d. Applications for Payment.
- 5. Procedures for maintaining Record Documents.
- 6. Use of premises:
 - a. Office, work and storage areas.
 - b. City's REQUIREMENTS.
- 7. Temporary utilities.
- 8. Housekeeping procedures.
- 9. Liquidated damages.
- 10. Equal Opportunity Requirements.
- 11. Laboratory testing.

- 12. Project / Job meetings: Progress meeting, other special topics as needed.
- PART 2 PRODUCTS (NOT USED)
- PART 3 EXECUTION (NOT USED)

SECTION 01310 CONSTRUCTION SCHEDULE & PROJECT RESTRAINTS

PART 1 GENERAL

1.01 GENERAL

A. Construction under this contract must be coordinated with the City and accomplished in a logical order to maintain utilization and flow through existing facilities and public properties and rights-of-way and to allow construction to be completed within the time allowed by Contract Documents and in the manner set forth in the Contract.

1.02 CONSTRUCTION SCHEDULING GENERAL PROVISIONS

- A. No work shall be done between 7:00 p.m. and 7:00 a.m. nor on weekends or legal holidays without written permission of the City. However, emergency work may be done if coordinated and approved by City personnel.
- B. Night work may be established by the Contractor as regular procedure with the written permission of the City. Such permission, however, may be revoked at any time by the City if the Contractor fails to maintain adequate equipment and supervision for the proper execution and control of the work at night.
- C. Due to potential health hazards and requirements of the State of Florida and the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency, existing facilities must be maintained in operation.
- D. The Contractor shall be fully responsible for providing all temporary piping, plumbing, electrical hook-ups, lighting, temporary structure, or other materials, equipment and systems required to maintain the existing facility's operations. All details of temporary piping and temporary construction are not necessarily shown on the Drawings or covered in the Specifications. However, this does not relieve the Contractor of the responsibility to insure that construction will not interrupt proper facility operations.
- E. The Contractor shall designate an authorized representative of his firm who shall be responsible for development and maintenance of the schedule and of progress and payment reports. This representative of the Contractor shall have direct project control and complete authority to act on behalf of the Contractor in fulfilling the commitments of the Contractor's schedule.

PART 2 PRODUCTS

2.01 GENERAL REQUIREMENTS

- A. The Contractor shall submit a critical path schedule as described herein.
- B. The planning, scheduling, management and execution of the work is the sole responsibility of the Contractor. The progress schedule requirement is established to allow City to review Contractor's planning, scheduling, management and execution of the work; to assist City in evaluating work progress and make progress payments and to allow other contractors to cooperate and coordinate their activities with those of the Contractor.

2.02 FORM OF SCHEDULES

- A. Prepare schedules using the latest version of Microsoft Project, or other City approved software, in the form of a horizontal bar chart diagram. The diagram shall be time-scaled and sequenced by work areas. Horizontal time scale shall identify the first work day of each week.
- B. Activities shall be at least as detailed as the Schedule of Values. Activity durations shall be in whole working days. In addition, man-days shall be shown for each activity or tabulated in an accompanying report.
- C. Diagrams shall be neat and legible and submitted on sheets at least 8-1/2 inches by 11 inches suitable for reproduction. Scale and spacing shall allow space for notations and future revisions.

2.03 CONTENT OF SCHEDULES

- A. Each monthly schedule shall be based on data as of the last day of the current pay period.
- B. Description for each activity shall be brief, but convey the scope of work described.
- C. Activities shall identify all items of work that must be accomplished to achieve substantial completion, such as items pertaining to Contractor's installation and testing activities; items pertaining to the approval of regulatory agencies; contractor's time required for submittals, fabrication and deliveries; the time required by City to review all submittals as set forth in the Contract Documents; items of work required of City to support preoperational, startup and final testing; time required for the relocation of utilities. Activities shall also identify interface milestones with the work of other contractors performing work under separate contracts with City.
- D. Schedules shall show the complete sequence of construction by activities. Dates for beginning and completion of each activity shall be indicated as well as projected percentage of completion for each activity as of the first day of each month.
- E. Submittal schedule for shop drawing review, product data, and samples shall show the date of Contractor submittal and the date approved submittals will be required by the City, consistent with the time frames established in the Specifications.
- F. For Contract change orders granting time extensions, the impact on the Contract date(s) shall equal the calendar-day total time extension specified for the applicable work in the Contract change orders.
- G. For actual delays, add activities prior to each delayed activity on the appropriate critical path(s). Data on the added activities of this type shall portray all steps leading to the delay and shall further include the following: separate activity identification, activity description indicating cause of the delay, activity duration consistent with whichever set of dates below applies, the actual start and finish dates of the delay or, if the delay is not finished, the actual start date and estimated completion date.

H. For potential delays, add an activity prior to each potentially delayed activity on the appropriate critical path(s). Data for added activities of this type shall include alternatives available to mitigate the delay including acceleration alternatives and further show the following: separate activity identification, activity description indicating cause of the potential delay and activity duration equal to zero work days.

2.04 SUPPORTING NARRATIVE

- A. Status and scheduling reports identified below shall contain a narrative to document the project status, to explain the basis of Contractor's determination of durations, describe the Contract conditions and restraints incorporated into the schedule and provide an analysis pertaining to potential problems and practical steps to mitigate them.
- B. The narrative shall specifically include:
 - 1. Actual completion dates for activities completed during the monthly report period and actual start dates for activities commenced during the monthly report period.
 - 2. Anticipated start dates for activities scheduled to commence during the following monthly report period.
 - 3. Changes in the duration of any activity and minor logic changes.
 - 4. The progress along the critical path in terms of days ahead or behind the Contract date.
 - 5. If the Monthly Status Report indicates an avoidable delay to the Contract completion date or interim completion dates as specified in the Agreement, Contractor shall identify the problem, cause and the activities affected and provide an explanation of the proposed corrective action to meet the milestone dates involved or to mitigate further delays.
 - 6. If the delay is thought to be unavoidable, the Contractor shall identify the problem, cause, duration, specific activities affected and restraints of each activity.
 - 7. The narrative shall also discuss all change order activities whether included or not in the revised/current schedule of legal status. Newly introduced change order work activities and the CPM path(s) that they affect, must be specifically identified. All change order work activities added to the schedule shall conform to the sequencing and Contract Time requirements of the applicable Change Order
 - 8. Original Contract date(s) shall not be changed except by Contract change order. A revision need not be submitted when the foregoing situations arise unless required by City. Review of a report containing added activities will not be construed to be concurrence with the duration or restraints for such added activities; instead the corresponding data as ultimately incorporated into the applicable Contract change order shall govern.
 - 9. Should City require additional data, this information shall be supplied by Contractor within 10 calendar days.

2.05 SUBMITTALS

- A. Contractor shall submit estimated and preliminary progress schedules (as identified in the Terms and Conditions of the Contract and the General Conditions), monthly status reports, a start-up schedule and an as-built schedule report all as specified herein.
- B. All schedules, including estimated and preliminary schedules, shall be in conformance

with the Contract Documents.

- C. The finalized progress schedule discussed in the Contract Documents shall be the first monthly status report and as such shall be in conformance with all applicable specifications contained herein.
- D. Monthly Status Report submittals shall include a time-scaled (days after notice to proceed) diagram showing all contract activities and supporting narrative. The initial detailed schedule shall use the notice to proceed as the start date. The finalized schedule, if concurred with by City, shall be the work plan to be used by the contractor for planning, scheduling, managing and executing the work.
- E. The schedule diagram shall be formatted as above. The diagram shall include (1) all detailed activities included in the preliminary and estimated schedule submittals, (2) calendar days prior to substantial completion, (3) summary activities for the remaining days. The critical path activities shall be identified, including critical paths for interim dates, if possible.
- F. The Contractor shall submit progress schedules with each application for payment.

2.06 MONTHLY STATUS REPORTS

- A. Contractor shall submit detailed schedule status reports on a monthly basis with the Application for Payment. The first such status report shall be submitted with the first Application for Payment and include data as of the last day of the pay period. The Monthly Report shall include a "marked-up" copy of the latest detailed schedule of legal status and a supporting narrative including updated information as described above. The Monthly Report will be reviewed by City and Contractor at a monthly schedule meeting and Contractor will address City's comments on the subsequent monthly report. Monthly status reports shall be the basis for evaluating Contractor's progress.
- B. The "marked-up" diagram shall show, for the latest detailed schedule of legal status, percentages of completion for all activities, actual start and finish dates and remaining durations, as appropriate. Activities not previously included in the latest detailed schedule of legal status shall be added, except that contractual dates will not be changed except by change order. Review of a marked-up diagram by City will not be construed to constitute concurrence with the time frames, duration, or sequencing for such added activities; instead the corresponding data as ultimately incorporated into an appropriate change order shall govern.

2.07 STARTUP SCHEDULE

A. At least 30 calendar days prior to the date of substantial completion, Contractor shall submit a time-scaled (days after notice to proceed) diagram detailing the work to take place in the period between 30 days prior to substantial completion, together with a supporting narrative. City shall have 10 calendar days after receipt of the submittal to respond. Upon receipt of City's comments, Contractor shall make the necessary revisions and submit the revised schedule within 10 calendar days. The resubmittal, if concurred with by City, shall be the Work Plan to be used by Contractor for planning, managing, scheduling and executing the remaining work leading to substantial completion.

- B. The time-scaled diagram shall use the latest schedule of legal status for those activities completed ahead of the last 30 calendar days prior to substantial completion and detailed activities for the remaining 30-day period within the time frames outlined in the latest schedule of legal status.
- C. Contractor will be required to continue the requirement for monthly reports, as outlined above. In preparing this report, Contractor must assure that the schedule is consistent with the progress noted in the startup schedule.

2.08 REVISIONS

- A. All revised Schedule Submittals shall be made in the same form and detail as the initial submittal and shall be accompanied by an explanation of the reasons for such revisions, all of which shall be subject to review and concurrence by City. The revision shall incorporate all previously made changes to reflect current as-built conditions. Minor changes to the approved submittal may be approved at monthly meetings; a minor change is not considered a revision in the context of this paragraph.
- B. A revised schedule submittal shall be submitted for review when required by City.

PART 3 EXECUTION (NOT USED)

SECTION 01340 SHOP DRAWINGS, PROJECT DATA AND SAMPLES

PART 1 GENERAL

1.01 REQUIREMENTS INCLUDED

- A. The Contractor shall submit to the City for review and approval: working drawings, shop drawings, test reports and data on materials and equipment (hereinafter in this section called data), and material samples (hereinafter in this section called samples) as are required for the proper control of work, including, but not limited to those working drawings, shop drawings, data and samples for materials and equipment specified elsewhere in the Specifications and in the Contract Drawings.
- B. The Contractor is to maintain an accurate updated submittal log and will bring this log to each scheduled progress meeting with the City. This log should include the following items:
 - 1. Submittal description and number assigned.
 - 2. Date to City.
 - 3. Date returned to Contractor (from City).
 - 4. Status of Submittal (No exceptions taken, returned for confirmation or resubmittal, rejected).
 - 5. Date of Resubmittal and Return (as applicable).
 - 6. Date material released (for fabrication).
 - 7. Projected date of fabrication.
 - 8. Projected date of delivery to site.
 - 9. Projected date and required lead time so that product installation does not delay contact.
 - 10. Status of O&M manuals submitted.

1.03 CONTRACTOR'S RESPONSIBILITY

- A. It is the duty of the Contractor to check all drawings, data and samples prepared by or for him before submitting them to the City for review. Each and every copy of the Drawings and data shall bear Contractor's stamp showing that they have been so checked. Shop drawings submitted to the City without the Contractor's stamp will be returned to the Contractor for conformance with this requirement. Shop drawings shall indicate any deviations in the submittal from requirements of the contract Documents.
- B. Determine and verify:
 - 1. Field measurements.
 - 2. Field construction criteria.
 - 3. Catalog numbers and similar data.
 - 4. Conformance with Specifications and indicate all variances from the Specifications.
- C. The Contractor shall furnish the City a schedule of Shop Drawing submittals fixing the respective dates for the submission of shop and working drawings, the beginning of manufacture, testing and installation of materials, supplies and equipment. This schedule shall indicate those that are critical to the progress schedule.

- D. The Contractor shall not begin any of the work covered by a drawing, data, or a sample returned for correction until a revision or correction thereof has been reviewed and returned to him, by the City, with No Exceptions Taken or Approved As Noted.
- E. The Contractor shall submit to the City all drawings and schedules sufficiently in advance of construction requirements to provide no less than twenty-one (21) calendar days for checking and appropriate action from the time the City receives them.
- F. All material & product submittals, other than samples, may be transmitted electronically as a pdf file. All returns to the contractor will be as a pdf file only unless specifically requested otherwise.
- G. The Contractor shall be responsible for and bear all cost of damages which may result from the ordering of any material or from proceeding with any part of work prior to the completion of the review by City of the necessary Shop Drawings.

1.04 CITY'S REVIEW OF SHOP DRAWINGS AND WORKING DRAWINGS

- A. The City's review of drawings, data and samples submitted by the Contractor shall cover only general conformity to the Specifications, external connections and dimensions which affect the installation.
- B. The review of drawings and schedules shall be general and shall not be construed:
 - 1. As permitting any departure from the Contract requirements.
 - 2. As relieving the Contractor of responsibility for any errors, including details, dimensions and materials.
 - 3. As approving departures from details furnished by the City, except as otherwise provided herein.
- C. If the drawings or schedules as submitted describe variations and show a departure from the Contract requirements which the City finds to be in the interest of the City and to be so minor as not to involve a change in Contract Price or time for performance, the City may return the reviewed drawings without noting any exception.
- D. When reviewed by the City, each of the Shop and Working Drawings shall be identified as having received such review being so stamped and dated. Shop Drawings stamped "REJECTED" and with required corrections shown shall be returned to the Contractor for correction and resubmittal.
- E. Resubmittals will be handled in the same manner as first submittals. On resubmittals, the Contractor shall direct specific attention, in writing or on resubmitted Shop Drawings, to revisions other than the corrections requested by the City on previous submissions. The Contractor shall make any corrections required by the City.
- F. If the Contractor considers any correction indicated on the drawings to constitute a change to the Contract Drawings or Specifications, the Contractor shall give written notice thereof to the City.
- G. The City shall review a submittal/resubmittal a maximum of three (3) times after which cost of review shall be borne by the Contractor. The cost of engineering shall be equal to the City's actual payroll cost.

- H. When the Shop and Working Drawings have been completed to the satisfaction of the City, the Contractor shall carry out the construction in accordance therewith and shall make no further changes therein except upon written instructions from the City.
- 1. No partial submittals shall be reviewed. Incomplete submittals shall be returned to the Contractor and shall be considered not approved until resubmitted.

1.05 SHOP DRAWINGS

- A. When used in the Contract Documents, the term "Shop Drawings" shall be considered to mean Contractor's plans for material and equipment which become an integral part of the Project. These drawings shall be complete and detailed. Shop Drawings shall consist of fabrication, drawings, setting drawings, schedule drawings, manufacturer's scale drawings and wiring and control diagrams. Cuts, catalogs, pamphlets, descriptive literature and performance and test data, shall be considered only as supportive to required Shop Drawings as defined above.
- B. Drawings and schedules shall be checked and coordinated with the work of all trades involved, before they are submitted for review by the City and shall bear the Contractor's stamp of approval and original signature as evidence of such checking and coordination. Drawings or schedules submitted without this stamp of approval and original signature shall be returned to the Contractor for resubmission.
- C. Each Shop Drawing shall have a blank area 3-1/2 inches by 3-1/2 inches, located adjacent to the title block. The title block shall display the following:
 - 1. Number and title of the drawing.
 - 2. Date of Drawing or revision.
 - 3. Name of project building or facility.
 - 4. Name of contractor and subcontractor submitting drawing.
 - 5. Clear identification of contents and location of the work.
 - 6. Specification title and number.
- D. If drawings show variations from Contract requirements because of standard shop practice or for other reasons, the Contractor shall describe such variations in his letter of transmittal. If acceptable, proper adjustment in the contract shall be implemented where appropriate. If the Contractor fails to describe such variations, he shall not be relieved of the responsibility of executing the work in accordance with the Contract, even though such drawings have been reviewed.
- E. Data on materials and equipment shall include, without limitation, materials and equipment lists, catalog sheets, cuts, performance curves, diagrams, materials of construction and similar descriptive material. Materials and equipment lists shall give, for each item thereon, the name and location of the supplier or manufacturer, trade name, catalog reference, size, finish and all other pertinent data.
- F. For all mechanical and electrical equipment furnished, the Contractor shall provide a list including the equipment name and address and telephone number of the manufacturer's representative and service company so that service and/or spare parts can be readily obtained.

- G. All manufacturers or equipment suppliers who proposed to furnish equipment or products shall submit an installation list to the City along with the required shop drawings. The installation list shall include at least five installations where identical equipment has been installed and have been in operation for a period of at least one (1) year.
- H. Only the City will utilize the color "red" in marking shop drawing submittals.

1.06 WORKING DRAWINGS

- A. When used in the Contract Documents, the term "working drawings" shall be considered to mean the Contractor's fabrication and erection drawings for structures such as roof trusses, steelwork, precast concrete elements, bulkheads, support of open cut excavation, support of utilities, groundwater control systems, forming and false work; underpinning; and for such other work as may be required for construction of the project.
- B. Copies of working drawings as noted above, shall be submitted to the City where required by the Contract Documents or requested by the City and shall be submitted at least thirty (30) days (unless otherwise specified by the City) in advance of their being required for work.
- C. Working drawings shall be signed by a registered Professional Engineer, currently licensed to practice in the State of Florida and shall convey, or be accompanied by, calculation or other sufficient information to completely explain the structure, machine, or system described and its intended manner of use. Prior to commencing such work, working drawings must have been reviewed without specific exceptions by the City, which review will be for general conformance and will not relieve the Contractor in any way from his responsibility with regard to the fulfillment of the terms of the Contract. All risks of error are assumed by the Contractor; the City and Engineer shall not have responsibility therefor.

1.07 SAMPLES

- A. The Contractor shall furnish, for the review of the City, samples required by the Contract Documents or requested by the City. Samples shall be delivered to the City as specified or directed. The Contractor shall prepay all shipping charges on samples. Materials or equipment for which samples are required shall not be used in work until reviewed by the City.
- B. Samples shall be of sufficient size and quantity to clearly illustrate:
 - 1. Functional characteristics of the product, with integrally related parts and attachment devices.
 - 2. Full range of color, texture and pattern.
 - 3. A minimum of two samples of each item shall be submitted.
- C. Each sample shall have a label indicating:
 - 1. Name of product.
 - 2. Name of Contractor and Subcontractor.
 - 3. Material or equipment represented.
 - 4. Place of origin.
 - 5. Name of Producer and Brand (if any).

- Location in project.
 (Samples of finished materials shall have additional markings that will identify them under the finished schedules.)
- 7. Reference specification paragraph.
- D. The Contractor shall prepare a transmittal letter in triplicate for each shipment of samples containing the information required above. He shall enclose a copy of this letter with the shipment and send a copy of this letter to the City. Review of a sample shall be only for the characteristics or use named in such and shall not be construed to change or modify any Contract requirements.
- E. Reviewed samples not destroyed in testing shall be sent to the City or stored at the site of the work. Reviewed samples of the hardware in good condition will be marked for identification and may be used in the work. Materials and equipment incorporated in work shall match the reviewed samples. If requested at the time of submission, samples which failed testing or were rejected shall be returned to the Contractor at his expense.

PART PRODUCTS (NOT USED)

2

EXECUTION (NOT USED)

PART 3

SECTION 01370 SCHEDULE OF VALUES

PART 1 GENERAL

1.01 REQUIREMENTS INCLUDED

- A. The Contractor shall submit to the City a Schedule of Values allocated to the various portions of the work, within 10 days after date of Notice to Proceed.
- B. Upon request of the City, the Contractor shall support the values with data which will substantiate their correctness.
- C. The Schedule of Values shall be used only as the basis for the Contractor's Applications for Payment.

1.02 FORM AND CONTENT OF SCHEDULE OF VALUES

- A. Schedule of Values will be considered for approval by City upon Contractor's request. Identify schedule with:
 - 1. Title of Project and location.
 - 2. Project number.
 - 3. Name and address of Contractor.
 - 4. Contract designation.
 - Date of submission.
- B. Schedule of Values shall list the installed value of the component parts of the work in sufficient detail to serve as a basis for computing values for progress payments during construction.
- C. Follow the table of contents for the Contract Document as the format for listing component items for structures:
 - 1. Identify each line item with the number and title of the respective major section of the specification.
 - 2. For each line item, list sub values of major products or operations under item.
- D. Follow the bid sheets included in this Contract Documents as the format for listing component items for pipe lines.
- E. The sum of all values listed in the schedule shall equal the total Contract sum.

PART 2 PRODUCTS (NOT USED)

PART 3 EXECUTION (NOT USED)

SECTION 01380 CONSTRUCTION PHOTOGRAPHS

PART 1 GENERAL

1.01 REQUIREMENTS INCLUDED

- A The Contractor shall employ a competent photographer to take construction record photographs or perform video, recording including furnishing all labor, materials, equipment and incidentals necessary to obtain photographs and/or video recordings of all construction areas.
- B. Preconstruction record information shall consist of video recordings.
- C. Construction progress information shall consist of digital photographs.

1.02 QUALIFICATIONS

- A All photography shall be done by a competent camera operator who is fully experienced and qualified with the specified equipment.
- B. For the video recording, the audio portion should be done by a person qualified and knowledgeable in the specifics of the Contract, who shall speak with clarity and diction so as to be easily understood.

1.03 PROJECT PHOTOGRAPHS

- A Provide digital photographs with each pay application.
- B. The Contractor shall pay all costs associated with the required photography and prints. Any parties requiring additional photography or prints shall pay the photographer directly.
- C. Each photograph shall have clearly marked the name of the project, the orientation of view, the date and time of exposure, name and address of the photographer and the photographers numbered identification of exposure.
- D. All project photographs shall be taken from locations to adequately illustrate conditions prior to construction, or conditions of construction and state of progress. The Contractor shall consult with the City at each period of photography for instructions concerning views required.

1.04 VIDEO RECORDINGS

- A Video, recording shall be done along all routes that are scheduled for construction. Video, recording shall include full, recording of both sides of all streets and the entire width of easements plus 10 feet on each side on which construction is to be performed. All video recording shall be in full color.
- B. A complete view, in sufficient detail with audio description of the exact location shall be provided.
- C. The engineering Drawings shall be used as a reference for stationing in the audio portion

of the recordings for easy location identification.

- D. Two complete sets of video recordings shall be delivered to the City on digital video disks (DVD) for the permanent and exclusive use of the City prior to the start of any construction on the project.
- E All video recordings shall contain the name of the project, the date and time of the video, recording, the name and address of the photographer and any other identifying information required.
- F. Construction shall not start until preconstruction video recordings are completed, submitted and accepted by the City. In addition, no progress payments shall be made until the preconstruction video recordings are accepted by the City.
- PART 2 PRODUCTS (NOT USED)
- PART 3 EXECUTION (NOT USED)

SECTION 01410 TESTING AND TESTING LABORATORY SERVICES

PART 1 GENERAL

1.01 REQUIREMENTS INCLUDED

- A. Contractor shall employ and pay for the services of an independent testing laboratory to perform testing specifically indicated on the Contract Documents or called out in the Specifications. City may elect to have materials and equipment tested for conformity with the Contract Documents at any time.
 - 1. Contractor shall cooperate fully with the laboratory to facilitate the execution of its required services.
 - 2 Employment of the laboratory shall in no way relieve the Contractor's obligations to perform the work of the Contract.

1.02 LIMITATIONS OF AUTHORITY OF TESTING LABORATORY

- A. Laboratory is not authorized to:
 - 1. Release, revoke, alter or enlarge on requirements of Contract Documents.
 - 2 Approve or accept any portion of the Work.
 - 3. Perform any duties of the Contractor.

1.03 CONTRACTOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES

- A. Cooperate with laboratory personnel; provide access to Work and/or to Manufacturer's operations.
- B. Secure and deliver to the laboratory adequate quantities of representational samples of materials proposed to be used and which require testing.
- C. Provide to the laboratory the preliminary design mix proposed to be used for concrete, and other material mixes which require control by the testing laboratory.
- D. Materials and equipment used in the performance of work under this Contract are subject to inspection and testing at the point of manufacture or fabrication. Standard specifications for quality and workmanship are indicated in the Contract Documents. The City may require the Contractor to provide statements or certificates from the manufacturers and fabricators that the materials and equipment provided by them are manufactured or fabricated in full accordance with the standard specifications for quality and workmanship indicated in the Contract Documents. All costs of this testing and providing statements and certificates shall be a subsidiary obligation of the Contractor and no extra charge to the City shall be allowed on account of such testing and certification.
- E. Furnish incidental labor and facilities:
 - 1. To provide access to work to be tested.
 - 2 To obtain and handle samples at the project site or at the source of the product to be tested.
 - 3. To facilitate inspections and tests.

- 4. For storage and curing of test samples.
- F. Notify laboratory sufficiently in advance of operations to allow for laboratory assignment of personnel and scheduling of tests.
- G. Employ and pay for the services of the same or a separate, equally qualified independent testing laboratory to perform additional inspections, sampling and testing required for the Contractor's convenience and as approved by the City.
- PART 2 PRODUCTS (NOT USED)
- PART 3 EXECUTION (NOT USED)

SECTION 01510 TEMPORARY AND PERMANENT UTILITIES

PART 1 GENERAL

1.01 REQUIREMENTS INCLUDED

The Contractor shall be responsible for furnishing all requisite temporary utilities, i.e., power, water, sanitation, etc. The Contractor shall obtain and pay for all permits required as well as pay for all temporary usages. The Contractor shall remove all temporary facilities upon completion of work.

1.02 REQUIREMENTS OF REGULATORY AGENCIES

- A. Comply with National Electric Code.
- B. Comply with Federal, State and Local codes and regulations and with utility company requirements.
- C. Comply with County Health Department regulations.

PART 2 PRODUCTS

2.01 MATERIALS, GENERAL

Materials for temporary utilities may be "used". Materials for electrical utilities shall be adequate in capacity for the required usage, shall not create unsafe conditions and shall not violate requirements of applicable codes and standards.

2.02 TEMPORARY ELECTRICITY AND LIGHTING

Arrange with the applicable utility company for temporary power supply. Provide service required for temporary power and lighting and pay all costs for permits, service and for power used.

2.03 TEMPORARY WATER

- A. The Contractor shall arrange with City of Bowling Green to provide water for construction purposes, i.e., meter, pay all costs for installation, maintenance and removal, and service charges for water used.
- B. The Contractor shall protect piping and fitting against freezing.

2.04 TEMPORARY SANITARY FACILITIES

- A. The Contractor shall provide sanitary facilities in compliance with all laws and regulations.
- B. The Contractor shall service, clean and maintain facilities and enclosures.

PART 3 EXECUTION

3.01 GENERAL

- A. The Contractor shall maintain and operate systems to assure continuous service.
- B. The Contractor shall modify and extend systems as work progress requires.

3.02 REMOVAL

- A. The Contractor shall completely remove temporary materials and equipment when their use is no longer required.
- B. The Contractor shall clean and repair damage caused by temporary installations or use of temporary facilities.

SECTION 01570 TRAFFIC REGULATION

PART 1 GENERAL

1.01 REQUIREMENTS INCLUDED

- A. The Contractor shall be responsible for providing safe and expeditious movement of traffic through construction zones. A construction zone is defined as the immediate areas of actual construction and all abutting areas which are used by the Contractor and which interfere with the driving or walking public.
- B. The Contractor shall remove temporary equipment and facilities when no longer required, restore grounds to original or to specified conditions.

1.02 TRAFFIC CONTROL

- A. The necessary traffic control shall include, but not be limited to, such items as proper construction warning signs, signals, lighting devices, markings, barricades, channelization and hand signaling devices. The Contractor shall be responsible for installation and maintenance of all devices and detour routes and signage for the duration of the construction period. The Contractor shall utilize the appropriate traffic plan from the FDOT Maintenance of Traffic Standards, Series 600 of the FDOT Roadway & Traffic Design Standards, Latest Edition.
- B. Should there be the necessity to close any portion of a roadway carrying vehicles or pedestrians the Contractor shall submit a Traffic Control Plan (TCP) at least 5 days before a partial or full day closure, and at least 8 days before a multi-day closure. TCP shall be submitted, along with a copy of their accreditation, by a certified IMSA or ATSA Traffic Control Specialist.
 - 1. At no time will more than one (1) lane of a roadway be closed to vehicles and pedestrians without an approved road closure from the City Transportation Department. With any such closings, adequate provision shall be made for the safe expeditious movement of each.
 - All traffic control signs must be in place and inspected at least 1 day in advance of the closure. Multi-day closures notification signs shall be in place at least 3 days in advance of the closure. All signs must be covered when no in effect, and checked twice a day by the Worksite Traffic Supervisor when they are in effect.
- C. The Contractor shall be responsible for removal, relocation, or replacement of any traffic control device in the construction area which exists as part of the normal preconstruction traffic control scheme. Any such actions shall be performed by the Contractor under the supervision and in accordance with the instructions of the applicable highway department unless otherwise specified.
- D. The Contractor will consult with the City immediately on any vehicular or pedestrian safety or efficiency problem incurred as a result of construction of the project.
- E. The Contractor shall provide ready access to businesses and homes in the project area during construction. The Contractor shall be responsible for coordinating this work with affected homeowners.

- F. When conditions require the temporary installation of signs, pavement markings and traffic barriers for the protection or workers and traffic, the entire array of such devices shall be depicted on working drawings for each separate stage of work. These drawings shall be submitted to the City for review and approval prior to commencement of work on the site.
- G. Precast concrete traffic barriers shall be placed adjacent to trenches and other excavations deeper than six inches below the adjacent pavement surface.
- PART 2 PRODUCTS (NOT USED)
- PART 3 EXECUTION (NOT USED)

SECTION 01580 PROJECT IDENTIFICATION AND SIGNS

PART 1 GENERAL

1.01 REQUIREMENTS INCLUDED

- A. Furnish, install and maintain City project identification signs.
- B. Remove signs on completion of construction.
- C. Allow no other signs to be displayed except for traffic control and safety.

1.02 PROJECT IDENTIFICATION SIGN (CITY)

- A. One painted sign, of not less than 32 square feet (3 square meters) area, with painted graphic content to include:
 - 1. Title of Project.
 - 2. Name of City.
 - 3. Names and titles of authorities as directed by City.
 - Prime Contractor.
- B. Graphic design, style of lettering and colors: As approved by the City.
- C. Erect on the site at a lighted location of high public visibility, adjacent to main entrance to site, as approved by the City

1.03 INFORMATIONAL SIGNS

- A. Painted signs with painted lettering, or standard products.
 - 1. Size of signs and lettering: as required by regulatory agencies, or as appropriate to usage.
 - 2. Colors: as required by regulatory agencies, otherwise of uniform colors throughout project.
- B. Erect at appropriate locations to provide required information.

1.04 QUALITY ASSURANCE

- A. Sign Painter: Professional experience in type of work required.
- B. Finishes, Painting: Adequate to resist weathering and fading for scheduled construction period.

1.05 PUBLIC NOTIFICATION

A. Door Hangers: The Contractor shall generate and distribute door hangers to all residents who will be impacted by project construction.

- 1. Residents impacted include anyone who resides inside, or within 500 feet of project limits of construction.
- B. Door Hangers shall be distributed prior to start of construction of the project. Hangers shall be affixed to doors of residents via elastic bands or tape.

EXAMPLE:

PLEASE PARDON THE INCONVENIENCE WHILE THE ROADWAY IS BEING RECONSTRUCTED IN YOUR NEIGHBORHOOD

This project consists of utility improvements and the reconstruction of ??? Boulevard from U.S. ??? to ??? Street West. The project is expected to begin in August, 20XX and be completed in July 20XX.

Location Map

WE HOPE TO KEEP ANY INCONVENIENCE TO A MINIMUM. HOWEVER, IF YOU HAVE ANY PROBLEMS, PLEASE CONTACT THE FOLLOWING:

A. Contractor
Contractor Address
Contractor Phone (Site Phone)

Project Manager PM Address PM Phone No. & Ext.

B. Project Inspector Inspector Phone Number

AFTER HOURS EMERGENCY NUMBER — XXXXX THANK YOU FOR YOUR UNDERSTANDING AND PATIENCE

PART 2 PRODUCTS

2.01 SIGN MATERIALS

- A. Structure and Framing: May be new or used, wood or metal, in sound condition structurally adequate to work and suitable for specified finish.
- B. Sign Surfaces: Exterior softwood plywood with medium density overlay, standard large sizes to minimize joints.
 - 1. Thickness: As required by standards to span framing members, to provide even, smooth surface without waves or buckles.
- C. Rough Hardware: Galvanized.
- D. Paint: Exterior quality, as specified in the Contract Documents.

PART 3 EXECUTION

3.01 PROJECT IDENTIFICATION SIGN

- A. Paint exposed surface or supports, framing and surface material; one coat of primer and one coat of exterior paint.
- B. Paint graphics in styles, size and colors selected.

3.02 MAINTENANCE

The Contractor shall maintain signs and supports in a neat, clean condition; repair damages to structures, framing or sign.

3.03 REMOVAL

The Contractor shall remove signs, framing, supports and foundations at completion of project.

SECTION 01600 MATERIAL AND EQUIPMENT

PART 1 GENERAL

1.01 REQUIREMENTS INCLUDED

- A. Material and equipment incorporated into the work:
 - 1. Conform to applicable specifications and standards.
 - 2. Comply with size, make, type and quality specified, or as specifically approved in writing by the City.
 - 3. Manufactured and Fabricated Products:
 - a. Design, fabricate and assemble in accordance with the best engineering and shop practices.
 - b. Manufacture like parts of duplicate units to standard sizes and gages, to be interchangeable.
 - c. Two or more items of the same kind shall be identical and manufactured by the same manufacturer.
 - d. Products shall be suitable for service conditions.
 - e. Equipment capacities, sizes and dimensions shown or specified shall be adhered to unless variations are specifically approved in writing.
 - 4. Do not use material or equipment for any purpose other than that for which it is specified.
 - 5. All material and equipment incorporated into the project shall be new.

1.02 MANUFACTURER'S INSTRUCTIONS

- A. When Contract Documents require that installation of work shall comply with manufacturer's printed instructions, obtain and distribute copies of such instructions to parties involved in the installation, including two copies to City. Maintain one set of complete instructions at the job site during installation and until completion.
- B. Handle, install, connect, clean, condition and adjust products in strict accordance with such instructions and in conformity with specified requirements. Should job conditions or specified requirements conflict with manufacturer's instructions, consult with City prior to proceeding. Do not proceed with work without clear instructions.

1.03 TRANSPORTATION AND HANDLING

- A. Arrange deliveries of products in accordance with construction schedules, coordinate to avoid conflict with work and conditions at the site.
 - 1. Deliver products in undamaged condition, in manufacturer's original containers or packaging, with identifying labels intact and legible.
 - 2. Immediately on delivery, inspect shipments to assure compliance with requirements of Contract Documents and approved submittals and that products are properly protected and undamaged.
- A. Provide equipment and personnel to handle products by methods to prevent soiling or damage to products or packaging.

1.04 SUBSTITUTIONS AND PRODUCT OPTIONS

Contractor's Options:

- 1. For products specified only by reference standard, select any product meeting that standard.
- 2. For products specified by naming one or more products or manufacturers and "or equal", Contractor must submit a request for substitutions of any product or manufacturer not specifically named in a timely manner so as not to adversely affect the construction schedule.
- PART 2 PRODUCTS (NOT USED)
- PART 3 EXECUTION (NOT USED)

SECTION 01620 STORAGE AND PROTECTION

PART 1 GENERAL

1.01 REQUIREMENTS INCLUDED

Provide secure storage and protection for products to be incorporated into the work and maintenance and protection for products after installation and until completion of Work.

1.02 STORAGE

A. Store products immediately on delivery and protect until installed in the Work, in accord with manufacturer's instructions, with seals and labels intact and legible.

B. Exterior Storage

- 1. Provide substantial platform, blocking or skids to support fabricated products above ground to prevent soiling or staining.
 - a. Cover products, subject to discoloration or deterioration from exposure to the elements, with impervious sheet coverings. Provide adequate ventilation to avoid condensation.
 - b. Prevent mixing of refuse or chemically injurious materials or liquids.
- A. Arrange storage in manner to provide easy access for inspection.

1.03 MAINTENANCE OF STORAGE

- A. Maintain periodic system of inspection of stored products on scheduled basis to assure
 - 1. State of storage facilities is adequate to provide required conditions.
 - 2 Required environmental conditions are maintained on continuing basis.
 - 3. Surfaces of products exposed to elements are not adversely affected. Any weathering of products, coatings and finishes is not acceptable under requirements of these Contract Documents.
- B. Mechanical and electrical equipment which requires servicing during long term storage shall have complete manufacturer's instructions for servicing accompanying each item, with notice of enclosed instructions shown on exterior of package.
 - 1. Equipment shall not be shipped until approved by the City. The intent of this requirement is to reduce on-site storage time prior to installation and/or operation. Under no circumstances shall equipment be delivered to the site more than one month prior to installation without written authorization from the City.
 - All equipment having moving parts such as gears, electric motors, etc. and/or instruments shall be stored in a temperature and humidity controlled building approved by the City until such time as the equipment is to be installed.
 - 3. All equipment shall be stored fully lubricated with oil, grease, etc. unless otherwise instructed by the manufacturer.
 - 4. Moving parts shall be rotated a minimum of once weekly to insure proper lubrication and to avoid metal-to-metal "welding". Upon installation of the equipment, the Contractor shall start the equipment, at least half load, once

- weekly for an adequate period of time to insure that the equipment does not deteriorate from lack of use.
- 5. Lubricants shall be changed upon completion of installation and as frequently as required, thereafter during the period between installation and acceptance.
- 6. Prior to acceptance of the equipment, the Contractor shall have the manufacturer inspect the equipment and certify that its condition has not been detrimentally affected by the long storage period. Such certifications by the manufacturer shall be deemed to mean that the equipment is judged by the manufacturer to be in a condition equal to that of equipment that has been shipped, installed, tested and accepted in a minimum time period. As such, the manufacturer will guaranty the equipment equally in both instances. If such a certification is not given, the equipment shall be judged to be defective. It shall be removed and replaced at the Contractor's expense.

1.04 PROTECTION AFTER INSTALLATION

- A. Provide protection of installed products to prevent damage from subsequent operations. Remove when no longer needed, prior to completion of work.
- B. Control traffic to prevent damage to equipment and surfaces.
- C. Provide coverings to protect finished surfaces from damage.
- PART 2 PRODUCTS (NOT USED)
- PART 3 EXECUTION (NOT USED)

SECTION 01700 CONTRACT CLOSEOUT

PART 1 GENERAL

1.01 REQUIREMENTS INCLUDED

Comply with requirements stated in Conditions of the Contract and in Specifications for administrative procedures in closing out the work.

1.02 SUBSTANTIAL COMPLETION

- A. The Contractor shall submit the following items when the Contractor considers the work to be substantially complete:
 - 1. A written notice that the work, or designated portion thereof, is substantially complete.
 - 2. A list of items to be completed or corrected.
- B. Within a reasonable time after receipt of such notice, the City shall make an inspection to determine the status of completion.
- C. Project record documents and operations and maintenance manuals must be submitted before the project shall be considered substantially complete.
- D. If the City determines that the work is not substantially complete:
 - 1. The City shall notify the Contractor in writing, stating the reasons.
 - 2. The Contractor shall remedy the deficiencies in the work and send a second written notice of substantial completion to the City.
 - 3. The City shall reinspect the work.
- E. When the City finds that the work is substantially complete:
 - 1. The Engineer shall prepare and deliver to the City a tentative Notification of Substantial Completion with a tentative list of the items to be completed or corrected before final payment.
 - The Engineer shall consider any objections made by the City as provided in Conditions of the Contract. When the Engineer considers the work substantially complete, he will execute and deliver to the City a definite Notification of Substantial Completion with a revised tentative list of items to be completed or corrected.

1.03 FINAL INSPECTION

- A. When the Contractor considered the work to be complete, he shall submit written certification stating that:
 - 1. The Contract Documents have been reviewed.
 - 2. The work has been inspected for compliance with Contract Documents.
 - 3. The work has been completed in accordance with Contract Documents.
 - 4. The equipment and systems have been tested in the presence of the City's representative and are operational.

- 5. The work is completed and ready for final inspection.
- B. The City shall make an inspection to verify the status of completion after receipt of such certification.
- C. If the City determines that the work is incomplete or defective:
 - 1. The City shall promptly notify the Contractor in writing, listing the incomplete or defective work.
 - 2. The Contractor shall take immediate steps to remedy the stated deficiencies and send a second written certification to City that the work is complete.
 - 3. The City shall reinspect the work.
- D. Upon finding the work to be acceptable under the Contract Documents, the City shall request the Contractor to make closeout submittals.
- E. For each additional inspection beyond a total one (1) inspection for substantial and final completion due to the incompleteness of the work, the Contractor shall reimburse the City's fees.

1.04 CONTRACTOR'S CLOSEOUT SUBMITTALS TO CITY

- A. Project Record Documents (prior to substantial completion).
- B. Operation and maintenance manuals (prior to substantial completion).
- C. Warranties and Bonds.
- D. Evidence of Payment and Release of Liens: In accordance with requirements of General and Supplementary Conditions.
- E. Certification letters as applicable.
- F. Certificate of Insurance for Products and Completed Operations.
- G. Final Reconciliation, Warranty Period Declaration, and Contractor's Affidavit.

1.05 FINAL ADJUSTMENT OF ACCOUNTS

- A. Submit a final statement of accounting to the City.
- B. Statement shaft reflect all adjustments to the Contract Sum:
 - 1. The original Contract Sum.
 - 2. Additions and deductions resulting from:
 - a. Previous Change Orders
 - b. Unit Prices
 - c. Penalties and Bonuses
 - d. Deductions for Liquidated Damages
 - e. Other Adjustments
 - 3. Total Contract Sum, as adjusted.
 - 4. Previous payments.

- 5. Sum remaining due.
- C. Project Management shall prepare a final Change Order, reflecting approved adjustments to the Contract Sum which were not previously made by Change Orders.

1.06 FINAL APPLICATION FOR PAYMENT

Contractor shall submit the final Application for Payment in accordance with procedures and requirements stated in the Conditions of the Contract.

- PART 2 PRODUCTS (NOT USED)
- PART 3 EXECUTION (NOT USED)

SECTION 01710 CLEANING

PART 1 GENERAL

1.01 REQUIREMENTS INCLUDED

Execute cleaning during progress of the work and at completion of the work, as required by the General Conditions.

1.02 DISPOSAL REQUIREMENTS

Conduct cleaning and disposal operations to comply with all Federal, State and Local codes, ordinances, regulations and anti-pollution laws.

PART 2 PRODUCTS

2.01 MATERIALS

- A. Use only those cleaning materials which will not create hazards to health or property and which will not damage surfaces.
- B. Use only those cleaning materials and methods recommended by manufacturer of the surface material to be cleaned.
- C. Use cleaning materials only on surfaces recommended by cleaning material manufacturer.

PART 3 EXECUTION

3.01 DURING CONSTRUCTION

- A Execute periodic cleaning to keep the work, the site and adjacent properties free from accumulation of waste materials, rubbish and wind-blown debris, resulting from construction operations.
- B. Provide on-site containers for the collection of waste materials, debris and rubbish.
- C. Remove waste materials, debris and rubbish from the site periodically and dispose of at legal disposal areas away from the site.

3.02 DUST CONTROL

- A Clean interior spaces prior to the start of finish painting and continue cleaning on an asneeded basis until painting is finished.
- B. Schedule operations so that dust and other contaminants resulting from cleaning process will not fall on wet or newly-coated surfaces.

3.03 FINAL CLEANING

A Employ skilled workmen for final cleaning.

- B. Broom clean exterior paved surfaces; rake clean other surfaces of the grounds.
- C. Prior to final completion or City occupancy, Contractor shall conduct an inspection of sight-exposed interior and exterior surfaces and all work areas to verify that the entire work is clean.

SECTION 01720 PROJECT RECORD DOCUMENTS

PART 1 GENERAL

1.01 REQUIREMENTS INCLUDED

- A. Contractor shall maintain at the site for the City one record copy of:
 - 1. Drawings.
 - 2. Specifications.
 - 3. Addenda.
 - 4. Change Orders and other modifications to the Contract.
 - 5. City's field orders or written instructions.
 - 6. Approved shop drawings, working drawings and samples.
 - 7. Field test records.
 - 8. Construction photographs.

1.02 MAINTENANCE OF DOCUMENTS AND SAMPLES

- A. Store documents and samples in Contractor's field office apart from documents used for construction.
 - 1. Provide files and racks for storage of documents.
 - 2. Provide locked cabinet or secure storage space for storage of samples.
- B. File documents and samples in accordance with CSI format.
- C. Maintain documents in a clean, dry, legible, condition and in good order. Do not use record documents for construction purposes.
- D. Make documents and samples available at all times for inspection by the City.

1.03 MARKING DEVICES

A. Provide felt tip marking pens for recording information in the color code designated by the City.

1.04 RECORDING

- A. Label each document "PROJECT RECORD" in neat large printed letters.
- B. Record information concurrently with construction progress.
- C. Do not conceal any work until required information is recorded.
- D. Drawings; Legibly mark to record actual construction:
 - 1. All underground piping with elevations and dimensions. Changes to piping location. Horizontal and vertical locations of underground utilities and appurtenances, referenced to permanent surface improvements. Actual installed pipe material, class, etc. Locations of drainage ditches, swales, water lines and force mains shall be shown every 200 feet (measured along the centerline) or

- alternate lot lines, whichever is closer. Dimensions at these locations shall indicate distance from centerline of right-of-way to the facility.
- 2. Field changes of dimension and detail.
- 3. Changes made by Field Order or by Change Order.
- 4. Details not on original contract drawings.
- 5. Equipment and piping relocations.
- 6. Locations of all valves, fire hydrants, manholes, water and sewer services, water and force main fittings, underdrain cleanouts, catch basins, junction boxes and any other structures located in the right-of-way or easement, shall be located by elevation and by station and offset based on intersection P.I.'s and centerline of right-of-way. For facilities located on private roads, the dimensioning shall be from centerline of paving or another readily visible baseline.
- 7. Elevations shall be provided for all manhole rim and inverts; junction box rim and inverts; catch basin rim and inverts; and baffle, weir and invert elevations in control structures. Elevations shall also be provided at the PVI's and at every other lot line or 200 feet, whichever is less, of drainage swales and ditches. Bench marks and elevation datum shall be indicated.
- 8. Slopes for pipes and ditches shall be recalculated, based on actual field measured distances, elevations, pipe sizes, and type shown. Cross section of drainage ditches and swales shall be verified.
- 9. Centerline of roads shall be tied to right-of-way lines. Elevation of roadway centerline shall be given at PVI's and at all intersections.
- 10. Record drawings shall show bearings and distances for all right-of-way and easement lines, and property corners.
- 11. Sidewalks, fences and walls, if installed at the time of initial record drawing submittal, shall be located every 200 feet or alternate lot lines, whichever is closer. Dimensions shall include distance from the right-of-way line and the back of curb and lot line or easement line.
- 12. Sanitary sewer mainline wyes shall be located from the downstream manhole. These dimensions shall be provided by on-site inspections or televiewing of the sewer following installation.
- 13. Elevations shall be provided on the top of operating nuts for all water and force main valves.
- 14. Allowable tolerance shall be + 6.0 inches for horizontal dimensions. Vertical dimensions such as the difference in elevations between manhole inverts shall have an allowable tolerance of + 1/8 inch per 50 feet (or part thereof) of horizontal distance up to a maximum tolerance of + 2 inch.
- 15. Properly prepared record drawings on mylar, together with two copies, shall be certified by a design professional (Engineer and/or Surveyor registered in the State of Florida), employed by the Contractor, and submitted to the City.
- E. Specifications and Addenda; Legibly mark each Section to record:
 - 1. Manufacturer, trade name, catalog number and supplier of each product and item of equipment actually installed.
 - 2. Changes made by field order or by change order.
- F. Shop Drawings (after final review and approval):
 - 1. Five sets of record drawings for each process equipment, piping, electrical system and instrumentation system.

1.05 SUBMITTAL

- A. As applicable, prior to substantial completion and prior to starting the bacteria testing of water lines, deliver signed and sealed Record Documents and Record Drawings to the City. These will be reviewed and verified by the inspector. If there are any required changes or additions, these shall be completed and the entire signed and sealed set resubmitted prior to final pay application.
- B. The Contractor shall employ a Professional Engineer or Surveyor registered in the State of Florida to verify survey data and properly prepare record drawings if required by the Engineer. Record drawings shall be certified by the professional(s) (Engineer or Surveyor licensed in Florida), as stipulated by the Land Development Ordinance and submitted on signed and sealed paper drawings, signed and dated mylar drawings together with an AutoCAD version on a recordable compact disk (CD).
- C. The CD shall contain media in AutoCad Version 2004 or later, or in any other CAD program compatible with AutoCad in DWG or DXF form. All fonts, line types, shape files or other pertinent information used in the drawing and not normally included in AutoCad shall be included on the media with a text file or attached noted as to its relevance and use.
- D. Accompany submittal with transmittal letter, containing:
 - 1. Date.
 - 2. Project title and number.
 - 3. Contractor's name and address.
 - 4. Title and number of each Record Document.
 - 5. Signature of Contractor or his authorized representative.

Note: The data required to properly prepare these record drawings shall be obtained at the site, at no cost to the City by the responsible design professional or his/her duly appointed representative. The appointed representative shall be a qualified employee of the responsible design professional or a qualified inspector retained by the responsible design professional on a project-by-project basis.

PART 2 STANDARDS

2.01 MINIMUM RECORD DRAWING STANDARDS FOR ALL RECORD DRAWINGS

- A. Record drawings, if required, shall be submitted to at least the level of detail in the contract documents. It is anticipated that the original contract documents shall serve as at least a background for all record information. Original drawings in CAD format may be requested of the City.
- B. Drawings shall meet the criteria of paragraph 1.04 D above.

PART 3 EXECUTION (NOT USED)

SECTION 01740 WARRANTIES AND BONDS

PART 1 GENERAL

1.01 REQUIREMENTS INCLUDED

- A. Compile specified warranties and bonds.
- B. Compile specified service and maintenance contracts.
- C. Co-execute submittals when so specified.
- D. Review submittals to verify compliance with Contract Documents.
- E. Submit to City for review and transmittal.

1.02 SUBMITTAL REQUIREMENTS

- A. Assemble warranties, bonds and service and maintenance contracts, executed by each of the respective manufacturers, suppliers and subcontractors.
- B. Number of original signed copies required: Two each.
- C. Table of Contents: Neatly typed, in orderly sequence. Provide complete information for each item.
 - 1. Product or work item.
 - 2. Firm, with name of principal, address and telephone number.
 - 3. Scope.
 - 4. Date of beginning of warranty, bond or service and maintenance contract.
 - 5. Duration of warranty, bond or service maintenance contract.
 - 6. Provide information for City's personnel:
 - a. Proper procedure in case of failure.
 - b. Instances which might affect the validity of warranty or bond.
 - 7. Contractor, name of responsible principal, address and telephone number.

1.03 FORM OF SUBMITTALS

- A. Prepare in duplicate packets.
- B. Format:
 - 1. Size 8-1/2 inch x 11 inch punched sheets for standard 3-ring binder. Fold larger sheets to fit into binders.
 - 2. Cover: Identify each packet with typed or printed title 'WARRANTIES AND BONDS". List:
 - a. Title of Project.
 - b. Name of Contractor.
- C. Binders: Commercial quality, three-ring, with durable and cleanable plastic covers.

1.04 TIME OF SUBMITTALS

- A. Make submittals within ten days after date of substantial completion and prior to final request for payment.
- B. For items of work, where acceptance is delayed materially beyond date of substantial completion, provide updated submittal within ten days after acceptance, listing date of acceptance as start of warranty period.

1.05 SUBMITTALS REQUIRED

- A. Submit warranties, bonds, service and maintenance contracts as specified in respective sections of Specifications.
- B. Approval by the City of all documents required under this section is a pre-requisite to requesting a final inspection and final payment

PART PRODUCTS (NOT USED)
2
EXECUTION (NOT USED)
PART

PART

DIVISION 2 SITE WORK

SECTION 02100 SITE PREPARATION

PART 1 GENERAL

1.01 SCOPE OF WORK

- A. This Section covers clearing, grubbing and stripping of the project site outside of the limits of pavement (as applicable).
- B. The Contractor shall clear and grub any reas outside the limits of asphalt that are within the limits of construction or as required, which includes, but is not limited to utility easements. The width of the area to be cleared shall be reviewed by the City prior to the beginning of any clearing.
- C. The Contractor's attention is directed to any Soil Erosion and Sediment Control Ordinances in force in the City of Bowling Green. The Contractor shall comply with all applicable sections of these ordinances.

PART PRODUCTS (NOT USED)

2

EXECUTION

PART

3 CLEARING

3.01 The surfa

The surface of the ground, for the area to be cleared and grubbed shall be completely cleared of all timber, brush, stumps, roots, grass, weeds, rubbish and all other objectionable obstructions resting on or protruding through the surface of the ground. However, trees shall be preserved as hereinafter specified unless otherwise designated by the City. Clearing operations shall be conducted so as to prevent damage to existing structures and installations and to those under construction, so as to provide for the safety of employees and others. Soil erosion control devices such as hay bales and silt fences shall be installed to satisfy all Federal, State and City requirements.

GRUBBING

3.02

Grubbing shall consist of the complete removal of all stumps, roots larger than 1-1/2 inches in diameter, matted roots, brush, timber, logs and any other organic or metallic debris not suitable for foundation purposes, resting on, under or protruding through the surface of the ground to a depth of 18 inches below the subgrade. All depressions excavated below the original ground surface for or by the removal of such objects, shall be refilled with suitable materials and compacted to a density conforming to the surrounding ground surface.

3.03 STRIPPING

In areas so designated, topsoil shall be stockpiled. Topsoil so stockpiled shall be protected until it is placed as specified. The City shall have the option to receive all excess topsoil materials. The Contractor shall pay all equipment and labor cost to deliver excess top soil material to a remote site chosen by the City within a five mile radius of the construction site. Should City not choose to receive any or all excess topsoil materials, the Contractor shall dispose of said material at no additional cost to City.

3.04 DISPOSAL OF CLEARED AND GRUBBED MATERIAL

The Contractor shall dispose of all material and debris from the clearing and grubbing operation by hauling such material and debris off site. The cost of disposal (including hauling) of cleared and grubbed material and debris shall be considered a subsidiary obligation of the Contractor; the cost of which shall be included in the prices bid for the various classes of work.

3.05 PRESERVATION OF TREES

Those trees which are not designated for removal by the City shall be carefully protected from damage. The Contractor shall erect such barricades, guards and enclosures as may be considered necessary by him for the protection of the trees during all construction operation.

3.06 PRESERVATION OF DEVELOPED PRIVATE PROPERTY

- A. The Contractor shall exercise extreme care to avoid unnecessary disturbance of developed private property adjacent to proposed project site. Trees, shrubbery, gardens, lawns and other landscaping, which are not designated by the City to be removed, shall be replaced and replanted to restore the construction easement to the condition existing prior to construction.
- B. All soil preservation procedures and replanting operations shall be under the supervision of a nursery representative experienced in such operations.
- C. Improvements to the land such as fences, walls, outbuildings and other structures which of necessity must be removed, shall be replaced with equal quality materials and workmanship.
- D. The Contractor shall clean up the construction site across developed private property directly after construction is completed upon approval of the City.

3.07 PRESERVATION OF PUBLIC PROPERTY

The appropriate paragraphs of these Specifications shall apply to the preservation and restoration of public lands, parks, rights-of-way, easements and all other damaged areas. This includes, but is not limited to the trimming of trees damaged by contractor's equipment.

SECTION 02276 TEMPORARY EROSION AND SEDIMENTATION CONTROL

PART 1 GENERAL

1.01 DESCRIPTION

- A. The work specified in this Section consists of the design, provision, maintenance and removal of temporary erosion and sedimentation controls as necessary.
- B. Temporary erosion controls include, but are not limited to: grassing, mulching, netting, watering, and the reseeding of on-site surfaces and spoil and borrow area surfaces, interceptor ditches at ends of berms and other such work at those locations which will ensure that erosion during construction will be either eliminated or maintained within acceptable limits as established by the City.
- C. Temporary sedimentation controls include, but are not limited to: silt dams, traps, barriers, and appurtenances at the foot of sloped surfaces which shall ensure that sedimentation pollution will be either eliminated or maintained within acceptable limits as established by the City.
- D. The Contractor is responsible for providing effective temporary erosion and sediment control measures during construction or until final controls become effective.

1.02 REFERENCE DOCUMENTS

- A. Florida Building Code.
- B. FDEP/COE Dredge and Fill Regulations and/or Permit as applicable.
- C. SWFWMD Permit Regulations and/or Permit as applicable.
- D. Florida Stormwater, Erosion and Sedimentation Control Inspector's Manual.

PART 2 PRODUCTS

2.01 EROSION CONTROL

- A. Netting fabricated of material acceptable to the City.
- B. Seed and sod.

2.02 SEDIMENTATION CONTROL

- C. Bales clean, seed free cereal hay type.
- D. Netting fabricated of material acceptable to the City.
- E. Filter stone crushed stone conforming to Florida Dept of Transportation specifications.
- F. Concrete block hollow, non-load-bearing type.
- G. Concrete exterior grade not less than one inch thick.

PART 3 EXECUTION

3.01 EROSION CONTROL

- A. Minimum procedures for grassing shall be:
 - 1. Scarify slopes to a depth of not less than six inches and remove large clods, rock, stumps, roots larger than 1/2 inch in diameter and debris.
 - 2. Sow seed within twenty-four (24) hours after the ground is scarified with either mechanical seed drills or rotary hand seeders.
 - 3. Apply mulch loosely and to a thickness of between 3/4-inch and 1-1/2 inches.
 - 4. Apply netting over mulched areas on sloped surfaces.
 - 5. Roll and water seeded areas in a manner which will encourage sprouting of seeds and growing of grass. Reseed areas which exhibit unsatisfactory growth. Backfill and seed eroded areas.

3.02 SEDIMENTATION CONTROL

A. The Contractor shall install and maintain silt dams, traps, barriers, and appurtenances as shown on the approved descriptions and working drawings. Deteriorated hay bales and dislodged filter stone shall be replaced by the Contractor at his expense.

3.03 PERFORMANCE

A. The Contractor, at his own expense, shall immediately take whatever steps are necessary to correct any deficiencies of the temporary erosion and sediment control measures employed if they fail to produce results or do not comply with the requirements of the State of Florida or any other federal, governmental or regulatory agency.

SECTION 02485 SEEDING AND SODDING

PART 1 GENERAL

1.01 SCOPE OF WORK

- A. The Contractor shall furnish all labor, materials and equipment necessary to satisfactorily return all construction areas to their original conditions or better.
- B. Work shall include furnishing and placing seed or sod, fertilizing, planting, watering and maintenance until acceptance by City and as needed throughout the post acceptance ninety (90) day warranty period for seeding and sodding.

1.02 RELATED WORK NOT INCLUDED

Excavation, filling and grading required to establish elevation shown on the Drawings are included under other sections of these Specifications.

1.03 QUALITY ASSURANCE

- A. It is the intent of this Specification that the Contractor is obliged to deliver a satisfactory stand of grass as specified. If necessary, the Contractor shall repeat any or all of the work, including grading, fertilizing, watering and seeding or sodding at no additional cost to the City until a satisfactory stand is obtained. For purposes of grassing, a satisfactory stand of grass is herein defined as a full lawn cover over areas to be sodded or seeded, with grass free of weeds, alive and growing, leaving no bare spots larger than 3/4 square yard within a radius of 8 feet.
- B. All previously grassed areas where pipelines are laid shall be sodded. All sodding and grassing shall be installed in accordance with these Specifications or as directed by the City.

PART 2 PRODUCTS

2.01 MATERIALS

- A. Fertilizer: The fertilizer shall be of the slow-release type meeting the following minimum requirements: 12 percent nitrogen, 8 percent phosphorus, 8 percent potassium; 40 percent other available materials derived from organic sources. At least 50 percent of the phosphoric acid shall be from normal super phosphate or an equivalent source which will provide a minimum of two units of sulfur. The amount of sulfur shall be indicated on the quantitive analysis card attached to each bag or other container. Fertilizer shall be uniform in composition, dry and free flowing delivered to sites in original unopened containers bearing manufacturer's statement or guarantee.
- B. Seeding/Grassing: The Contractor shall grass all unpaved areas disturbed during construction which do not require sod. All grassing shall be completed in conformance with FDOT Specifications, Sections 570 and 981. The grassed areas shall be mulched and fertilized in accordance with FDOT Specifications, except that no additional payment will be made for mulching, fertilizing and/or watering.

- C. Sodding: Sod shall be provided as required on sheet no. C402 of the Contract Drawings or at locations as directed by the City in accordance with Florida Department of Transportation, Specifications Section 570 and 981. The Contractor shall furnish sod as designated on the Drawings. Placement and watering requirements shall be in accordance with FDOT Specifications Section 570, except that no additional payment will be made for placement and/or watering. This cost shall be included in the Contract price bid for sodding.
- D. Topsoil: Topsoil stockpiled during excavation may be used as necessary. If additional topsoil is required to replace topsoil removed during construction, it shall be obtained off site at no additional cost to the City. Topsoil shall be fertile, natural surface soil, capable of producing all trees, plants and grassing specified herein.
- E. Water: It is the Contractor's responsibility to supply all water to the site, as required during seeding and sodding operations and through the maintenance period and until the work is accepted. The Contractor shall make whatever arrangements that may be necessary to ensure an adequate supply of water to meet the needs for his work. He shall also furnish all necessary hose, equipment, attachments and accessories for the adequate irrigation of lawns and planted areas as may be required. Water shall be suitable for irrigation and free from ingredients harmful to plant life.

PART 3 EXECUTION

3.01 INSTALLATION

- A. When the trench backfill has stabilized sufficiently, the Contractor shall commence work on lawns and grassed areas (as applicable), including fine grading as necessary and as directed by the City.
- B. Finish Grading: Areas to be seeded or sodded shall be finish graded, raked, and debris removed. Soft spots and uneven grades shall be eliminated. The City shall approve the finish grade of all areas to be seeded or sodded prior to seed or sod application.
- C. Protection: Seeded and sodded areas shall be protected against traffic or other use by placing warning signs or erecting barricades as necessary. Any areas damaged prior to acceptance by the City shall be repaired by the Contractor as directed by the City.

3.02 CLEANUP

Soil or similar materials spilled onto paved areas shall be removed promptly, keeping those areas as clean as possible at all times. Upon completion of seeding and sodding operations, all excess soil, stones and debris remaining shall be removed from the construction areas.

3.03 LANDSCAPE MAINTENANCE

- A. Any existing landscape items damaged or altered during construction by the Contractor shall be restored or replaced as directed by the City.
- B. Maintain landscape work for a period of ninety (90) days immediately following the date of City acceptance. Watering, weeding, cultivating, restoration of grade, mowing and trimming, protection from insects and diseases, fertilizing and similar operations as

needed to ensure normal growth and good health for live plant material shall be included at no additional cost to the City.

3.04 REPAIRS TO LAWN AREAS DISTURBED BY CONTRACTOR'S OPERATORS

Lawn areas planted under this Contract and all lawn areas damaged by the Contractor's operation shall be repaired at once by proper soil preparation, fertilizing and sodding, in accordance with these Specifications.

SECTION 02513 ASPHALT CONCRETE PAVING

PART 1 GENERAL

1.01 SCOPE OF WORK

A. The Contractor shall furnish all labor, materials, and equipment necessary to complete all milling asphalt pavement and asphalt concrete paving as called out on the Contract Documents or as shown on the Drawings. All work is to be conducted in accordance with the Florida Department of Transpiration Standard Specifications for Road and Bridge Construction, Latest Edition.